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CORPORATE PROFILE
LM

China Lesso Group Holdings Limited is a leading large-scale
industrial group, making building materials and interior decoration
products in mainland China. It is listed on the main board of The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (stock name: China Lesso,
stock code: 2128). China Lesso is one of the constituent stocks of
the Hang Seng Composite Index — MidCap and has been covered
by Hong Kong Stock Link, which is tradable under the pilot scheme
of Shanghai-Hong Kong Stock Connect. The Group provides over
10,000 kinds of quality products, including plastic pipes and pipe
fittings, sanitary ware products, integrated kitchens, systems of
doors and windows, decorative plates, fire-fighting equipment,
and sanitary materials, etc. They are widely applied to such fields
as interior decoration, water supply, drainage, power supply
and telecommunications, gas transmission, agriculture, floor
heating and fire services. The Group is positioned as one of the
manufacturers who offer the most comprehensive range of building
materials and interior decoration products.

The Group has 21 advanced production bases in 15 regions, namely
Guangdong, Guizhou, Sichuan, Hubei, Jiangsu, Anhui, Zhejian,
Henan, Hebei, Heilongjiang, Jilin, Shaanxi, Xinjiang, Hainan and
Yunnan. The Group has established a nationwide sales network
and has also developed long-term strategic partnerships with 2,130
independent and exclusive first-tier distributors to provide quality
and comprehensive products as well as professional services for
customers.
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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS
MBRE

Change
2015 2014 %5
For the year ended 31 December #HZE12831HLLEE
(RMB’000) (ARYF )
Revenue WA 15,264,401 14,822,772 3.0%
Gross profit EF 3,937,571 3,800,734 3.6%
Finance costs BB 87,323 233,071 (62.5)%
EBITDA R BRI R 2 A 2,653,109 2,519,644 5.3%
Profit before tax % A i A 2,064,671 1,846,793 11.8%
Profit for the year F N Tl 1,618,450 1,540,358 5.1%
Profit attributable to owners ViN/NEIE DN
of the Company FE/R 5 A 1,621,117 1,554,024 4.3%
At 31 December (RMB’000) R12A31MB(AR¥F )
Total assets BEMAR 16,649,123 14,519,528 14.7%
Cash and bank deposits We RRITERX 3,893,544 3,198,902 21.7%
Total debts® BB 3,240,740 3,179,834 1.9%
Net cash® I FERAD 652,804 19,068 3,323.6%
Total equity WS HARE 9,865,452 8,549,723 15.4%
Share information (RMB) BHER(ARE)
Basic earnings per share® AR E AR B F) 0.52 0.50 4.0%
Diluted earnings per share® FRREERF|@ 0.52 0.50 4.0%
Proposed final dividend per share #/x &R EINE S
(HK cents) () 13 13 =
Equity attributable to owners BRARBHEE A
of the Company per share FE(GfER 3.14 2.75 14.3%
Financial ratios B =
Gearing Ratio (%) EEBEXR(%) 24.7 27.1
Net debt to equity® (%) B FRRE L T 9(%) N/A N/A
Interest cover® (times) B AT Re(Z) 30.38 10.81
Note: FfsE -
a. Represented total borrowings. a. EfERHEEE -
b. Represented total debts less cash and bank deposits. b. IEEBBERIRE S MIRITER °

c. Details of the calculations of the basic and diluted earnings per share of the  c. RARBRERAREERF 25T EF R B REM T

Company are set out indiote 11 to financial statements. 110
d. Represented net debt divided by total equity. d. TeEH FRER AR ARE -
e. Represented EBITDA divided by finance costs. e. R EBBITEAT R AR AR BB
02 China Lesso Group Holdings Limited /1 BB %8 & B2 IS B R A 7]



FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY
T FIEEE

For the year ended 31 December

BZ12A318LEE
2015 2014 2013 2012 2011
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
RESULTS S AR®TT ARETTL ARETT ARETT ARETTL
REVENUE '@ 15,264,401 14,822,772 13,070,547 10,891,363 10,143,296
GROSS PROFIT EY ] 3,937,571 3,800,734 3,265,568 2,649,308 2,452,022
EXPENSES* B¢ (1,906,605)  (1,837,384) (1,502,919) (1,136,887 (932,845)
FINANCE COSTS MEHAR (87,323) (233,071) (151,003) (146,231) (110,536)
PROFIT BEFORE TAX BREL AR 2,064,671 1,846,793 1,767,511 1,482,279 1,556,933
Income tax expense FIEREY (446,221) (306,435) (329,895) (251,008) (296,237)
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR EREF 1,618,450 1,540,358 1,437,616 1,231,271 1,260,696
Profit attributable to: AT B &7 -
Owners of the Company AREEBA 1,621,117 1,554,024 1,449,261 1,238,322 1,260,758
Non-controlling interests IR (2,667) (13,666) (11,645) (7,051) (62)
1,618,450 1,540,358 1,437,616 1,231,271 1,260,696
At 31 December
M2A318
2015 2014 2013 2012 2011
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
FINANCIAL POSITION BRI AR AR®T AREFTL AREFL AREBTL ARETL
ASSETS BE
Non-current assets ETEEE 8,416,831 7,204,696 5,899,084 4,669,883 3,284,886
Current assets REEE 8,232,292 7,314,832 6,398,623 5,112,903 4,506,649
Total assets BEES 16,649,123 14,519,528 12,297,707 9,782,786 7,791,535
LIABILITIES a8
Non-current liabilities EEE=R 2,406,123 2,159,959 1,743,944 1,715,992 1,770,979
Current liabilities mEaE 4,377,548 3,809,846 3,297,820 2,038,876 1,033,191
Total liabilities BERE 6,783,671 5,969,805 5,041,764 3,754,868 2,804,170
NET CURRENT ASSETS RBEEFE 3,854,744 3,504,986 3,100,803 3,074,027 3,473,458
EQUITY B
Equity attributable to owners ARAEBA
of the Company [E{h R 9,770,885 8,545,459 7,239,738 6,010,033 4,986,975
Non-controlling interests JER GRS 94,567 4,264 16,205 17,885 390
Total equity EREE 9,865,452 8,549,723 7,255,943 6,027,918 4,987,365
# Represented the sum of selling and distribution expenses, administrative  # HEHEER HEMAY  TTHRASIMEME B -
expenses and other expenses.
Annual Report 2015 4§ 03



CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT
ETRHEE

In 2015, China recorded a pronounced deceleration in growth with
the annual pace hitting the lowest level in a quarter of century.
The weakening economic momentum weighed on different walks
of life. Nevertheless, China continued to forge ahead with major
infrastructure projects and policies to spur the economy, which will
sustain the demand for plastic pipe and pipe fittings. Such projects
include construction of major water conservation projects to ensure
safe water supplies, the execution of “Action Plan for Water
Pollution Prevention and Control” to reduce pollution, the building
and refurbishment of the urban underground pipeline network,
including the improvement of rain absorption systems through
the idea of “Sponge City”. As an authoritative leader in large-
scale industrial group specialising in building materials and interior
decoration products, China Lesso proactively capitalised on the
favorable government policies and steady demand for infrastructure
and piping during the year. Thus, China Lesso was able to fulfill the
business expectations of management by continuing to leverage its
market leadership, brand influence, and expertise in the field.

During the year under review, the Group's business made steady
progress in their development, market expansion and in terms of
key performance indicators despite the economic downturn and
weak property market felt by China in 2015. The Groups revenue
rose by 3.0% to RMB15,264 million in 2015 from RMB14,823
million in 2014. The gross profit increased by 3.6% to RMB3,938
million. Profit attributable to owners of the Company grew by 4.3%
to RMB1,621 million. The Board proposed a final dividend of HK13
cents per share for the year ended in 31 December 2015.

During the year, the Group continued to actively expand its
business presence both in Southern China, the Group’s dominating
market, and in other regions within the country in order to drive
overall sale. With the launched production base in the Hainan
province, the Group was able to further enhance market penetration
and consolidate market leadership in Southern China. The Group
has also been pressing ahead with its plan to fully automate
the production bases, with an aim to improve overall operating
efficiency. Meanwhilej due to a steady influx of demand for
industrial materials, the Group expanded the usage of plastic pipes
to offshore cages for aquaculture. The initial market response after
trial use was overwhelming.

04 China Lesso Group Holdings Limited & BB Y8 &£ @12 R AR A T
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT (Continued)
EREHEE @

In addition, the Group continued to develop the business of Lesso
Mall, a diversified and dedicated e-commerce platform featuring
an online and offline business model. The Group believes with
the continuing importance placed on information technology and
high-tech support systems, coupled with increasing demands
of distributors and customers, Lesso Mall will prove to be a
competitive business. Therefore, the Group plans on continuing its
development towards this new business in an orderly fashion.

In the face of a persistently weakened economy in 2015, the Group
was able to rise above undershot market expectations to achieve
growth. The Company’'s growth was realised by leveraging on
its advantages such as brand heritage and extensive distribution
network, and by implementing measures such as enriching its
product lines and initiating a new business unit in the form of Lesso
Mall as new drivers of revenue. As such, the Company was able to
successfully achieve their growth targets in terms of revenue and
profitability.

In regards to 2016, we expect it to be a challenging year for China
due to market uncertainties and volatilities. With that being said,
the Group remains cautiously optimistic and believes its business
will continue to grow steadily due to added impetus for its products
as a result of favorable government initiatives. The Group will act
in tandem with current market trends and focus on improving
cost efficiency through automation of its production bases. The
Group also believes Lesso Mall to be a vehicle with incalculable
business potential and hence will continue to develop and expand
the diversified and dedicated e-commerce platform into the global
market.

The Group was able to achieve consistent developmental progress
due to the continuous, inexhaustible support received from
stakeholders. | would like to convey my sincerest appreciation and
gratitude to all the employees of China Lesso for their dedication
and contribution to and belief in the Group's development. |
would also like to take this opportunity to thank our shareholders,
investors, business partners and customers for placing inexorable
trust in China Lesso. May we all continue to bring success and
prosperity to China Lesso together!

Wong Luen Hei
Chairman

Hong Kong, 18 March 2016
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EENREREEAEBE

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Wong Luen Hei, aged 53, is the founder of the Group, the
chairman of the Company and was appointed as an executive
director of the Company on 5 November 2009. He is also a director
of various companies in the Group. He is primarily responsible for
the Group's overall strategic planning and business management.
Mr. Wong has approximately 19 years of experience in plastic
pipe operations and management. He served as the chairman in
Shunde Liansu Industrial from December 1996 to April 1999 and
was awarded “Outstanding Private Entrepreneur of Shunde” by
Shunde People’s Government of Foshan in 2003. Mr. Wong has
been a member of Shunde District, Foshan City Committee of the
Chinese People’s Political Consultative Conference since 2003 and
a vice president of Foshan Shunde Longjiang General Chamber
of Commerce since 2006. Mr. Wong is the spouse of Ms. Zuo
Xiaoping and the brother-in-law of Mr. Zuo Manlun. Mr. Wong is the
founder of a trust which holds the entire issued share capital of Xi Xi
Development Limited and New Fortune, the controlling shareholder
of the Company.

Mr. Zuo Manlun, aged 43, is the chief executive of the Group and
was appointed as an executive director of the Company on 27
February 2010. He is also a director/general manager/supervisor
of various companies in the Group. He is primarily responsible for
the management of the daily business operations of the Group. Mr.
Zuo has approximately 16 years of experience in the plastic pipe
industry. Mr. Zuo joined the Group in December 1999 and has held
various positions in operation management since joining the Group.
Mr. Zuo won several awards including “QOutstanding Worker of the
Plastic Industry in the PRC" by China Plastics Processing Industry
Association in 2009. Mr. Zuo is the brother-in-law of Mr. Wong Luen
Hei and the younger brother of Ms. Zuo Xiaoping.

Ms. Zuo Xiaoping, aged 49, is a vice president of the Group and was
appointed as an executive director of the Company on 27 February
2010. She is also a director/supervisor of various companies in the
Group. She is primarilyfresponsible for procurement control and
logistics management of the Group. Ms. Zuo has approximately 19
years of experience in the plastic pipe industry. Ms. Zuo served as a
director of Shunde Liansu Industrial[from December 1996. In 1999,
upon establishing the Group togéther with Mr. Wong Luen Hei, she
held various positions in procurement. Ms. Zuo is the spouse of Mr.
Wong Luen Hei and the elder sister of Mr. Zuo Manlun.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT (Continued)

EEZNEREEABER &)

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS (Continued)

Mr. Lai Zhigiang, aged 49, is a vice president of the Group and was
appointed as an executive director of the Company on 27 February
2010. He is also a director of various companies in the Group. He is
primarily responsible for the production and technical management
of the Group. Mr. Lai has approximately 19 years of experience
in the plastic pipe industry and served as a workshop manager of
Shunde Liansu Industrial from December 1996 to November 1999.
Mr. Lai joined the Group in December 1999 and has held various
positions in production management since joining the Group.

Mr. Kong Zhaocong, aged 50, is a vice president of the Group and
was appointed as an executive director of the Company on 27
February 2010. He is also a director/general manager/supervisor of
various companies in the Group. Mr. Kong is primarily responsible
for the China’s sales of the Group and has approximately 22
years of experience in the plastic pipe industry. Mr. Kong joined
the Group in December 1999 and has held various positions in
production management and sales since joining the Group. Prior to
joining the Group, Mr. Kong served as a factory manager at Foshan
City Dongjian Plastic Materials Factory from March 1993 to January
1999 and served as a manager in the production department of
Shunde Liansu Industrial from January 1999 to November 1999.

Mr. Chen Guonan, aged 48, is a vice president of the Group and was
appointed as an executive director of the Company on 27 February
2010. He is also a director of various companies in the Group. He is
primarily responsible for the management of the quality control of
the Group. Mr. Chen has approximately 26 years of experience in
the plastic pipe industry. Mr. Chen joined the Group in December
1999 and has held various positions in production management and
engineering since joining the Group. Prior to joining the Group, Mr.
Chen was a manufacturing engineer in the technology department
at Guangdong Province Zhaoqging Gaojiang Plastic Products Co.,
Limited from July 1989 to July 1993. From July 1993 to September
1999, he was a deputy factory manager at Foshan City Dongjian
Plastic Materials Factory. Mr. Chen served as a manager in the
production department of Shunde Liansu Industrial from September
1999 to November 1999. Mr. Chen has been a deputy secretary
general of Plastic Pipe Special Committee of China Plastics
Processing Industry Association since 2005. Mr. Chen obtained a
bachelor degree in polymer chemical from South China University
of Technology in July 1989.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT (Continued)

EEZNEREEBEABER &)

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS (Continued)

Dr. Lin Shaoquan, aged 40, is a vice president of the Group and was
appointed as an executive director of the Company on 27 February
2010. He is also a director of various companies in the Group.
Dr. Lin is primarily responsible for the research and development
and overseas sales of the Group. Dr. Lin has approximately 13
years of experience in the plastic pipe industry. Dr. Lin joined the
Group in July 2002 and has held various positions in research and
development and overseas sales since joining the Group. Over the
years, Dr. Lin has won various awards including “National May First
Labor Medal” by All China Federation of Trade Unions in 2006. Dr.
Lin received a doctorate degree in polymer chemical and physics
from Sun Yat-sen University in June 2002.

Mr. Huang Guirong, aged 40, is a vice president of the Group and
was appointed as an executive director of the Company on 27
February 2010. He is also a director/general manager/supervisor of
various companies in the Group. Mr. Huang is primarily responsible
for the overall management of the factories and production facilities
of the Group and has approximately 19 years of experience in the
plastic pipe industry. Mr. Huang joined the Group in December 1999
and has held various positions in production management since
joining the Group. Prior to joining the Group, Mr. Huang served as
a deputy factory manager at Foshan City Dongjian Plastic Materials
Factory from 1996 until 1999 and served as a deputy manager of
the plastic production department of Shunde Liansu Industrial from
June 1999 to November 1999. Mr. Huang completed a programme
of marketing from Hubei University of Technology from September
2001 to July 2005.

Mr. Luo Jianfeng, aged 44, was appointed as an executive director
of the Company on 2 April 2010. He is also a director/supervisor
of various companies in the Group. Mr. Luo has approximately
21 years of experience in accounting and worked at Shunde City
Accounting Firm from July 1993 to March 1996, Guangdong
Dezheng Accounting Firm with Limited Liability from April 1996 to
December 2001 and Guangdong Gongcheng Accounting Firm from
January 2002 to December 2007. Since January 2008, Mr. Luo
has been working for Foshan City Zhongzhengcheng Accounting
Firm Co., Limited as a certified public accountant. Mr. Luo is a
member of The Chinese Institute of Certified Public Accountants.
Mr. Luo had been an independent director of Winowner Group
Co., Ltd. (stock code: 600681), which is listed on the Shanghai
Stock Exchange, from June 2009 to June 2015. Mr. Luo obtained
a bachelor degree in economics from Guangdong University of
Business Studies in June 1993.

08 China Lesso Group Holdings Limited & BB Y8 &£ @12 R AR A T

HITESE(E)

I 2BL - 4058 - /AKEEIAE - X R2010
F2A2TEEBZERETRRAMITES - WIFNA
SEAZERERFREEERS - MELEE
BEASENMEREINEETHE - HELRE
FHEEITRBERM13FER - MELRN200247
AMBAEE - BRI SIMNEENE S E
ETRBE - MBLZFREEZ[EER - B
R2006FEPELFHATERK [2BA 4%
BE | - MELN2002F6 AEFILAERBED
FAL 2 YR E BT o

FEHSLAE 4055 0 RAKBEEIRE - w2010
F2RA2TAEZTAARRRMITESE - HIARAK
EERNZHEKEQARETES KR LR
B EBAETBABAEEIRREERENE
BREE  UWHRPHEBTEREBNIIFTER - &
FHERI1999F 12 AMBALR - QURNEEER
FEZETTRBS - RINBAERZA - J|iL
AP 19964F 2= 1999 4F HE 48 1L 1 R B KR A
BIFR - WA 199996 A= 1999F 11 A& /IE=
BHRE R A EIBEILIE - FAAEN20014F
9A E2005%F 7 B4t TEKE K TI5 2 HF

2 o

BREIELA 4458 0 N2010F4A2BEZR T A
RAFIITES - FHARAEBRNZHEKE QA
BAESE EE2BE BRERSHTEEEY
21F 48 - WMN1993%7 A 2199643 A TR
BT ERFT - R 19969 4 A £2001F
2ATBREREESRE TSNS RN
200241 A£2007F12 AT ER A H 60
EHFT - H2008F1 AR - BEE—EHEBILT
FERSFAIEBAER AT EEFME A -
BERERTPHFMSTMBETELE - H2009F6
AZ2015%F68 BRECR EBESFRSM L
MHEBREERD AR AT (KA - 600681)
EBYEE - BEEMI1993F6 AMBEREE

Bra) QB8 T BT -



BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT (Continued)

EEZNEREEABER &)

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Mr. Lin Dewei, aged 55, was appointed as a non-executive director
of the Company on 27 February 2010. Mr. Lin has approximately
21 years of experience in the legal field and worked as a part-
time lawyer at various PRC law firms between 1995 and 2001.
Since 2001, Mr. Lin had been practising as a lawyer at Guangdong
Everwin Law Office and became a partner at the firm in 2004. Mr.
Lin was an arbitrator of the Guangzhou City Arbitration Commission
in 2003.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Dr. Tao Zhigang, aged 50, was appointed as an independent non-
executive director of the Company on 1 September 2015. Dr. Tao
is Professor of Economics and Strategy in the Faculty of Business
and Economics and the director of the Institute for China and Global
Development, the University of Hong Kong. Prior to joining the
University of Hong Kong in 1998, he taught at Hong Kong University
of Science and Technology from 1992 to 1998. Dr. Tao received
his B.Sc. in management science from Fudan University in 1986,
and PhD in economics from Princeton University in 1992. Dr. Tao
is currently an independent non-executive director of Huadian
Fuxin Energy Corporation Limited (stock code: 816), which is
listed on The Stock Exchange. Dr. Tao is senior fellow at Tsinghua
University’s National Centre of Economic Research, senior fellow at
Tsinghua University’s Center for China in the World Economy, and
special-term professor at Fudan University School of Management.
He is also co-director of the Asia Competitiveness Program of Hong
Kong Institute of Economics and Business Strategy.

Mr. Fung Pui Cheung, aged 67, was appointed as an independent
non-executive director of the Company on 27 February 2010.
Mr. Fung is currently practising as a sole proprietor in the name
of P C Fung & Company, a certified public accountants firm. Mr.
Fung is a Certified Public Accountant, a fellow member of the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and a member of
The Institute of Chartered Accountants in England and Wales. Mr.
Fung obtained a master degree in arts from Antioch University,
US in March 1987. Mr. Fung is currently an independent non-
executive director and a member of the audit committee of Vantage
International (Holdings) Limited (stock code: 15), which is listed
on the Stock Exchange. He is a member of the Hong Kong Inland
Revenue Department’'s Users’ Committee.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT (Continued)
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
(Continued)

Mr. Wong Kwok Ho Jonathan, aged 42, was appointed as an
independent non-executive director of the Company on 27 February
2010. Since 2002, Mr. Wong has been practising as a barrister of
the High Court in Hong Kong specialising in both civil and criminal
litigation. Mr. Wong is a member of The Chartered Institute of
Arbitrators. Mr. Wong obtained a bachelor degree in business
administration from Hawaii Pacific University in August 1997 and
a bachelor degree in law from City University of Hong Kong in
November 2001. Mr. Wong received a postgraduate certificate in
laws from City University of Hong Kong in July 2002.

Mr. Cheung Man Yu, aged 41, was appointed as an independent
non-executive director of the Company on 31 December 2012.
Mr. Cheung obtained a bachelor degree in arts with major in
accountancy from The Hong Kong Polytechnic University and is a
member of Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Mr.
Cheung has over 17 years of experience in financial management
and financial services. Mr. Cheung is currently the chief financial
officer and company secretary of Feiyu Technology International
Company Ltd. (stock code: 1022), which listed on the Stock
Exchange. Mr. Cheung was employed at the audit department of
Ernst & Young, an international accounting firm, from 2000 to 2004.
Mr. Cheung had been a vice president or director at the respective
investment banking division of BNP Paribas Capital (Asia Pacific)
Limited, UBS AG and J.P. Morgan securities (Asia Pacific) Limited
from 2004 to 2011. From 2011 to 2012, Mr. Cheung was a vice
president of a company which is listed on the Stock Exchange.

Ms. Lan Fang, aged 40, was appointed as an independent non-
executive director of the Company on 1 January 2015. Ms. Lan
has been the President of Guangdong Construction and Decoration
Materials Association since March 2008 and the President of
Guangdong Construction and Decoration Design Association since
August 2014. Ms. Lan graduated from Guangdong University of
Technology with a college diploma in June 1996 and then pursued
further studies in the EMBA CEO training program of Sun Yat-sen
University and the business management CEO training program
of Tsinghua University. She worked|as a chairman of the materials
committee of Guangzhou Architecture & Decoration Association
from February 1998 to October 2006. As of the date herein, Ms. Lan
has accumulated over 18 years of experience with respect to the
administration of social organisations and the industry of construction
and decoration materials.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT (Continued)
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Liu Guanggen, aged 34, is a chief financial officer of the Group
and is responsible for the Group’s overall financial and accounting
affairs. Mr. Liu joined the Group in November 2008. Prior to this,
he worked as a finance manager in The Industrial and Commercial
Bank of China, Shunde Branch from 2004 to 2006, and was a sub-
branch manager of The Industrial and Commercial Bank of China,
Foshan Shunde Haiginwan Sub-Branch from 2007 to 2008. Mr. Liu
completed a diploma in finance from Southwestern University of
Finance and Economics in September 2005, a program in laws at
Guangdong University of Business Studies from March 2007 to
January 2010. As well as obtaining a master degree in engineering
from Chongging University upon the completion of courses for
the master degree in software engineering (specialised in financial
informatisation) in June 2014. He is an associate member of the
Association of International Accountants.

Mr. Kwan Chi Wai Samuel, aged 38, is a company secretary of
the Company. Mr. Kwan has more than 10 years of experience
in accounting, auditing and finance. Mr. Kwan joined the Group
in June 2010 as secretary on a full time basis. Prior to joining the
Group, Mr. Kwan worked in CWCC Certified Public Accountants
from March 2000 to November 2004, PricewaterhouseCoopers
from November 2004 to October 2007 and Deloitte Touche
Tohmatsu from November 2007 to September 2009. The latter
two firms are amongst the biggest international accounting firms.
Mr. Kwan graduated with a bachelor degree in Commerce from
Deakin University of Australia in September 2000 and obtained a
master degree in business administration from University of South
Australia in August 2012. He is a fellow member of the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants and member of the CPA
Australia.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
TEERHRE

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

China Lesso is always committed to maintaining high standards
of corporate governance practices and business ethics of the
Group. The Board believes in good corporate governance practices
and business ethics which are essential for achieving sustainable
development, establishing investors’ confidence in the Company
and safeguarding and enhancing the interests of the Shareholders.

In pursuit of good and high standard of corporate governance
practices, the Board reviews the corporate governance practices
of the Company from time to time so as to meet the expectations
of the Shareholders for continual improvement, comply with
increasingly stringent regulatory requirements and fulfill its
commitment of pursuing excellent corporate governance. In
the opinion of the directors, the Company complied with all the
applicable code provisions of the Code during the year, except
that one of the independent non-executive directors was unable
to attend the annual general meeting ("AGM") of the Company
held on 15 May 2015 (as provided for the Code A.6.7) due to other
business engagements.

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS BY
DIRECTORS

The Company has adopted the Model Code as the code governing
securities transactions by directors of the Company. Having made
specific enquiry to the directors, all of them confirmed that they
have complied with the required standard as set out in the Model
Code throughout the year. The Model Code is also applicable to
other specific senior management officers of the Company. The
directors and chief executive’s interests and short positions in the
shares, underlying shares and debentures of the Company and its
associated corporations are disclosed in the Directors’ Report on
page 53.

BOARD

THE COMPOSITION OF THE BOARD

The Board currently comprises 15 directors, including 9 executive
directors, 1 non-executive director and 5 independent non-
executive directors. Up to the date of this report, Mr. Gao Lixin has
resigned as an independent non-executive director and a member
of the nomination committee of the Company; and Ms. Lan Fang
has been appointed as an independent non-executive director and
a member of the nomination committee of the Company, all with
effect from 1 January 2015,

Dr. Tao Zhigang has been appointed as an independent non-
executive director of the Company; Mr. Cheung Man Yu has
been appointed as a member of the remuneration committee
of the Company; and Dr. Bai Chongen has resigned as the
independent non-executive director, member of the nomination and
remuneration committees of the Company, all with effect from 1
September 2015.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (Continued)
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BOARD (Continued)

THE COMPOSITION OF THE BOARD (Continued)

Pursuant to the articles of association of the Company (the
“Articles”), any director appointed to fill a casual vacancy or as
an addition to the existing directors shall hold office only until the
next AGM of the Company and shall then be eligible for re-election
at that meeting. In addition, at every AGM of the Company, not
less than one-third of the directors for the time being shall retire
from office by rotation provided that every director shall be subject
to retirement by rotation at least once every three years. Apart
from retirement by rotation pursuant to the Articles, each non-
executive director has a term of within three years. Therefore, no
director will remain in office for a term of more than three years.
If there exists any relationship among the members of the Board,
including financial, business, family or other material/relevant
relationship, the disclosure has been published in the sections
headed "Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management”
and “Directors and Chief Executive's Interests and Short Positions
in Shares, Underlying Shares and Debentures” of the Directors’
Report.

CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE

To segregate the management of the Board from the daily
management and business operations of the Group effectively, the
post of chairman and the chief executive are held by Mr. Wong
Luen Hei and Mr. Zuo Manlun, respectively. One of the important
duties of the chairman is to lead the Board to ensure the Board
always acts in the best interests of the Group. The chairman shall
ensure the effective operation of the Board and fully perform his/
her duties and ensure all important issues are discussed at Board
meetings in a timely manner. All directors will be consulted for any
proposed items in the agenda. The chairman has delegated the
drafting of the agenda of each Board meeting to the chief executive
and the company secretary. With the assistance of the chief
executive and the company secretary, the chairman aims to ensure
all directors are adequately briefed on any issues being put forward
at a Board meeting and receive sufficient and reliable information in
a timely manner.

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The non-executive directors provide various expertise and
experiences, and maintain balance of interest to safeguard the
interests of the Group and the Shareholders. They participate in
Board meetings and committee meetings and make independent
judgements on issues related to the Group's strategies,
performance, interest conflicts and management process so as to
ensure the interests of all Shareholders are properly considered.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (Continued)
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BOARD (Continued)

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The Company has received annual confirmations made by each of
the independent non-executive directors under Rule 3.13 of the
Listing Rules regarding their independence. The Company regarded
all independent non-executive directors as independent parties in
accordance with the terms of the independence guidelines set out
in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.

DUTIES OF THE BOARD

The Board shoulders the responsibility of providing effective,
responsible and reliable leadership to the Group. The Board
exercises its rights in management decision on the aspects of
the Company’s development strategy, management structure,
investment and financing, planning, financial control and personnel
in accordance with the requirements of the Code.

The Company appointed Ernst & Young as the Company's
independent auditor to review the interim results for the six
months ended 30 June 2015 and to audit the annual results for
the year ended 31 December 2015. The directors of the Company
acknowledge their responsibility for preparing the financial
statements of the annual report and the interim report. In preparing
the financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2015, the
directors have selected and applied appropriate accounting policies
and have made prudent and reasonable judgements and estimates
in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards.

The declaration of reporting responsibility issued by the external
auditor of the Company on the Company’s financial statements is
set out in the Independent Auditors’ Report on pages 64 to 65.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTIONS
The Board is responsible for performing corporate governance
duties including:

(@) to develop and review the Company’s policies and practices
on corporate governance;

(b)  to review and monitor the training and continuous professional
development of directors and senior management;

(c) to review and monjtor the Company's policies and practices
on compliance with legal and regulatory requirements;

(d) to develop, review and monitor the code of conduct and
compliance manual (if any) applicable to employees and
directors; and |

(e) to review the Company's compliance with Appendix 14 to
the Listing Rules (Corporate Governance Code and Corporate
Governance Report).

The Board has performed above activities during 2015.
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BOARD (Continued)

BOARD AND GENERAL MEETINGS

For the year ended 31 December 2015, the Board convened six
meetings to review operating performance, funding requirement
and recent market conditions. The Board also considered and
approved the Group’s overall strategy, audited annual results for
the year ended 31 December 2014 and reviewed interim results for
the six months ended 30 June 2015.

The chairman of the Board and the chairman of the audit
committee, the nomination committee and the remuneration
committee, attended the AGM of the Company held on 15 May
2015.

The table below sets out the attendance of all members of the
Board at the meetings held in 2015:

EEEEENREAS
HE2015F12831HIEEE  EF2H8HAANX
S UEMELERER  BEEREHKETR -
BESNRCEREMIERER 2 BERRE B
2014F 12 A3MB I FEMEEZ2FEERE
F2015F6 A30H LN A AR EM P HIRLE -

BECIFLAEZZES  REZESRFINE
BeNERHELEEARARFN20156F5H15H £
ITRRERFRS o

TREJ201FEFEFERBNLFESRENR

Meetings attended/eligible to attend
HERE, SEREENRE

Audit Nomination Remuneration
AGM Board Committee Committee Committee
Directors Ex BRRBFAE EXg ENEZE" REZE" FMESE
Executive directors HITESE
Wong Luen Hei HHE 171 6/6 = 1/1 1/1
Zuo Manlun m e 11 6/6 = 1/1 11
Zuo Xiaoping LR 0/1 4/6 = = =
Lai Zhigiang fEE0R 171 6/6 = = =
Kong Zhaocong FLKEE 11 6/6 - - -
Chen Guonan BREIR 11 6/6 = = =
Lin Shaoquan wz mhn 4/6 - - -
Huang Guirong mES mhn 4/6 - - -
Luo Jianfeng FErlg 11 6/6 = = =
Non-executive director EHTES
Lin Dewei B 11 5/6 2/2 = =
Independent
non-executive directors BIFHITES
Fung Pui Cheung BEE 17 6/6 2/2 11 11
Wong Kwok Ho Jonathan ~ FE = 11 5/6 1/2 11 11
Cheung Man Yu RXF 11 6/6 2/2 = =
Lan Fang® B 0/1 4/6 - 11 -
Tao Zhigang" ba =R - 2/2 - - -
Bai Chongen'@ HE&AW 11 3/4 - 171 il
Note: MEEE -
(a) Directors may attend meetings in person, by phone or through other means of  (a) REERMABE  EFHAHREE EBRBFEHEMR
video conference in accordance with the Articles. BeERrTHEARS -
(b) Director who was appointed with effect from 1 January 2015. (b) R2015F 1AV HEZTARES -
(c) Director who was appointed with effect from 1 September 2015. (c) MR2016FIAVAEZTAES -
(d) Director who resigned with effect from 1 September 2015. (d)  R2016F9A1HEBHIES -
(e) There was no other general meeting held in 2015. (e) R20156F R « BEE MR A GERIT o
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BOARD (Continued)

BOARD AND GENERAL MEETINGS (Continued)

The Company gives proper notices of Board meeting to the
directors and the procedure of Board meetings is in compliance
with the Articles and the relevant rules and regulations. The agenda
and the relevant documents will be provided to all directors in
a timely manner. The chairman will give a proper briefing to all
directors on items to be put forward at a Board meeting. To ensure
compliance with the procedure of Board meetings and all applicable
rules and regulations, all directors may gain a full understanding
of all relevant data in a timely manner and may receive advice
and services from the company secretary. The minutes of Board
meetings are kept by the company secretary and are available for
inspection by the directors and the auditor of the Company.

TRAINING AND SUPPORT FOR DIRECTORS

The directors are encouraged to participate in continuous
professional development to develop and refresh their knowledge
and skills. The Company would provide a comprehensive
induction package covering the summary of the responsibilities
and obligations of a director of a Hong Kong listed company, the
Company’s constitutional documents and the Guides on Directors’
Duties issued by the Hong Kong Companies Registry to each newly
appointed director to ensure he/she to have sufficient awareness of
good corporate governance practices.

The company secretary reports from time to time the latest
changes and development of the Listing Rules, corporate
governance practices and other regulatory regime to the directors
with written materials, as well as organises seminars on the
professional knowledge and latest development of regulatory
requirements related to director’s duties and responsibilities.

In 2015, the Company invited Ernst & Young to give an seminar on
the topic of “Corporate Governance, Risk Management and Internal
Control” to Board members.
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BOARD (Continued) EEg(HE)

TRAINING AND SUPPORT FOR DIRECTORS (Continued) EEEIIIRXE(E)

Apart from the above training offered by the Company, based on [ 7 it AR AIREAZIN » BiEEERA
the training records provided to the Company by the directors, the A FIEEEAEEIEEEE - 20154 + EEHNELRH

directors also participated in the following trainings during 2015: AT -
Type of trainings

Directors 2= EINER
Executive directors BITES
Wong Luen Hei == A, C
Zuo Manlun T i A C
Zuo Xiaoping EESE A, C
Lai Zhigiang FEELR A C
Kong Zhaocong FLIKER A, C
Chen Guonan FeR [ A C
Lin Shaoquan oS A C
Huang Guirong =HHE A C
Luo Jianfeng Eizlg A C
Non-executive director FHITES
Lin Dewei Mg A C
Independent non-executive directors BIYEHTESE
Fung Pui Cheung IR A C
Wong Kwok Ho Jonathan TE%x A C
Cheung Man Yu RXF A C
Lan Fang® e A, B, C
Tao Zhigang® (R A B, C
Bai Chongen® HER© A B, C

Note: B 5E -

A: attending seminars and/or conferences and/or forums A HEMRAER REFERLRE

B: delivering talks at seminars and/or conferences and/or forums B: RAFNER/REER/KRBES

(8 reading information, newspapers, journals and materials relating to the C: FBEBHEEHRE  &F €/ B REKEARQ

responsibilities of directors, economy, fiscal, financial, investments and AIEBHEF - #RE - AMRER
business of the Company

(a) Director who was appointed with effect from 1 January 2015. (a) R2015F1 A1HEZERES -

(b) Director who was appointed with effect from 1 September 2015. (b) MR2015F91HEZTAES -

(c) Director who resigned with effect from 1 September 2015. (c) HR2015F9RA 1 HBHEES ©
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BOARD (Continued)

COMPANY SECRETARY

The company secretary reports to the Board so as to ensure
compliance with the procedure of the Board meeting and ensure
the Board is fully briefed on all legislations, regulations and
corporate governance development and has considered their
opinions when making a decision. The company secretary is also
directly responsible for the Group’s compliance with its continuing
obligations under the Listing Rules, Hong Kong Codes on Takeovers
and Mergers and Share Buy-backs, Companies Ordinance, SFO and
other applicable laws, rules and regulations.

During the year ended 31 December 2015, the company secretary
has received no less than 15 hours of relevant professional training
to refresh his knowledge and skills.

INDEMNIFICATION OF DIRECTORS AND OFFICERS

The directors and officers are indemnified under a directors’ and
officers’ liability insurance against any liability incurred by them in
the discharge of their duties while holding office as the directors
and officers of the Company. The directors and officers shall not be
indemnified where there is any fraud, breach of duty or breach of
trust proven against them.

In accordance with the Articles, subject to the Cayman Island
Companies Law (2013 Revision, as amended from time to time),
every director, auditor or other officer of the Company shall be
entitled to be indemnified out of the assets of the Company
against all losses or liabilities incurred or sustained by him as a
director, auditor or other officer of the Company in defending any
proceedings, whether civil or criminal, in which judgment is given in
his favour, or in which he is acquitted.

1 8 China Lesso Group Holdings Limited & BB Y8 &£ @12 R AR A T
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (Continued)
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BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has delegated various responsibilities to certain
committees under its supervision, including the Company's
audit committee (“Audit Committee”), remuneration committee
("Remuneration Committee”) and nomination committee
("Nomination Committee”) (collectively known as “Board
Committees”). Board Committees can engage intermediaries to
provide professional opinions and the reasonable expenses incurred
as a result are borne by the Company.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee comprises four members, namely Mr. Fung
Pui Cheung (chairman of the Audit Committee and independent
non-executive director), Mr. Lin Dewei (non-executive director),
Mr. Wong Kwok Ho Jonathan and Mr. Cheung Man Yu (both are
independent non-executive directors). The major responsibility
of the Audit Committee is to conduct independent and objective
audit of the truth and accuracy of the Group’s economic operation
and financial activities, financial policies, financial procedures,
risk management, internal control, external audit, internal audit,
financial information reporting and financial data and assist the
Board in discharging its relevant duties.

The Audit Committee shall convene at least two meetings each
year. In 2015, the Audit Committee convened two meetings. The
attendance record of the meetings is set out on a named basis on
page 15.

The following is a summary of work performed by the Audit
Committee during 2015:

° review of the annual report and the annual results
announcement for the year ended 31 December 2014, with a
recommendation to the Board for approval;

° review of Ernst & Young's confirmation of independence
and its report for the Audit Committee for the year ended 31
December 2014, with a recommendation to the Board for the
re-appointment of Ernst & Young at the 2015 AGM;

° review of continuing connected transactions;

o review of the Group internal audit reports;

EEREE

EEeCBERERENDRTESEB IS TXZE
g BREAQRZERZES([BXREEE])
¥z Ee((FMEES ) UARREEZEES([IR
2Z8e|)(hiBhEELEg]) -EELEg
ALEBERNHEREEEER  IEENEGE
BB AD R EE -

BREES
BEnZEehmNEXKEEN BB FATES
BIEERE(BERZEELIR)  FRITEEMIE

BEE IBRREERKXFRE(BRBULIE

WITESR) BRZEENIZRARNARE
MEEEITMM A - MR - MBRERF -

R ERE - AERES - ShEREE - AEREE - B
BEEHRENVBEBNEEERIETEIR
EENER  hOHESSRITHEABREA

% BASFELAATHEMNX - 12015
BERARTMAER: %EEH2M

|2 ) BIINE15H ©

_%F ,m]u

BEZZ8g
FEZER
JEREER (JAT)

V

(5

T ABZEEEN2015E AN TIERE ¢

o EHHZ2014F12A3BIEFENFERKL
FEEENE  VRZEESRB

o BRI EKEFTENEBETRE MR &
HEREZEZTESHE2014F12A31HIEF
EHRE  UTMEELEZN2015FRE
BAFRXEe FEFRT LK ELHT

o EHRBEWERS:

o EHAKEAMEIRE
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BOARD COMMITTEES (Continued) BEEZES@W)

AUDIT COMMITTEE (Continued)

review of the interim report and the interim results
announcement for the six months ended 30 June 2015, with a
recommendation to the Board for approval,

review and approval of Ernst & Young's report for the Audit
Committee for the six months ended 30 June 2015;

consideration and approval of audit and non-audit services;

review of the corporate governance report for the year
ended 31 December 2014 and the corporate governance
disclosures for the six months ended 30 June 2015, with
recommendations to the Board for approval; and

review of the annual report on effectiveness of risk
management, internal control system and internal audit
function under the Code, with a recommendation to the Board
for approval.

Subsequent to the year end, the Audit Committee reviewed the
annual report and annual results announcement for the year ended

EREEE(H)

EHHZE2015%6 A308 1E/~E A Eﬁﬂhﬁﬁi&
ERHPHEENE  TEZEFSR

GET MBI K EEIREZEES®
HZE2015F6 8308 IE/<EARRE

Z R BAE MIEFET R
EREHZE2014F128A3MBIEFENTEE

SAMRE MEZE2015F6 4308 IE/NE AR
EERWE  UTEZREFTAEAB X

RETAIZRMFERBRER - NEEERR
RABEZDERBRE YRR EFTER
;@o

RNEEHERE  BERZEZEQENEZ=2015F12A4
AL FENTFREFEEERNE  TEZES

31 December 2015 with a recommendation to the Board for &3@i8 o
approval.
EXTERNAL AUDITORS INEEAZ B A

For the year ended 31 December 2015, the service fees paid or
payable by the Group to the external auditors are set out as follows:

HE2015F12831HILFE - AEBERINEZ
HME TR EN ZREERAHINMNT

RMB million
AR¥EET
Annual audit services FEERS 4.60
Non-audit services IEEET RS
— Interim results review — R HA AR 1.45
- Others* ) —H bt 1.41
Total FEE 7.46

20

“Others” were mainly fori pr@viding advice on matters in relation to risk
L} ! . . .
management and taxation. The piovision of these services by external auditors

were cost effective and efficient due to their professional knowledge.
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BOARD COMMITTEES (Continued)

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Remuneration Committee comprises five members, namely
Mr. Fung Pui Cheung (chairman of the Remuneration Committee
and independent non-executive director), Mr. Wong Luen Hei
(executive director), Mr. Zuo Manlun (executive director), Mr.
Wong Kwok Ho Jonathan, Mr. Cheung Man Yu who was appointed
with effect from 1 September 2015 and Dr. Bai Chongen who
was resigned with effect from 1 September 2015 (all of them are
independent non-executive directors).

The Remuneration Committee is mainly responsible for studying
and formulating the Company’s remuneration policy and incentive
mechanism and is responsible for formulating the standards for the
appraisal of the Company’s directors and senior management and
conducting appraisals.

In order to determine the level of remuneration and fees paid to
members of the Board, market rates and factors such as each
director’'s workload, responsibility and job complexity are taken into
account. The following factors are considered when determining
the remuneration packages of directors and senior management:

° business requirements;

° individual performance and contribution to results;

o company performance and profitability;

° retention considerations and the potential of individuals;

° changes in relevant markets, including supply and demand
fluctuations and changes in competitive conditions; and

° general economic situation.

During the review process, no individual director is involved in
decisions relating to his/her own remuneration.

BEEZEE@)

¥yMEEE

YNEEemnRKEEN BB IERITES
BEERE (FHEZESTIR) BITE=EEH
BELE - BTEFLORMBELE  TERKE R
20159 1R EZRERKE 2 RXFEERRN
20169 AT HERBEKE2BERBL(HA
BUIFHITES) -

FHEZEENIERESAEHREHFIARR
B ECR MBS - U R B BB ARRE
SHESRERAENEREELETER

BETEFeXNENHMIASKTR  AAFE
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BHEMETIEETIIRE
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BOARD COMMITTEES (Continued)

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE (Continued)

The Remuneration Committee shall convene at least one meeting
each year. In 2015, the Remuneration Committee convened one
meeting, assessed the performance of the Company’s directors
and senior management, reviewed their terms of service contracts.
and made the recommendation of the remuneration packages for
directors and senior management to the Board. The attendance
record of the meeting is set out on a named basis on page 15.

Details of directors’ remuneration and five highest paid employees
are set out in note 8 to the financial statements. In addition, the
remuneration of the two senior management fell within the band of
less than RMB1 million.

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Nomination Committee comprises five members, namely
Mr. Wong Luen Hei (chairman of the Nomination Committee
and executive director), Mr. Zuo Manlun (executive director), Mr.
Fung Pui Cheung, Mr. Wong Kwok Ho Jonathan, Ms. Lan Fang
and Dr. Bai Chongen who resigned with effect from 1 September
2015 (all of them are independent non-executive directors).
The major duty of the Nomination Committee is to study and
make recommendations on the candidates, selection criteria
and procedure in respect of the Company’s directors and senior
management.

The Company follows a formal, fair and transparent procedure for
the appointment of new directors to the Board. The Nomination
Committee reviews the structure, size and composition of the
Board, identifies suitable candidates if necessary and makes
recommendations to the Board.

The Nomination Committee shall convene at least one meeting
each year. In 2015, the Nomination Committee convened one
meeting. The Nomination Committee reviewed the structure, size
and composition of theBoard, recommended the Board on the list
of retiring directors for re-election at the AGM on 15 May 2015,
and reviewed the independence of all independent non-executive
directors. The Nomination Committee recommended the Board
on the appointment of Dr. Tao/Zhigang as an independent non-
executive director after taking ‘into account of the Board diversity
factors and consideration of his work experience. The attendance
record of the meeting is set out on a named basis on page 15.
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BOARD COMMITTEES (Continued)

BOARD DIVERSITY POLICY
The Board has adopted a Board diversity policy which sets out the
approach to achieve diversity on the Board.

The Company recognises that increasing diversity at the Board
level will support the attainment of the Company’s strategic
objectives and sustainable development. The Company seeks to
achieve Board diversity through the consideration of a number
of factors, including but not limited to gender, age, cultural and
educational background, ethnicity, professional experience, skills,
knowledge and other qualities. The Company will also take into
consideration its own business model and specific needs from
time to time in determining the optimum composition of the Board.
The Nomination Committee will review the Board diversity policy,
as appropriate, to ensure its continued effectiveness from time to
time.

As at the date of this report, the Board comprises 15 directors.
Two of them are females. One third of the Board members are
independent non-executive directors, thereby promoting critical
review and control of the management process. The composition
of the Board reflects the necessary balance of skills, professional
experience and knowledge for effective leadership of the Company.

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board is solely responsible for evaluating and determining
the nature and extent of the risks it is willing to take in achieving
the Group's strategic objectives, and ensuring the Group has
established and maintained appropriate and effective risk
management and internal control system. The Board is also
responsible for monitoring the design, implementation and review
on the risk management and internal control system as carried
out by management, while management has the responsibility
to provide confirmation on the effectiveness of such system.
To this end, management continues to allocate resources for an
internal control and risk management system compatible with the
COSO (Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway
Commission) standards to provide reasonable, though not absolute,
assurance against material misstatement or loss and to manage
rather than eliminate the risk of failure in the operating system of
the Group and in achieving business objectives by the Group.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL
(Continued)

The Board, through the Audit Committee, has continuously
monitored and annually reviewed the effectiveness of the Group's
risk management and internal control system, and is of the view
that the existing risk management and internal control system is
sufficient and effective. The review covered all material aspects
with regard to control, including financial control, operational
control and compliance control. The internal audit reports submitted
to the Audit Committee by the Group also cover aspects of
risk management and control. The Board is not aware of any
significant areas of concern which may affect the Shareholders,
and believes that the Group has fully complied with the code
provisions on internal controls, including compliance with legal
and regulatory requirements, as set forth in the Code. The Board,
through the appraisal performed by the Audit Committee, reviewed
the adequacy of resources, staff qualifications and experience,
training programs received by the staff and budget of the Group's
accounting, internal auditing and financial reporting function at the
Board meeting. In light of the Group’s nature of business and the
recommendations on the Board’s role in risk management, the
Group has developed risk management system and policies, and
established a risk management project team, which is responsible
for the Group's risk management, to communicate and assess
the Group's risk profile and material risks, and track the progress
of mitigation plans and activities of material risks and report on
detailed examinations of specific risks as required.
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RISK MANAGEMENT ORGANISATION SYSTEM BElEEASREZR

The Group has established a comprehensive organisation AREEBECDEY —ETEOHEMZE  SAEEM
structure to manage the risks encountered by the Group. The MEHHMERETEIE - PEBBNEIEIREE
risk management structure of China Lesso comprised of two key BEMEBEEZE : EEESEREMNRMLESIER
factors: risk management structure and risk management program. = o
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RISK MANAGEMENT ORGANISATION SYSTEM
(Continued)

(A) RISK MANAGEMENT STRUCTURE
REGULATORY ORGANISATION

The Board is responsible for the effectiveness of the
overall risk management

° determine the overall objective, risk appetites and risk
tolerance for corporate risk management, and approve
risk management strategies, major risk mitigation
solutions and risk management measures;

° comprehend and manage each major risks faced by
the enterprise and its existing management situations,
and make effective risks management decisions;
approve the decision-making standards and mechanisms
regarding major operating decisions, major risks, major
events and major business processes;

o approve risk management report related to major
decisions; and

o approve the annual comprehensive risk management
report.

RISK MANAGEMENT ORGANISATION
The Audit Committee, the highest risk management
organisation in the Company which is accountable to the

Board

° review the establishment and planning of the
comprehensive risk management system;

° review the gproposal on the structure of the risk
management organisations, and their responsibilities;

° review the annual comprehensive risk management
report and submit to:the Board,

° review risk management strategies, major risk
management solutions and risk management measures;

and

° review the annual risk management work plan.
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RISK MANAGEMENT ORGANISATION SYSTEM
(Continued)

(A) RISK MANAGEMENT STRUCTURE (Continued)
LEADING RISK MANAGEMENT ORGANISATION

Risk management project team, the leading risk
management organisation

° responsible for the establishment and amendment of the
Company'’s risk management policies and mechanisms;

° formulate and submit annual risk management work plan
to the Board and the Audit Committee for their review;

o regularly collect first-hand information regarding risk
management, carry out risk assessment and discuss
major risks as faced by the Company; and

° assess the soundness, reasonability and the
effectiveness in implementing the risk management
system, and annually review the comprehensive risk
management report, risk management strategies and
day-to-day risk management solutions.

RISK IMPLEMENTATION ORGANISATION

Each functional department of the Company shall accept
the coordination and monitor carried out by the risk
management project team

o implement the basic process in risk management;

o consider and propose decision-making standards or
mechanisms regarding major operating decisions, major
risks, major events and major business processes of the
functional department;

° analyse and propose risk assessment report of the
functional department;

o properly carry out risk management work of the
functional department; and

° establish a comprehensive risk management process of
the functional department.
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RISK MANAGEMENT ORGANISATION SYSTEM F[EEEAHAMER @)

(Continued)

(A) RISK MANAGEMENT STRUCTURE (Continued)
RISK SUPPORTING ORGANISATION
Internal control team

° assist the Group’s risk management work, and formulate
internal control plan in accordance with the result of risk
assessment;

o centrally organise or, together with related functional
departments, design, amend or improve internal audit
documents in accordance with risk management
solution;

o assist the risk management project team to inspect,
examine, evaluate and improve the implementation of
risk management in each functional departments and
operating units; and

o assist the timely rectification and improvements to
existing deficiencies of each functional department
based on the findings in the internal audit report.

Internal audit department

o assist the Group's risk management work, and formulate
internal audit plan in accordance with the result of risk
assessment;

° carry out measures including walk-through test and
analytical review to evaluate the effectiveness in risk
management; and

° after carrying out internal audit, deliver the auditing
results tointernal control team and risk management
project team timely.

)
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RISK MANAGEMENT ORGANISATION SYSTEM [EFEREEASEZR @)
(Continued)

(B) RISK MANAGEMENT PROGRAM (B) REEREERER
The Group has established a comprehensive risk management 2&%@ PRV ETEMNEMREIERER %
program which is led by the risk management project team AR EMREIEIEE4HZDE - RAEILM AR
and implemented with the assistance of the internal audit AHBHBIT - EaEEERXAT :

department and internal control team. The risk management
program is as follows:

(a)  to collect first-hand information for risk management; (a) RESEBEYIBEFRE

(b)  to analyse and assess risks; (b) R\ A FEEA

(c) to propose risk management strategies and form risk (c) REEBEHRE WHKRRER
management solutions; and BRAR: &

(d) to supervise the implementation of risk management (d) HBIEBSBNRBREEI/EEHRIBER
works performed by each business units and verify the EITEEE RAZERTGTE o

overall score.

Key corporate risk management program TEMERBREERER
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SUPERVISION AND ENHANCEMENT OF RISK
MANAGEMENT

The Group has set up basic procedures that cover the whole
process of risk management, connecting the channels of
communication of risk management information along the
reporting lines and among various departments and business units
to ensure the timely, accurate and complete communication of
information and this has laid the foundation for the supervision and
enhancement of risk management.

The senior management of the Group, focusing on material risks,
material matters and material decisions, important management
matters and the business flow, supervises the work relating
to the first-hand information collection for risk management,
risk assessment, risk management strategies, critical control
activities and the implementation of risk management solutions.
The risk management project team carries out an annual review
and examination on the implementation of the works on risk
management by different departments and business units and its
effectiveness for the year, assesses risk management strategies
and evaluates inter-departmental risk management solutions and
business units’ risk management solutions, proposes suggestions
for adjustments and improvements and issues evaluation and
recommendation reports which will be sent to the relevant senior
management in a timely manner.

MATERIAL RISKS THE GROUP MAY FACE

In 2015, during the course of business planning, we identified
the material risks that the Group may face which include macro-
economic risks, risks of inappropriate strategies for marketing
competition, risks of the fluctuation of raw materials price, risks of
adjustments of policies in relation to the economy and the industry.

The potential risks of macro-economic risks arise from the effects
of macro-economy’s volatility; the pressure of inflation. The
Group’s corresponding' measures on risk management include
reviewing the management strategies and mechanism for macro-
economic risks; reviewing the relevant mechanism on the
collection of intelligence about:the changes in the external macro-
economic environment; clearly defining the macro-economic risk
analysis session; analysing, reviewing, adjusting and improving the
strategies for managing macro-economic risks in future.
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MATERIAL RISKS THE GROUP MAY FACE (Continued)

The potential risks of inappropriate strategies for market
competition arise from the risks involved in the formulation
of competition strategies; risks involved in the collection of
clients’ information. The Group’s risk management measures
include reviewing the management mechanism for market
competition strategies; analysing the Company’s position in market
competition, reviewing the corresponding market competition
strategies; and timely devising and reviewing the management
strategies in response to the changes in the market competition
environment and submitting report thereon to management;
collecting the market competition information of new products and
offering suggestions on competition strategies.

The potential risks of the fluctuation of raw materials price arise
because the price of key raw materials purchased by the Company
is easily affected by the shortfall of refining capabilities, changes
in manufactures’ power and labor cost structure, changes in
the price of coal and changes in the price of resins made from
petrochemicals. The Group’'s risk management measures include
clearly stating the risk management strategies and mechanism
for the fluctuation of raw materials price in the relevant systems;
collecting information in relation to the fluctuation of raw
materials price and releasing such information internally through
an established channel; regularly reporting and analysing the
fluctuation of raw materials price; clearly defining the analysis
session for the increased risk of fluctuation of raw materials price;
analysing, reviewing, adjusting and improving the management
strategies for the risk of fluctuation of raw materials price.

The potential risks involved in the adjustments of policies in
relation to the economy and the industry arise from the risk of
the adjustment of urbanisation policies; risks of adjustments of
construction projects of significant water works including water
saving and water supplies; the risk of adjustment of real estate
policies. The Group's risk management measures include reviewing
the management strategies and mechanism for risks involved in the
adjustments of policies in relation to the economy and the industry;
collecting information in relation to changes in economic and
industry policies and releasing such information internally through
an established channel; reviewing the mechanism for monitoring
and collecting the information on tax laws and regulations that
affect the industry.
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MANAGEMENT OF INSIDE INFORMATION

The Group has formulated a set of program of continuing
obligations on information management and disclosure to formally
regulate the monitoring of inside information that arises during the
course of its current business development and has established
the practice of delivering such information to shareholders, the
media and analysts. When the Group handles the relevant matters,
it will comply with “Guidelines on Disclosure of Inside Information”
issued by Securities and Futures Commission and the related
provisions issued by regulatory organisations and the Group has
clearly stated that the unauthorised use of confidential or inside
information is prohibited. The Group will set up a system of
answering enquiries about the Group’s matters by external parties,
and will appoint and authorise the senior executives of the Group to
act as the Company’s spokesperson in response to enquiries on a
particular area.

WHISTLEBLOWING POLICY

The Group has formulated a “whistleblowing policy” whereby
employees can report any matters to the Chairman or the
Audit Committee secretly by sending electronic mails to the
designated address or by phone. Such matters may include
misconduct, irregular conduct or fraud regarding financial matters
and accounting practices without fear of being accused. Any
Shareholder or stakeholder can also report similar concerns in
writing or verbally in confidence to the Audit Committee.

THE SHAREHOLDERS'’ RIGHTS

CONVENING OF EXTRAORDINARY GENERAL MEETINGS AND
PUTTING FORWARD PROPOSALS AT SHAREHOLDERS' MEETING
There are no provisions allowing Shareholders to propose new
resolutions at the general meetings under the Cayman Islands
Companies Law (2013 Revision, as amended from time to time).
However, pursuant to the Articles, the Shareholder(s) may request
for the convening of extraordinary general meetings following the
procedures below:

° Any two or more Shareholder(s) or any one Shareholder which
is a recognised clearing house (or its nominee(s)) may request
for the convening of extraerdinary general meetings by written
requisition deposited at the principal office of the Company
in Hong Kong or, in the event the Company ceases to have
such a principal office, the registered office. The requisition
shall specify the object of the meeting and be signed by the
requisitionist(s), and such requisitionist(s) must hold as at the
date of deposit of the requisition not less than one-tenth of
the paid up capital of the Company which carries the right of
voting at the general meeting of the Company.
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THE SHAREHOLDERS'’ RIGHTS (Continued)

CONVENING OF EXTRAORDINARY GENERAL MEETINGS AND
PUTTING FORWARD PROPOSALS AT SHAREHOLDERS' MEETING
(Continued)

° The Board shall proceed to convene the extraordinary general
meeting within 21 days from the date of deposit of the
requisition.

° If the Board does not within 21 days from the date of deposit
of the requisition proceed duly to convene the meeting to be
held within a further 21 days, the requisitionist(s) themselves
or any of them representing more than one-half of the total
voting rights of all of them, may convene the extraordinary
general meeting in the same manner, as nearly as possible,
as that in which the meeting may be convened by the Board
provided that any meeting so convened shall not be held
after the expiration of three months from the date of deposit
of the requisition. All reasonable expenses incurred by the
requisitionist(s) as a result of the failure of the Board shall be
reimbursed to them by the Company.

° An extraordinary general meeting called for the passing of
a special resolution shall be called by not less than 21 days’
notice in writing and any other extraordinary general meeting
shall be called by not less than 14 days’ notice in writing. The
notice of the meeting shall specify the time, place, and agenda
of the meeting, particulars of the resolutions to be considered
and in the case of special business, the general nature of that
business.

° Detailed procedures for Shareholders to propose a person for
election as a director are available on the Company’s website.

PROCEDURES FOR DIRECTING THE SHAREHOLDERS’
ENQUIRIES TO THE BOARD

The Shareholders may put forward their enquiries about the
Company to the Board at the Company's principal place of business
in Hong Kong or by email or through the Company’s investor
relations whose contact details are provided in the “Corporate
Information” section of this report. In addition, the Shareholders
can contact Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited,
the Company’s branch share registrar, if they have any enquiries
about their shareholdings and entitlements to dividend.
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RELATIONSHIP WITH INVESTORS AND THE
SHAREHOLDERS

The Company endeavours to maintain a high level of transparency
in communication with the Shareholders and investors in general.
Communication between the Company and the Shareholders is
conducted through various channels, including interim and annual
reports, information published on the websites of the Stock
Exchange and the Company and general meetings. The Company
encourages the Shareholders to attend the Company’s general
meetings. The Group's financial and other information is also
published on the website of the Stock Exchange (www.hkexnews.hk)
and the website of the Company (www.lesso.com).

The Company’s senior management endeavours to maintain an
open dialogue channel with the investment sector to ensure they
have a thorough understanding of the Company and its operations
and strategies. The Company has emphasised the importance of
the function of investor relations, engaged a dedicated independent
third party to maintain investor relations and conduct investor/
analyst meetings irregularly and led investors and analysts to visit
its plants.

As regards investor relations, the Group will actively conduct
activities related to investor relations in the future to strengthen
its corporate responsibility so that global investors can have
an adequate knowledge and understanding of the Company’s
operating strategy, financial performance and development
prospects. The Company will actively develop and maintain close
relationship with investors, analysts and media to achieve sound
investor relations management.

The Company applies the principle of a quiet period in its investor
relations communications. During a quiet period, the Company does
not comment on market prospects or factors affecting business
and performance, nor does the Company engage in discussion on
events or trends related to the reporting period. The Company will
not initiate any meeting or conference call with public in which
these matters are discussed. A quiet period starts at 60 days or
30 days prior to the disclosure of annual results or interim results
respectively, and lasts until the announcement of the annual results
or the interim results.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCURENTS

During the year ended 31 December 2015, there was no change
to the memorandum and Articles of the Company. The latest
memorandum and Articles of the Company is available on the
websites of the Company and the Stock Exchange.

34 China Lesso Group Holdings Limited & BB Y8 &£ @12 R AR A T

HEREERRRNVER

RARB AN ER KN EREERER —KIE
BEBR AQRHERBRRERBASBRERE
- BRPHEERFERE  SRBIFERARR
WU ER - WEBRRERARE - AR ASERE T
FBARRRERE - BEASENTBREME
B IR B 2 BT 48 i (www.hkexnews.hk) R A A
48k (www.lesso.com) AT °

ARAEREEEBBNEARERRFAFNE A
R NERGBPHARBREXKEERA S
WE R - ARAB—HRFAREERENER
M RBEEMANBYE =T HEREERE I
ATERBITREEXDTMEEAES - TERE
EMDWTENLERSE

ARERBEEREL  ARAHEGBERREE
FERMAREE  RIEEEEME  BREZKIK
BEHARANKLER  UHERRLRERAS
AEBADNRBEER - AARBBEGERLE
HEREE - DT NER CHNETRE - &
HREEREER -

ARAREREEBEREBRIVGEIRA - 4
MR ARA ARSI ST EEB R
KRAMARERER TS EFREHAEEDN
ZRABHETHW - ARAE I GRRRFAR
ERIREZEFEENAREREFZSH - BAHD
AN FEREHTHXAERERNC0RK30AH
e EFEEXREATHRRERIE/L -

HEBERXH

REZE2015F12A31HIEFE  ARFERK
MEERAMETANES ARAZHEREK
4R ERR A A AR B MBS P ARG & R o



MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEEN WD

CORPORATE OVERVIEW

China Lesso is a leading large-scale industrial group, making
building materials and interior decoration products in mainland
China. The Group has 21 advanced production bases in 15
regions which support a nationwide sales network, providing a
comprehensive range of diverse products and quality sales services
for its customers.

Quality products, strong brand influence, advanced technologies
in research and development and a wide sales network have
reinforced the Group’s market leadership in southern China and
have allowed it to springboard into other local markets in the
country. In addition to steadily enhancing the core business of pipe
business, the Group has been fostering growth drivers by pursuing
the development of its new business of building materials and
interior decoration products, namely those of systems of doors
and windows, sanitary ware products and integrated kitchens. The
Group also initiated an e-commerce venture, its proprietary Lesso
Mall, which is a dedicated e-commerce platform for hardware,
electrical equipment and building material products in China.

MARKET OVERVIEW

China’s economic growth decelerated to a 25-year low of 6.9% in
2015, as the world's second-largest economy continues to shift
away from its manufacturing roots. The downward pressure on
growth is expected to persist into the coming years. Nevertheless,
China continued to press on with the construction of major water
conservation projects to ensure safe water supplies and reduce
pollution, thus sustaining demand for pipes and pipe fittings. Of the
172 water projects to be launched before 2020 under government
plan, 28 started in 2015 with new investments totalling RMB118.7
billion, a level rarely seen in history. Currently, 85 projects are
under construction with the investment amount surpassing
RMBB800 billion. Meanwhile, after the State Council unveiled the
“Action Plan for Water Pollution Prevention and Control” in April
2015 which called for a total investment of RMB4 trillion to RMB5
trillion, various provinces and cities, including Guangdong, Zhejiang,
Beijing, Nanjing, followed suit with their own plans to improve
water quality and curb water pollution. Such government initiatives
of immense scale will bolster demand for water pipes and pipe
fittings.
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MARKET OVERVIEW (Continued)

In April 2015, China embraced the idea of “"Sponge City"” which
seeks to help cities better absorb rain to improve the environment.
According to the government plan, 20 percent of cities shall have
modern sewer systems and infrastructure that allows for efficient
absorption of water by 2020, and the proportion shall rise to 80
percent by 2030. Presently, 16 urban districts across the country
have been designated as pilot sponge cities, and each of them
will receive up to RMB600 million for carrying out the plan in
the next three years. The total investment is expected to reach
RMB1.2 trillion during the “Thirteenth-five Year Plan”. Apart from
the sewer system, State Council also decided to spend between
RMB400 billion and RMB500 billion to build or refurbish the
urban underground pipeline network, a corridor-like underground
infrastructure for the supply of electricity, water, gas, heating and
telecommunications. The move aimed to expand the country’'s
capacity of supporting its urban population and to stimulate the
economy with more investment in infrastructure.

China’s ongoing urbanisation will also sustain certain demand for
pipes which are widely used in telecommunications, the supply
of power, heat, gas and water as well as drainage, the sewerage
system, the refuse disposal system and fire service, etc. In 2015,
China’s urbanisation rate reached 56.1%, and the urban resident
population reached 770 million. This ongoing urbanisation involves a
number of major civil infrastructure projects, including shantytown
renovation, construction of affordable housing and redevelopment
of dilapidated housing. This has also added new impetus to the pipe
and pipe fittings industry.

During the year, the Chinese government continued to pursue
the Belt and Road Initiative, a major strategic move to link China
with Europe through central and western Asia via the New Silk
Road Economic Belt and connect the country with southeast Asian
countries, Africa and Europe through the 21st Century Maritime Silk
Road. Construction of infrastructure will feature prominently in the
initiative, and will entaild@ colossal amount of spending not only on
pipe and pipe fittings but also on building materials, hardware and
electrical equipment.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (Continued)
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MARKET OVERVIEW (Continued)

On the other hand, growth in China's property market remained
constrained during the year. According to the National Bureau
of Statistics of China, the accumulated investment in the real
estate sector grew by 1% to RMB9.6 trillion in 2015, representing
a seven-year low in growth and a drastic deceleration from the
10.5% growth in 2014. The country’s unsold housing inventory hit
a historical high of 719 million square meters. Although the steady
progress in social security housing projects and increased market
penetration of pre-decorated flats still benefit the industries of
building materials and interior decoration products, the encouraging
development was overshadowed by the weak sentiment of the
property market.

BUSINESS REVIEW

China Lesso mainly operates three major businesses, featuring
business units, including plastic pipes and pipe fittings, building
materials and interior decoration products and Lesso Mall, an
e-commerce platform. During the year under review, the Group's
revenue grew by 3.0% to RMB15,264 million (2014: RMB14,823
million).

The table below sets out the breakdown of revenue by business
unit for 2015 and 2014
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Revenue % of total revenue
WA R A %
2015 2014
RMB million RMB million Change 2015 2014
ARBEERT AREKEBER L1
Plastic Pipes and BRIEBR
Pipe Fittings B 13,602 13,733 (1.0)% 89.1% 92.6%
Building Materials EMREEmSm
and Interior
Decoration
Products 816 903 (9.6) % 5.3% 6.1%
Lesso Mall 5B R UK 621 - N/A 4.1% =
Otherst* Hip# 225 187 20.3% 1.5% 1.3%
Total et 15,264 14,823 3.0% 100% 100%
# “Others” include businesses of construction, factoring services and others. # [Hi BIETE - RERBLEMELS -
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BUSINESS REVIEW (Continued)

As at 31 December 2015, the number of the Group's independent
and exclusive tier-one distributors increased to 2,130 all over the
country. Southern China remained as the Group’'s major market,
and the launch of its production base in Hainan province during the
year enhanced the Group's market penetration and consolidated
its market leadership there. Meanwhile, the Group is actively
expanding its business presence beyond southern China in the
country in order to drive its overall sales. During the year under
review, revenue from southern China and those from other regions
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in the country accounted for 59.7% and 40.3% respectively (2014:
58.2% and 41.8% respectively) of the Group's total revenue.

TREFIIREE2015F X 2014F WAL 1 [2 5

The table below sets out the breakdown of revenue by region for

2015 and 2014: DEEE ¢
Revenue % of total revenue
N {E#E WA %
2015 2014
RMB million RMB million Change 2015 2014
Region* Hf 5 # AREEERT ARBEST 25
Southern China HERY 9,112 8,631 5.6% 59.7% 58.2%
Southwestern China 7 1,386 1,445 (4.0) % 9.1% 9.7%
Central China A 1,576 1,576 - 10.3% 10.6%
Eastern China FEH 839 734 14.3% 5.5% 5.0%
Northern China ESlg 976 1,018 (4.1)% 6.4% 6.9%
Northwestern China 74t 601 575 4.6% 3.9% 3.9%
Northeastern China it 321 389 (17.6)% 2.1% 2.6%
Outside China REETRE)N 453 455 (0.3)% 3.0% 3.1%
Total 4AEt 15,264 14,823 3.0% 100.0% 100.0%
# Details of the scope of coverage of each region are set out in note 4 to financial ~ *# FhEAEEHE T ERN YRR TS -
statements.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (Continued)
BIRE 55w Mo ()

BUSINESS REVIEW (Continued) ¥ EEEE)

PLASTIC PIPES AND PIPE FITTINGS BUSINESS BREBEREHER

The plastic pipes and pipe fittings business remains a mainstay HFEHBBH T L EK AT BRI T EREHE
operation of China Lesso. The Group supplies various kinds of 7§ AEERHESAZENTESHES » LE
pipes and pipe fittings and comprehensive services which are  FEREK « HEKk - BHMHERB - A= -
applicable to such fields as water supply, drainage, power supply, 2 - #EMEFEEHEH2ERSE - RO E
telecommunications, gas transmission, agriculture, floor heating FRX @ BRHEBLREHEBERERBMLZIL A
and fire services. During the year under review, the plastic pipes 89.1% (20144 : 92.6%) °

and pipe fittings business contributed 89.1% of the Group's total

revenue (2014: 92.6%).

The table below sets out the breakdown of revenue from plastic TR JIARE E201655F R2014FBREBRE
pipes and pipe fittings business by product application for 2015 and  HEKWAILE RERZI DB -

2014:
Revenue % of revenue
'ON EBA %
2015 2014
RMB million RMB million Change 2015 2014
ARBERT AREKRST 2E
Water Supply ok 5,453 5,315 2.6% 40.1% 38.7%
Drainage HEK 5,193 5,217 (0.5)% 38.2% 38.0%
Power supply and B rE R
telecommunications 2,190 2,344 (6.6) % 16.1% 17.1%
Gas Transmission  ¥AREX 248 242 2.5% 1.8% 1.8%
Others* Hih? 518 615 (15.7)% 3.8% 4.4%
Total @t 13,602 13,733 (1.0)% 100.0% 100.0%
u “Others” include agricultural applications, floor heating and fire services. # [Efh B 3EEA - HBE NOEM ©
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (Continued)
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BUSINESS REVIEW (Continued)

PLASTIC PIPES AND PIPE FITTINGS BUSINESS (Continued)

In the year of 2015, both sales volume and revenue of the plastic
pipes and pipe fittings business achieved steady development
notwithstanding the weak market as the Group continued to take
advantage of the increase in investment in infrastructure projects.

The table below sets out the breakdown of average selling price,
sales volume, and revenue from plastic pipes and pipe fittings
business by product material for 2015 and 2014

¥ EEEE)
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Average selling price Sales volume Revenue
THER #E WA
2015 2014 2015 2014 2015 2014
RMB RMB Change Tonne Tonne Change RMB million RMB million Change
AR ARE £5 L} g £5 \R¥EER A\RKEBEL £5
PVC products # PVCERH 112 7833 9.2)% 1,240,900 1125911 10.2% 8,825 8819 0.1%
Non-PVC products © FPVCER® 15,868 16,073 (1.3% 301,054 305,725 (1.5)% 41 4914 (2.8)%
Total b 8,821 9,593 8.0)% 1541954 1,431,636 7.7% 13,602 13,733 (1.0)%
Note: B3
(a) “PVC" refers to material used in the manufacture of plastic pipes and pipe  (a) [PVClEE—EAREESRBAE REEBREERE
fittings with high mechanical strength and hardness. HRIMI RS ©
(b) “Non-PVC" plastic pipes and pipe fittings mainly refer to those made of PE or  (b) [FEPVC BRI B E KRB+ Z R PESPP-RH ©

PP-R.

In terms of product materials, sales volume of PVC products
increased by 10.2% to 1,240,900 tonnes while that of non-PVC
products decreased by 1.5% to 301,054 tonnes (2014: 1,125,911
tonnes of PVC products and 305,725 tonnes of non-PVC products
were sold). Revenue from sales of PVC products amounted to
RMB8,825 million (2014: RMB8,819 million), representing an
increase of 0.1% and accounting for 64.9% (2014: 64.2%) of the
revenue of the plastic pipes and pipe fittings business.

As the Group priced its products on a cost-plus basis, the ongoing
decline in raw material costs led to decreases in the average selling
prices of both PVC and no,n-P\{C products. During the year under
review, the average cost ofiplastic pipes and pipe fittings decreased
by 9.3% to RMB6,369 per tonne (2014: RMB7,023 per tonne),
while the average selling price dropped to RMB8,821 per tonne
(2014: RMB9,593 per tonne).

40

China Lesso Group Holdings Limited & BB Y8 &£ @12 R AR A T

EmYHTE PV CERMBEEEMNI02% =
1,240,900 - MIEPVCE R E B T1.5%
Z£301,054H8 (20144 : H RIEH 1,125,911
PVCE f & 305,726 FEPVCE G ) ° $HEPVCE
MW A B ARKESS. 2518 (20144F « AR
88.19187T) » AN EFH0.1% @ [EBHEBEBREH
EBWAZ64.9%(20145F:64.2%) °

MR AEBEREKNANKEEETERER
It - BB TR RM B A EHPYCHMIEPVCE
MAFHEETR - ROBEFE  BREERE
HEFHRATEIIREFTN A RES6,3697T
(20144 : FHEARK7,02370) © MFHEEE]
RSN AR¥S8,8217C (20145 « BHEARKE
9,5937T) °



MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (Continued)
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BUSINESS REVIEW (Continued)

PLASTIC PIPES AND PIPE FITTINGS BUSINESS (Continued)
Newly developed business of offshore cages for aquaculture
During the year, the Group has successfully launched a new
business of providing integrated products and one-stop services for
offshore cage aquaculture of finfish. With its better performance
in terms of strength and durability with high resistance to strong
winds and waves, the Group received positive feedback from
customers on its offshore cages. The Group has been sending new
cages for trial use and extended its product demonstration areas to
Shandong, Shanghai and Beijing during the year.

BUSINESS OF BUILDING MATERIALS AND INTERIOR
DECORATION PRODUCTS

Since 2012, the Group has been developing the business of building
materials and interior decoration products, which mainly provides
major property developers with various new types of integrated
building materials and interior decoration products, as well as
comprehensive installation solution to their residential property
projects. In the midst of the weak market sentiment, the projects
in which the Company was involved experienced slow-down
during the year. Therefore, recognised revenue from this business
amounted to RMB816 million (2014: RMB903 million), which
reduced as compared to that of previous year, accounting for 5.3%
(2014: 6.1%) of the Group’s total revenue. However, the Group
managed to win many orders during the year through improved
product offering and its close relationships with major property
developers.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (Continued)
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BUSINESS REVIEW (Continued)

LESSO MALL

To satisfy the demand of a wide range of distributors and
customers, the Group launched Lesso Mall, a diversified and
dedicated e-commerce platform with an online and offline business
model in March 2015. The warehouse in Wuhan has currently
been put into operation, laying a solid foundation for further
development. With continued investment in information technology
and logistics, enhanced customer services and more diverse
products including hardware, electrical equipment and building
materials, the introduction of Lesso Mall to the southern China
market has already generated a revenue of RMB621 million, with
registered members numbering 2,032. The Group will continue to
develop this new business in an orderly manner.

FACTORING BUSINESS

With an aim of boosting the Group's overall competitiveness
and diversifying its streams of revenue, the Group extended its
operations into the factoring business during the year under review.
Through such arrangement, the Group offers all-around financial
support to its existing customers and suppliers as well as quality
third-party clientele. The move aims to help clients meet their
immediate cash needs in order to effectively capitalise on business
opportunities.

From risk management perspective, the Group has a dedicated and
experienced credit team which is responsible for the evaluation
of customers’ credit rating, financial background and repayment
abilities. Management had set up credit limits for each customer
and management’s approval is required for any extension of credit
beyond the approval limits. The credit team is required to take
follow-up action where customers had defaulted on the repayment
of loans.

CAPITAL EXPENDITURE AND CAPACITY EXPANSION

The Group has been expanding its production capacity based on
its own pace of development and actual needs in consideration
of market demand. The4Group’s annual designed capacity for the
production of plastic pipes and pipe fittings further increased to 2.1
million tonnes at the end of the year (2014: 2.0 million tonnes).

The capital expenditure fo;r 2015 totalled approximately RMB1.66
billion, and was mainly used in expansion and automation of the
existing production bases/as well as the construction of the plant in
Shandong.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (Continued)
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STRATEGIES FOR THE FUTURE

In 2016, the market is expected to be challenging. According to
the Economy of China Analysis and Forecast 2016 published by the
Bureau of Scientific Research Management of Chinese Academy of
Social Sciences, the country’s economy has entered a new normal
state and its potential growth tends to decelerate. Slow growth in
global trade, weak external demand and slow growth in domestic
investment will continue to bring uncertainties to the country's
economy.

Although the market is constrained, the Group will still try
to capture the opportunities presented by the government'’s
preferential policy to grow its businesses. Leveraging its
integrated advantages such as a strong nationwide distribution
network, a renowned brand name, the high quality of its products
and comprehensive product offerings, the Group will seize
opportunities for development by implementing the following
strategies:

OPTIMISE PRODUCTION CAPACITY

The Group will continue to implement its five-year plan to fully
automate its production bases. This move will enhance product
quality control, cut down production time, and reduce human errors
while lowering labour costs, thus enhancing the overall production
efficiency. In addition, the Group's production base in Shandong
is expected to commence operation in the first half of 20186,
expanding the Group's total annual production capacity by 30,000
tonnes of products.

TAPPING POTENTIAL FOR ENHANCING BUSINESS
PERFORMANCE IN THE LONG TERM

The Group started to ship its offshore cages for aquaculture in
several districts in China, and will further extend the area for
product demonstration. As a pioneering producer in the market,
the Group believes that it will be able to tap the huge potential for
growth in this line of business by leveraging such advantages as the
durability of its products and government subsidies. The Group will
develop this business into a growth drive for enhancing the Group's
overall businesses in the long term.

KRR B

R2016% - EMMISHEBREELE - REFH
HEMBREMITE A M 20165 FREETLE
DITEIER) - ERKBEEAFTERE > MEBEEE
RBRWE - 2IREHERME - IMEIFRIES
REARKRER RS  SEES2EZEERT
ABIRE -

BEMHERZR  AEEDBBANLERTE
BHREROEBERER - BEEEMEZED
BAKHBEG  MNEmiE BEERREZERE

mABFHRAREY  ARESBREERNATRE
EERREREE
BILERE

AEEBEEESKRATHE  BEEEMWEEE
B AR EREER BELEERER
WA ANBHER  RSRELSIAA  HmMEeE
BEAEEE o WA AEEMLEEERETER
BR2016F EHFRE @ SAEEFE BERY
Jn3E WA

BRRERMRARBERANED

REE AR BB S E R E R B RERME
E—FEAEMRER - AREFESTELR
HER - BEHBEEEERNOMWAMERBA#
MEERY  BREZBEEBNENERE - A&
B ERZER  FERARERALAEENE
BEBHERSN -

Annual Report 2015 4§ 43



MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (Continued)
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STRATEGIES FOR THE FUTURE (Continued)

MAINTAIN DOMESTIC MARKET SHARE AND EXPLORE
OVERSEAS MARKETS

Although China’s economic recovery remained sluggish, the Group
will strive to maintain its market dominance by exploring further
the application areas of plastic pipes and pipe fittings. Meanwhile,
the Group will also seize opportunities to expand overseas markets
with its diverse product offerings and brand influence.

CAPITALISE ON THE BELT AND ROAD INITIATIVE THROUGH
LESSO MALL

The Group has started Lesso Mall, an e-commerce platform, and
will capitalise on the Belt and Road Initiative by exploring the
markets covered by this policy. It will do so by developing Lesso
Mall into an e-commerce platform for global sourcing of hardware,
electrical equipment and building materials, and by building up its
own brand for the international market.

CONCLUSION

As a manufacturer of the most comprehensive range of building
materials and interior decoration products in China, China Lesso is
confident about the prospect of its businesses of plastic pipes and
pipe fittings, building materials and interior decoration products
as well as Lesso Mall, its e-commerce business. Despite the
economic downturn in China, the Group will endeavour to maintain
its market share and fulfill its corporate mission to “Create a
Relaxing Life for Dwellers” by developing itself into a leading
global industrial group that makes building materials and interior
decoration products. It aims to provide more value-for-money
products that enable a comfortable and quality life at home for its
customers.

"
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (Continued)
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RESULTS PERFORMANCE

For the year ended 31 December 2015, the Group's revenue
increased by 3.0% year-on-year to RMB15,264 million (2014:
RMB14,823 million). Benefited from the saving on the cost of raw
materials, the gross profit rose by 3.6% to RMB3,938 million (2014:
RMB3,801 million), with gross profit margin up by 0.2 percentage
points to 25.8% (2014: 25.6%).

The Group's other expenses increased by 29.6% to RMB630
million (2014: RMB486 million) during the year under review
due to impairment of trade receivables of RMB44 million and
increase in foreign exchange losses of RMB108 million. EBITDA
was RMB2,653 million (2014: RMB2,520 million), representing an
increase of 5.3% year-on-year and the EBITDA ratio was 17.4%
(2014:17.0%) in 2015.

In 2015, the Group's finance costs significantly reduced by 62.5%
to RMB87 million (2014: RMB233 million). This was resulted from
there was no one-off premium and unamortised issuance expenses
arising from early redemption of the Senior Notes (2014: RMB93
million). In addition, the Group’s average interest rate for the year
was significantly lower than the 2014.

The Group's effective tax rate increased to 21.6% during the year
under review (2014: 16.6%). Profit before tax increased by 11.8%
year-on-year to RMB2,065 million (2014: RMB1,847 million) while
profit attributable to the owners of the Company increased by 4.3%
to RMB1,621 million (2014: RMB1,554 million). Basic earnings
per share increased by 4.0% year-on-year to RMB0.52 (2014:
RMBO0.50).

As a token of gratitude to the Shareholders for their support in the
past year, the Board proposed payment of final dividend of HK13
cents per share for the year ended 31 December 2015 (2014: HK13
cents).
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (Continued)
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FINANCIAL POSITION

The Group continued to adopt prudent financial policies. Finance,
fund utilisation and fund raising activities of the Group are subject
to effective centralised management and supervision. The Group
keeps reasonable gearing level and adequate liquidity.

As at 31 December 2015, the Group had total debts (i.e. total
borrowings) of approximately RMB3,241 million, of which 79.3%
was denominated in US dollar, 18.2% was denominated in
HK dollar, 1.9% was denominated in Thai Baht and 0.6% was
denominated in Renminbi. Other than Thai Baht interest-free loans
from non-controlling interests of RMB62 million, the Group's
borrowings are subject to effective interest rates ranging from
1.18% to 8.90% per annum with maturity periods ranging from
within one year to three years.

As at 31 December 2015, the Group's current assets and current
liabilities were approximately RMB8,232 million and RMB4,378
million respectively. The Group's Current Ratio decreased to 1.88
from 1.92 as at 31 December 2014, while the Quick Ratio increased
to 1.38 from 1.34 as at 31 December 2014. The Group’s total equity
increased to approximately RMB9,865 million. The Group’s Gearing
Ratio stood at a healthy level of 24.7%.

With cash and bank deposits, including restricted cash, of
approximately RMB3,894 million as well as unutilised banking
facilities, the Board considers that the Group has sufficient working
capital for its operation and future development.

The Group had no material exposure to foreign exchange fluctuation
other than borrowings denominated in US dollar, HK dollar and
Thai Baht. No hedging has been arranged on the above-mentioned
exposure.

CHARGE ON ASSETS

As at 31 December 2015, certain of the Group's available-for-
sale investments with an aggregate net carrying amount of
approximately RMB35 million were pledged to a bank to secure the
banking facility and this banking facility has not been utilised.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (Continued)
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CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

As at 31 December 2015, the Group did not have any significant
contingent liabilities.

HUMAN RESOURCES

As at 31 December 2015, the Group employed a total of
approximately 8,000 employees including directors. Total staff
costs were RMB624 million during the year. The Group ensures
that the remuneration packages for employees are determined
based on their work performance, professional experience and the
prevailing industry practice. Discretionary year-end bonus may be
paid to employees based on individual performance. Other benefits
to employees include medical insurance, retirement scheme and
training programmes.

CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY

ENVIRONMENT

China Lesso has been committed to protecting the environment.
The Group adheres to the principles of “safe, healthy, energy
efficient and non-toxic” in product design and production
processes. During the year under review, the Group has further
strengthened the implementation of its environmental protection
and energy conservation targets, continuing the process of
technological transformation and equipment upgrades, and the
research and development of environmental friendly products.
Besides, the first phase of China Lesso’s solar photovoltaic power
generation system, with an installed capacity of 10 megawatts
(MW) and an expected annual average generation capacity of up to
11 million kilowatt hour (kWh), was completed and started power
generation during the year under review.

The Group complies with the national environmental laws
and regulations in China. These include regulations regarding
air pollution, noise emission and solid waste discharge. The
environmental management and compliance team coordinates with
the legal department to keep abreast of the latest development
of the compliance standards, environmental law and regulations.
During the year under review, the Group has not been reprimanded
to pay significant fines or received non-monetary sanctions for any
non-compliance with environmental laws or regulations.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (Continued)
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CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY (Continued)

EMPLOYEE

China Lesso recognises employees as one of its most important
assets. The Group's future success is dependent on its ability
to attract, retain and motivate highly skilled and experienced
personnel. The Group is committed to employee development and
has implemented various programmes for this purpose, including
training programmes designed to enhance employees’ industrial
and technical skills and to increase their knowledge of work safety
standards. The Group also cares about employee health and safety.
The Group provides induction safety training for new recruits,
organises regular health and safety lectures for existing employees,
and provides regular physical examinations for employees that
experience prolonged exposure to noise, dust and dangerous gases
as part of their work. During the year under review, the Group
has not experienced any significant disputes with employees or
disruptions in operations due to labour dispute.

CUSTOMER AND SUPPLIER

China Lesso has established stable partnerships with a good
number of suppliers over the years. The Group has a Supplier
Management Code and conducts periodic performance evaluation
of supplies. In the aspect of customer services, the Group has
always upheld the “market-oriented, customer-centred” principle.
The Group regularly performs customer and distributor satisfaction
surveys and is committed to continuously improving customer
satisfaction rate and maintaining its position as an industry leader.

COMMUNITY

China Lesso has always been committed to enhancing its
involvement and contribution to the community, especially the
communities and areas where the Group is present. The Group
is active in community service projects and makes charitable
contributions to support local education and vulnerable groups.
In addition to making donations, the Group also encourages
employees of all levels to serve the community and participate in
volunteering activities.
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT
EEEHRE

Set out below are the report presented by the Board together with
the Group’s audited consolidated financial statements for the year
ended 31 December 2015.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES AND BUSINESS REVIEW

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. The
activities of the principal subsidiaries and a joint venture are
set out in notes 39 and 15 respectively to financial statements.
Further discussion and analysis of these activities, including a
discussion of the principal risk and uncertainties facing the group
and an indication of likely future developments in the Group's
business, can be found in the “Chairman’s Statement”, “Corporate
Governance Report” and “Management Discussion and Analysis”.
This discussion forms part of the Directors’ Report.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The Group's profit for the year ended 31 December 2015 and the
Group's financial position at that date are set out in the financial
statements on pages 66 to 154.

The Board recommended the payment of a final dividend of
HK13 cents per share for the year ended 31 December 2015 (the
“Proposed Final Dividend”) to the Shareholders whose names
appear on the register of members of the Company on Monday, 23
May 2016, subject to the Shareholders’ approval at the forthcoming
annual general meeting of the Company to be held on Friday,
13 May 2016 (the “2016 AGM"). It is expected that the Proposed
Final Dividend will be paid on Friday, 27 May 2016.

CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

(A) FOR DETERMINING THE ENTITLEMENT TO ATTEND AND
VOTE AT THE 2016 AGM
The register of members of the Company will be closed
from Tuesday, 10 May 2016 to Friday, 13 May 2016, both
dates inclusive, during this period no transfer of shares of
the Company will be registered. In order to be eligible to
attend and vote at the 2016 AGM, unregistered holders
of shares of the Company should ensure that all transfer
forms accompanied by the relevant share certificates must
be lodged with the Company’s branch share registrar,
Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited, at
Shops 1712-1716, 17th Floor, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen's
Road East, Wanchai, Hong Kong, for registration no later than
4:30 p.m. on Monday, 9 May 2016.
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CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS (Continued)

(B) FOR DETERMINING THE ENTITLEMENT TO THE PROPOSED
FINAL DIVIDEND
The register of members of the Company will be closed
from Thursday, 19 May 2016 to Monday, 23 May 2016, both
dates inclusive, during this period no transfer of shares of
the Company will be registered. In order to be eligible to
receive the Proposed Final Dividend, unregistered holders
of shares of the Company should ensure that all transfer
forms accompanied by the relevant share certificates must
be lodged with the Company’'s branch share registrar,
Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited, at
Shops 1712-1716, 17th Floor, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s
Road East, Wanchai, Hong Kong, for registration no later than
4:30 p.m. on Wednesday, 18 May 2016.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Principal corporate governance practices adopted by the Company
are set out in the Corporate Governance Report on pages 12 to 34.

FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the Group’s results, assets and liabilities for the
past five financial years, as extracted from audited consolidated
financial statements and restated/reclassified as appropriate, is
set out on page 3. The summary does not form part of the audited
consolidated financial statements.

PROPERTIES

Particulars of the Group’s major properties and property interests
are set out on page 155.

SHARE CAPITAL

The details of the chandes in the Company's share capital during
the year are set out in note 28 to financial statements.

"
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DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVE

As at 31 December 2015, the Company’s reserves available
for distribution, calculated in accordance with the Companies
Law, Cap 22 (Law 3 of 1961, as consolidated and revised) of the
Cayman Islands, amounted to RMB2,392 million (2014: RMB2,345
million). The amount of RMB1,923 million (2014: RMB1,923
million) represented the Company’s share premium which may be
distributable provided that immediately following the date on which
the dividend is proposed to be distributed, the Company will be
in a position to pay off its debts as and when they fall due in the
ordinary course of business.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

For the year ended 31 December 2015, the total turnover
attributable to the Group's five largest customers was less than
30% of the Group's total turnover. The total purchase attributable
to the Group's five largest suppliers was 31% of the Group's total
purchases and the purchases from the largest supplier included
therein amounted to 12%.

At no time during the year did the directors, their associates or any
Shareholder (which to the knowledge of the directors own more
than 5% of the Company's issued share capital) have any beneficial
interests in these suppliers or customers referred to above.

CHARITABLE DONATIONS

During the year, the Group's charitable donations were
approximately RMB1.28 million (2014: RMB3.57 million).

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF LISTED
SECURITIES

For the year ended 31 December 2015, the Company or any of its
subsidiaries did not purchase, sell or redeem any of the Company's
listed securities.

ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES

The details of acquisition of subsidiaries are set out in note 32 to
financial statements.
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DIRECTORS

Directors in office during the year and up to the date of this report
are as follows:

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Wong Luen Hei (Chairman)
Mr. Zuo Manlun (Chief executive)
Ms. Zuo Xiaoping

Mr. Lai Zhigiang

Mr. Kong Zhaocong

Mr. Chen Guonan

Dr. Lin Shaoquan

Mr. Huang Guirong

Mr. Luo Jianfeng

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR
Mr. Lin Dewei

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
Mr. Fung Pui Cheung

Mr. Wong Kwok Ho Jonathan

Mr. Cheung Man Yu

Ms. Lan Fang (appointed with effect from 1 January 2015)
Dr. Tao Zhigang (appointed with effect from 1 September 2015)
Mr. Gao Lixin (resigned with effect from 1 January 2015)

Dr. Bai Chongen  (resigned with effect from 1 September 2015)
Pursuant to Article 16.2 of the articles of association of the
Company, Dr. Tao Zhigang shall retire from office at the 2016 AGM
and, being eligible, offer himself for re-election.

Pursuant to Article 16.18 of the articles of association of the
Company, Mr. Wong Luen Hei, Mr. Kong Zhaocong, Dr. Lin
Shaoquan, Mr. Fung Pui Cheung and Mr. Wong Kwok Ho Jonathan
are subject to retirement by rotation at the 2016 AGM and, being
eligible, offer themselves for re-election.

Biographical details of directors are set out on pages 6 to 10.

DIRECTORS® SERVIQE QONTRACTS

No director proposed for re-election at the 2016 AGM has a
service contract which is not determinable by the Group within
one year without payment of compensation (other than statutory
compensation).
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S INTERESTS
AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES, UNDERLYING
SHARES AND DEBENTURES

As at 31 December 2015, the interests and short positions of the
directors and the chief executive of the Company in the shares,
underlying shares and debentures of the Company or any of its
associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of SFO) as
recorded in the register to be kept by the Company pursuant to
section 352 of the SFO or as otherwise notified to the Company and
the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code were as follows:

EERTHARRKEG - HEAROKRE
EENESRIXR

R2015F12831H * KRB EERITEHEARR
AN R SR EAT A AR B A B (3B 55 AR E K I B XV
HAMEE)NRG - HEROREEETRESR
BIFES M E GO EIB2EBR AR T FEWN
Erffaaiss  IRBEZETRABMAARAD AR
BT RE s ROR BT ¢

Number and capacity of shares of the Company interested®

FRAREROBEREES

Interests of

Percentage of
the issued share

Beneficial Interests of controlled capital of
Name owner Spouse corporation Total the Company
HADTDET
®H BREBA BEER SEEEER ‘g BRANE D
Wong Luen Hei - 2,308,000 (L)@ 2,118,485,000 (L)® 2,120,793,000 (L) 68.18%
EhE
Zuo Xiaoping 2,308,000 (L)@ 2,118,485,000 (L) - 2,120,793,000 (L) 68.18%
Zuo Manlun 3,842,000 (L) = - 3,842,000 (L) 0.12%
ot
Luo Jianfeng 1,927,000 (L) S - 1,927,000 (L) 0.06%
Note: BT
(@) The letter “L" denotes the person’s long position in such securities. (a) FEILIBEZALRZEESFNTR
(b)  These shares of the Company are held by New Fortune, which was wholly- (b))  R2015F12A31H * ZZARFAROHANE LM

owned by Mr. Wong Luen Hei (“Mr. Wong") as at 31 December 2015. Ms.
Zuo Xiaoping is the spouse of Mr. Wong, and therefore Ms. Zuo Xiaoping is
deemed to be interested in all the shares of the Company in which Mr. Wong is
interested by virtue of the SFO.

(c) Ms. Zuo Xiaoping is directly holding 2,308,000 shares of the Company.
Mr. Wong is the spouse of Ms. Zuo Xiaoping, and therefore Mr. Wong is
deemed to be interested in all the shares of the Company in which Ms. Zuo
Xiaoping is interested by virtue of the SFO.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2015, none of the
directors, chief executive of the Company had any interests or short
positions in any shares, underlying shares and debentures of the
Company or any of its associated corporations that was required to
be recorded pursuant to section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the
Model Code.
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INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS OF OTHER
SHAREHOLDERS PURSUANT TO SFO

As at 31 December 2015, the following persons (other than a
director or chief executive of the Company) had interests or short
positions in the shares or underlying shares of the Company as
recorded in the register required to be kept under section 336 of the
SFO:

Number of issued

%

BREIFRBERAAEMBRENERZR
P

M2016F 12 A31H - RARR D KABREKRG
PHRBEREZSFRIAEKOIFI6KEATFED
TP EmERAREMALT(RARAES
MATHBEBRIN AT

Percentage of the
issued share capital

Name of Shareholder Capacity ordinary shares held® of the Company
BFENE 1T HERATERT

IRER 5B 54 LiEREA N R
New Fortune Beneficial owner® 2,118,485,000 (L) 68.11%
NEE EmEA AP

Note: B3 -

(a) The letter “L" denotes the person’s long position in such securities. (a) FELIEZATRZEESNITAE

(b) As at 31 December 2015, Mr. Wong was the ultimate beneficial owner of New  (b) M2016F12A31H  EXE AT EEZRRERER

Fortune. Under Part XV of the SFO, Mr. Wong was deemed to have an interest
in these shares, as disclosed in the section headed “Directors’ and Chief
Executive's Interests and Short Positions in Shares, Underlying Shares and
Debentures” above.

The above shares were the same shares as set out under the
section headed "Directors’ and Chief Executive's Interests and
Short Positions in Shares, Underlying Shares and Debentures”
above. Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2015, the
directors of the Company were not aware of any person or
corporation (other than the directors and chief executive of the
Company) who had any interests or short positions in any shares
or underlying shares of the Company as recorded in the register
required to be kept under section 336 of the SFO.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

A share option scheme (the “Share Option Scheme”) was
conditionally approved by resolutions of the Shareholders on 14
May 2010 (the “Adoption Date™) and the summary of terms of such
Share Option Scheme are disclosed in the Company’s prospectus
dated 9 June 2010. No share obtions have been granted, under the
Share Option Scheme since its-adoption.
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Continued)

Eligible participants of the Share Option Scheme (“Eligible
Persons”) include (a) any executive director of, manager of, or
other employee holding an executive, managerial, supervisory or
similar position in any member of the Group, any full-time or part-
time employee, or a person for the time being seconded to work
full-time or part-time for any member of the Group; (b) a director or
proposed director (including an independent non-executive director)
of any member of the Group; (c) a direct or indirect shareholder of
any member of the Group; (d) a supplier of goods or services to any
member of the Group; (e) a customer, consultant, business or joint
venture partner, franchisee, contractor, agent or representative
of any member of the Group; (f) a person or entity that provides
design, research, development or other support or any advisory,
consultancy, professional or other services to any member of the
Group; and (g) an associate of any of the persons referred to in
paragraphs (a) to (c) above.

The Share Option Scheme shall be valid and effective for a period of
10 years commencing on the Adoption Date. An offer of the grant
of a share option shall remain open for acceptance by the Eligible
Person concerned for a period of 28 days from the date of the
Board approving the grant of the share options (the “Offer Date”)
provided that no such grant of an option may be accepted after
the expiry of the effective period of the Share Option Scheme. An
option shall be deemed to have been granted and accepted by the
Eligible Person and to have taken effect when the duplicate offer
letter comprising acceptance of the offer of the Option duly signed
by the grantee together with a remittance in favour of the Company
of HK$1 by way of consideration for the grant thereof is received by
the Company on or before the date upon which an offer of an option
must be accepted by the relevant Eligible Person, being a date not
later than 28 days after the Offer Date. Such remittance shall in no
circumstances be refundable.

DIRECTORS’ INTEREST IN CONTRACTS OF
SIGNIFICANCE

Save as disclosed under paragraph headed “Connected
Transactions”, no transaction, arrangement or contract of
significance to which the Company, its holding company and any of
its subsidiaries was a party and in which a director of the Company
or an entity connected with him had a material interest, whether
directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at any time
during the year.
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COMPLIANCE AND ENFORCEMENT OF THE NON-
COMPETE UNDERTAKINGS FROM CONTROLLING
SHAREHOLDER

None of the directors or substantial shareholder of the Company
or any of their respective associates has engaged in any business
that competes or may compete with the business of the Group.
The controlling Shareholder being New Fortune (the “Controlling
Shareholder”) has entered into a deed of non-competition in favour
of the Group with Mr. Wong Luen Hei dated 14 May 2010 (the
“Deed of Non-Competition”).

The directors are of the view that the Group’s measures adopted
by the Company in respect of the enforceability of the Deed of
Non-Competition are adequate to safeguard the effectiveness
of the non-competition undertakings. The independent non-
executive directors have reviewed the compliance of the Deed
of Non-Competition, including any potential conflicts of interest
and competition arising from the taking up by the Controlling
Shareholder of opportunities rejected by the Group pursuant to
the Deed of Non-Competition. Based on the confirmation from the
Controlling Shareholder, the independent non-executive directors
are of the view that the Deed of Non-Competition has been
complied with and has been effectively enforced.

DISCLOSURE PURSUANT TO RULES 13.18 AND
13.21 OF THE LISTING RULES

On 3 March 2014, the Company as borrower entered into a facility
agreement (the “Facility Agreement |”) in relation to a syndicated
term loan facility in the amount of US$135 million at an interest rate
of LIBOR plus 2.00% per annum with, among others, Taipei Fubon
Commercial Bank Co., Ltd. and CTBC Bank Co., Ltd. as mandated
lead arrangers, and a syndicate of nine lenders, for the purpose of
refinancing the Group’s existing financial indebtedness. The loan
made thereunder is repayable 36 months after the same has been
made.

On 26 June 2014, the Cbmpany as borrower entered into a facility
agreement (the “Facility Agreement I1”) in relation to a syndicated
term loan facility in the amount of US$155 million at an interest rate
of LIBOR plus 2.20% per annum with a syndicate of three lenders,
independent licensed banks in Hong Kong, for general corporate
requirements (including the refinancing of the Group's existing
financial indebtedness). The loan made thereunder is repayable 42
months after the same has been made.
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DIRECTORS" REPORT (Continued)
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DISCLOSURE PURSUANT TO RULES 13.18 AND
13.21 OF THE LISTING RULES (Continued)

Pursuant to the Facility Agreement | and Facility Agreement
Il (collectively the "Facility Agreements”), save for additional
requirement that Mr. Wong Luen Hei and his family (collectively,
the “"Wong Family”) shall remain to have effective management
control over the Company set out in the Facility Agreement
|, the Facility Agreements require that the Wong Family shall
collectively maintain, directly or indirectly, at least 55% of beneficial
shareholding interest in the issued share capital of the Company,
carrying at least 55% of the voting rights, free from any security.
Otherwise, a lender shall not be obliged to fund the loans made
under the Facility Agreements, and the total commitments under
the Facility Agreements may be liable to be cancelled and the
outstanding loans with interest and all other amounts accrued
under the Facility Agreements or other related financial documents
may be due and payable to the lenders immediately.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

Certain of the related party transactions as disclosed in note 36
to financial statements also constitute connected transactions
or continuing connected transactions within the meaning of the
Listing Rules and satisfied relevant disclosure requirements
thereof. Details of the non-exempt connected transactions or
continuing connected transactions are summarised below:

(A) RENTAL AND UTILITIES EXPENSES

Background: On 30 December 2014, Guangdong
Lesso Technology (the “Lessee”) entered
into lease agreement (the “Lease”)
with Guangdong Liansu Machinery (the
“Lessor”) whereby the Lessor leased its
certain plants erected on Lot G03-2-1, Daba
Industrial Estate of Longjiang Community
Residents’ Committee, Longjiang Town,
Shunde District, Foshan City, the PRC to
the Group for use as production facilities.

BELETHRIE13.18E R E13.211
EH BV E (|)
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

(A)

58

RENTAL AND UTILITIES EXPENSES (Continued)

Nature of transactions:

Terms:

Annual Cap
under Lease
agreement:

Annual Cap
under Utilities
Arrangement:

Total consideration
for the year:

Under the Lease, the Lessee shall bear all
the third party costs, including electricity
and water charges. Since the related
utilities costs are charged by the relevant
government authorities on the Lessor,
the Lessee will reimburse the Lessor for
the same amount of utilities costs paid by
the Lessor (the “Utilities Arrangement”).
For further details, please refer to the
announcement made by the Company on
30 December 2014.

Particulars of the agreements are disclosed
below as required under the Listing Rules:

Rental expenses paid to the Lessor.

Reimbursement of utilities costs charged
by the relevant government authorities on
the Lessor from the Lessee.

The Lease is for 36 months commencing
on 1 January 2015 and expiring on 31
December 2017. The related rents payable
by the Lessee to the Lessor is RMB368,419
per month.

The reimbursable amount of utilities costs
was equal to the amount charged by the
relevant government authorities on the
Lessor.

RMB4.4 million

RMB14 million (for the year ended
31 December 2015)
RMB16 million (for the year ending
31 becember 2016)
RMB18 million (for the year ending
31 December 2017)

RMB4.4 million (Lease agreement)
RMB8.3 million (Utilities Arrangement)
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DIRECTORS" REPORT (Continued)
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

(B)

PURCHASE OF MANUFACTURING EQUIPMENT

Background:

Nature of transactions:

Terms:

Annual Cap:

Total consideration for
the year:

On 30 December 2014, the Company
entered into a master equipment purchase
agreement (the “Framework Agreement”)
with Guangdong Liansu Machinery for 3
years commencing from 1 January 2015
and ending on 31 December 2017. For
details, please refer to the announcement
made by the Company on 30 December
2014.

Particulars of the Framework Agreement
are disclosed below as required under the
Listing Rules:

Purchase of manufacturing equipment from
Guangdong Liansu Machinery.

The purchase price to be agreed between
the parties which shall not exceed any
quotation obtainable by the Group from
independent third parties.

RMB120 million (for the year ended 31
December 2015); RMB130 million (for
the year ending 31 December 2016); and
RMB140 million (for the year ending 31
December 2017)

RMB77.3 million

BEERS (&)
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

(C)
Background:

Nature of transactions:

Terms:

Annual Cap:

Total consideration for
the year:

60

PURCHASE OF ELECTRONIC ACCESSORIES

On 30 December 2014, the Company
entered into the original design
manufacturing (the “ODM") co-operation
agreement with Guangdong Liansu Electric
in relation to the ODM production co-
operation as regards manufacturing of
electronic accessories by Guangdong
Liansu Electric for the Group for 3 years
commencing from 1 January 2015 and
ending on 31 December 2017. For details,
please refer to the announcement made by
the Company on 30 December 2014.

Particulars of the agreement are disclosed
below as required under the Listing Rules:

Purchase of electronic accessories from
Guangdong Liansu Electric.

The purchase price to be agreed between
the parties which shall not exceed any
quotation obtainable by the Group from
independent third parties.

RMB20 million (for the year ended 31
December 2015); RMB30 million (for the
year ending 31 December 2016); and
RMB40 million (for the year ending 31
December 2017)

RMBO0.4 million
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DIRECTORS" REPORT (Continued)
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

(D)
Background:

Nature of transactions:

Terms:

Annual Cap:

Total factoring facility
principal utilised for
the year:

FACTORING SERVICES

On 8 December 2015, Shenzhen Qianhai
Lesso entered into the master factoring
agreement with Guangdong Liansu Electric,
pursuant to which Shenzhen Qianhai
Lesso shall provide Guangdong Liansu
Electric with factoring facilities of not
exceeding RMB200 million. The term of the
agreement is one year, taking effect from 8
December 2015 to 7 December 2016. For
details, please refer to the announcement
made by the Company on 8 December
2015.

Particulars of the agreement are disclosed
below as required under the Listing Rule:

Provision of factoring services to Guangdong
Liansu Electric.

The factoring amount carries monthly
interest rate of 0.3625% plus monthly
service fee of 0.6375% of each individual
factoring facility.

Factoring facility principal amount of not
exceeding RMB200 million.

RMB45 million.

Details of the handling fee income and interest income from
factoring services are disclosed in note 36 to financial statements.
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

The Company has followed the pricing policies and guidelines when
determining the price and terms of the connected transactions
during the year. The Company confirms that it has complied with
the disclosure requirements in accordance with chapter 14A of the
Listing Rules.

The independent non-executive directors have, for the purpose of
Rule 14A.55 of the Listing Rules, reviewed all continuing connected
transactions and have confirmed that all continuing connected
transactions have been entered into by the Group (i) in the ordinary
and usual course of its business; (i) on normal commercial terms;
and (iii) in accordance with the terms of the agreements governing
such transactions that are fair and reasonable and in the interests of
the Shareholders as a whole.

The Company’'s auditor was engaged to report on the Group's
continuing connected transactions in accordance with Hong
Kong Standard on Assurance Engagements 3000 “Assurance
Engagements Other Than Audits or Reviews of Historical Financial
Information”, and with reference to Practice Note 740 “Auditor’s
Letter on Continuing Connected Transactions under the Hong
Kong Listing Rules” issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants. The Company's auditor issued an unqualified
letter containing his findings and conclusions in respect of the
transactions disclosed above in accordance with Rule 14A.56 of the
Listing Rules. The Company provided a copy of the said letter to the
Stock Exchange.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

The details of the related party transactions are set out in note 36 to
financial statements.

TAX RELIEF AND EXEMPTION

The directors are notdaware of any tax relief and exemption
available to the Shareholders by reason of their holding the
Company’s securities.

PRE-EMPTIVE.RIGHTS | :

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s
articles of association or the laws of Cayman Islands, which would
oblige the Company to offer new shares on a pro-rata basis to
existing Shareholders.
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DIRECTORS" REPORT (Continued)
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PUBLIC FLOAT PNBERE

Based on the publicly available information obtained by the #HRIEBEARATUAFGEEMENELN RIBEEZE
Company and to the best knowledge of the directors, as at the 41+ RANIRERE - KRB —EH 4 R AIA
date of this report, the Company has maintained the public float ZIBAEIAREFIKE

stipulated in the Listing Rules.

AUDITOR BB ED
A resolution will be submitted to the 2016 AGM to re- appoint Ernst ~ ANA T R2016ERFBREARED HIE2ARZER -
& Young as auditor of the Company. IABREZ2 K 2 5T RN BT AN A Bl BUZELAD -
By order of the Board REESH
Zuo Manlun TR FESR
Chief Executive and Director Einfm
Hong Kong, 18 March 2016 &% 0 2016%3A18H
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT
B 2 AR E

EY::

To the shareholders of China Lesso Group Holdings Limited
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of China
Lesso Group Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
set out on pages 66 to 154, which comprise the consolidated
statement of financial position as at 31 December 2015, and the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income, the consolidated statement of changes in equity and the
consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and
a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory
information.

DIRECTORS’" RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued
by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance,
and for such internal control as the directors determine is necessary
to enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

AUDITORS’ RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated
financial statements based on our audit. Our report is made solely
to youy as a body, and for no other purpose. We do not assume
responsibility towards or,accept liability to any other person for the
contents of this report:

We conducted our audit in-accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing issued by the EHoEn;g, Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. Those standards require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements are
free from material misstatement.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS" REPORT (Continued)

B AZ BN RS (@)

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence
about the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditors’
judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments,
the auditors consider internal control relevant to the entity's
preparation of consolidated financial statements that give a
true and fair view in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal
control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates made by the directors, as well as evaluating the overall
presentation of the consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

OPINION

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a
true and fair view of the financial position of the Company and
its subsidiaries as at 31 December 2015, and of their financial
performance and cash flows for the year then ended in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards and have been
properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure requirements
of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Ernst & Young

Certified Public Accountants
22/F CITIC Tower

1 Tim Mei Avenue

Central, Hong Kong

18 March 2016
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
GEEmNEMZEKRER

Year ended 31 December 2015

HZE2016F12A31HILFE
2015 2014
Note RMB’000 RMB'000
Wik AR®T R ARETT
REVENUE WA 15 15,264,401 14,822,772
Cost of sales SHERAR (11,326,830) (11,022,038)
Gross profit EH 3,937,571 3,800,734
Other revenue, income and gains HA - iz R Flz 5 119,927 116,116
Selling and distribution expenses HERD RS (697,214) (769,676)
Administrative expenses THRX (579,132) (581,418)
Other expenses Hipf g (630,259) (486,290
Finance costs BEMK 6 (87,323) (233,071)
Share of profit of a joint venture NE—EEELEEF 15 1,101 398
PROFIT BEFORE TAX BB AR R 7 2,064,671 1,846,793
Income tax expense FriefkiEY 9 (446,221) (306,435)
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR FREF 1,618,450 1,540,358
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME/(EXPENSE) ~ Htt2EWE /(F%)
ltems that may be reclassified subsequently to HENgEeEMBEZEREN
profit or loss: 1BE :
Exchange differences on translation of foreign NEINERREER
operations PE =58 (50,973) (1,170
Changes in fair value of available-for-sale AHHERENAEE
investments g 1,777 222
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE EXPENSE EREMZE
FOR THE YEAR X (49,196) (948)
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FOR THE YEAR E£RZ2HEWESAE 1,569,254 1,539,410

)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (Continced)
rEETmREMEERER @

2015 2014
Note RMB’000 RMB'000
fizE ARETR ARETT
Profit attributable to; PAT (S A -
Owners of the Company KREEBA 1,621,117 1,554,024
Non-controlling interests GRS (2,667) (13,666)
1,618,450 1,540,358
Total comprehensive income T EE2ERE
attributable to: EEEE
Owners of the Company N/NGIEY=DN 1,570,682 1,551,351
Non-controlling interests Jeim R (1,428) (11,941)
1,569,254 1,539,410
EARNINGS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE TO L UNGE 2N
OWNERS OF THE COMPANY BREF 1"
Basic HAE RMB0.52 RMBO0.50
AR¥0.527T AR#0.507T
Diluted B RMB0.52 RMBO0.50

AE¥0.52T ARE0.507T
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
e M BARRR

As at 31 December 2015
R2015F12 A31H

2015 2014
Note RMB’000 RMB'000
fisE ARBT R ARBF T
NON-CURRENT ASSETS ERBEE
Property, plant and equipment ME  BENKRE 12 6,011,812 5,263,614
Prepaid land lease payments BT AER 13 1,157,926 1,087,126
Investment properties BEME 14 318,431 -
Other intangible assets Hin A& E 35,790 35,405
Deposits paid for the purchase of land, property, BEE i - 9% - HME KRZE
plant and equipment Bisapl: bz 745,175 729,051
Interest in a joint venture R—HAE B ENER 15 7,175 6,074
Held-to-maturity investments BEZIEHEE 16 62,435 30,383
Available-for-sale investments AHERE 17 48,363 39,466
Deferred tax assets EEHIBEE 26 29,724 13,677
Total non-current assets FERBEELTE 8,416,831 7,204,696
CURRENT ASSETS REEE
Inventories 7E 18 2,206,543 2,210,038
Trade and bills receivables BoHRWFIBEREE 19 1,397,797 1,303,576
Receivables from factoring services {RI2 AR 7% FE U 500R 20 83,000 =
Prepayments, deposits and other receivables TEf15 - 4 R E o fEM IR 21 651,408 571,942
Held-to-maturity investments BEZRIMRE 16 - 30,374
Cash and bank deposits Be RIRITER 22 3,893,544 3,198,902
Total current assets MENVEERT 8,232,292 7,314,832
CURRENT LIABILITIES REEE
Trade and bills payables BIRNFBEREE 23 1,681,582 973,387
Other payables and accruals Hin e sIB R EFER 24 1,525,902 1,564,290
Borrowings TEEN 25 1,065,502 1,158,729
Tax payable FERT IR 104,562 113,440
Total current liabilities mEEEEE 4,377,548 3,809,846
NET CURRENT ASSETS RBEEFE 3,854,744 3,504,986
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT LIABILITIES EE#AERABER 12,271,575 10,709,682
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES FREBAR
Borrowings TEEN 25 2,175,238 2,021,105
Deferred tax liabilities EEHIBEE 26 136,653 68,542
Deferred income EIEW T 27 94,232 70,312
Total non-current liabilities FERENBEEHE 2,406,123 2,159,959
Net assets - EEFHE 9,865,452 8,549,723
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION (Continued)
AR B MBI ()

2015 2014
Note RMB’000 RMB'000
i AR¥T R AREF T
EQUITY R
Share capital %N 28 135,686 135,686
Reserves i 29 9,635,199 8,409,773
Equity attributable to owners of the Company A2 T H AFEGE 9,770,885 8,545,459
Non-controlling interests Elaabl)r e 94,567 4,264
Total equity DB 9,865,452 8,549,723
Wong Luen Hei Luo Jianfeng
=EHE ERE
Director Director
Ex EF
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
mEEREER

Year ended 31 December 2015

BZE2015F12 A3 HIEFE
Attributable to owners of the Company
KARBEARL
Available-
for-sale
Share investment  Exchange Non-
Share Share  Statutory  Capital option ~ Merger revaluation fluctuation  Retained controlling Total
capital  premium  reserve®  reserve®  reserve  reseve  reserve  reserve profits Total  interests equity
e

Bx  BOEE RRY RAGEY RERGR NG REEGER EXNEGS REEN g% FRWRR  RaME
RMBOOD  RMB'000  RMBOOO  RMBOD  RMB'0D0  RMB'OO0  AMB000  RMBOO  RMBO0O  RMBO0  RMBO00  RMBI0N0

ARMTR ARMTR ARMTR ARMTR ARRTR ARBTR ARMTR ARMTR ARMTR ARMTR ARRTR ARMTR
At January 2014 ROMEIAIE 134316 183631 70288 365 B 55 S MR 40963 71978 16205 725598

Profit for the year Efg = = = 5 5 - - - 1554024 1554,024 (13,666) 1,540,358
Other comprehensive expense  EREf

for the year 35 - - - - - = w289 - e 1 (948)
Total comprehensive income ~ ER2ENE

for the year gz - - - - - = m (289) 1554024 1551361 (11,941) 1539410
Issue of shares V) 1370 79,256 = - B07%) - - = ) - 4880
Dividends recognisedas ~ BEMEAA

distributions to owners AARE

(note 10) (&10) s - - - - - S - (294600 (295,460) - (295460,
Trensfer upon the expity of B RAFEER

thePrePOshare option~~ ERiES 2

Scheme EREEL - - - - 6 = = - 68 - - -
Appropriation to statutory  ERERE

resene & - - 213006 - - - - - (13,208) - - -
At31 December 2014and  R2014512A318

1 January 2015 R015%181H 135,686 1922887 43494 31645 - b 15t 0¥ N4 5484524 8545459 4264 8549723
Profit for the year R - = S = S = = - e e (2667) 1,618450
Other comprehensive expense  ERE

forthe year T ; - - ; . - ma S OBAE 1 W%
Tota comprehensive income ~ EX2ENE

forte yer 8% - - - - - ST BRI G508 (48 1569254
Capial contributions from ~~~ 3Fi%5ig&

non-controlling interests HE - - - - - - - - - - 13 13
Non-controllng interests arising %54 (244

from business combinations ~ 3E£5] iR

fote 3 () - : - - - - - - - - Bl 6
Aequisiions of noncontroling ksl

interests note 31) (Hifs g - - - [263%) S s - - - B3 263% -
Dividends recognisedas B AEEAA

distributions o owners FEORE

e 10 BH0) ;- : : - - - - BT NI TR Y
Aopropraton o stattory | BEEEE| | | _

feserve magy | | PS - 21308 - - - - - 1y - - -
At 31 December 2015 MEANE 135,686 1922887 1,156,712 5,250 - 5,515* 1999 (30,726)" 6,573,562 9,770,885 94,567 9,865,452

i These reserve accounts comprise the reserves of RMB9,635,199,000 (2014: # ZERERERBRBEAVERINRPREEARE
RMB8,409,773,000) in the consolidated statement of financial position. 9,635,199,0007T(20144F + AFKR#8,409,773,0007T) °
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY (Continued)
rEEDEHR @)

Note: Bt 5

(a) In accordance with the Company Law of the PRC, each of the Company’s (a) REFEFPEAGE  ARRRPHFMAOZEMEBARAE
subsidiaries registered in the PRC is required to appropriate 10% of the annual EBEREFRARS A RAUNEBENFEEITHRBRBEF
statutory profit after tax (after offsetting any prior years’ losses) determined (BB EMBEFEEEER)NI0%REATEHRKE  EE
in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles in the PRC to FEEeEBEIHFMERNS0% A1 c AERER A
the statutory reserve until the balance of the reserve fund reaches 50% of RIEMBAFEBIBRIEE WETHENRTERT
its registered capital. The statutory reserve can be utilised to offset prior BLREFMEART25% °

years' losses or to increase capital, provided that the remaining balance of the
statutory reserve is not less than 25% of the registered capital.

(b) Capital reserve mainly represented the difference between the consideration (b) EARFEETEIEEBWE LIRS R B EESTK
and the book value of the share of the net assets acquired in respect of the BREERMEZBMNESE -
acquisition of non-controlling interests.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
GERTRER

Year ended 31 December 2015

HZE2015F12A31HIEFE
2015 2014
Note RMB’000 RMB'000
WizE ARETR ARETT
OPERATING ACTIVITIES ReEE
Profit before tax: BEADEF] - 2,064,671 1,846,793
Adjustments for: RATREELAR
Interest income 8 Wz 5 (82,248) (74,116)
Government grants released ERARNBHE (1,431) (829)
Gain on fair value changes of investment properties ~ #&E&ME A7 BEEB 5 (55) -
Gain on early redemption of held-to-maturity REBEOBAEZIH
investments REMETS 5 - (3,194)
Investment income BB 5 (2,426) (1,793)
Interest expenses FIEHE 6 87,323 140,301
Premium and unamortised issuance expenses REBOELEER
arising from the early redemption of HiE R R
the Senior Notes BIHY 6 - 92,770
Depreciation and amortisation WEREH 7 501,115 439,780
Loss on disposal of items of land, HELTH  EETEEN
other intangible assets and property, R B
plant and equipment BERER 7 12,357 6,690
Write-down of inventories to WREEZE
net realisable value EREE 7 48,564 33,380
Impairment of trade receivables, net BORWFIEREFE 7 43,577 5,626
Impairment of property, plant and equipment ME - BEREERE 7 379 =
Share of profit of a joint venture AME—HEECERA 15 (1,101) (398)
2,670,725 2,485,010
Decrease in inventories BERY 814 202,775
Increase in trade and bills receivables B SRR REEE M (22,580) (245,764)
Increase in receivables from factoring services R AR 7% FE sk B (83,000) -
Decrease in prepayments, deposits and BAT - B REM
other receivables JE MR R 70,603 147,901
Increase in trade and bills payables B HENTBEREREM 630,265 108,456
(Decrease)/increase in other payables and HiENZIE R EER
accruals (R /% (85,326) 199,769
Increase in deferred income B 25,351 12,639
Cash generated from operations BEEENRE 3,206,852 2,910,786
Bank interest received BUIERTTHIE 72,421 36,378
Corporate income tax paid BRCEMER (402,289) (310,718)
Net cash flows from operating a;ctivjit@es LERHMERERETFHE 2,876,984 2,636,446
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (Continued)
mERERER®

2015 2014
Note RMB’000 RMB'000
WizE AR®T R ARETL
INVESTING ACTIVITIES REEE
Purchases of items of property, plant and equipment BEY¥ « HE M&REER (1,032,456) (1,285,113)
Proceeds from disposal of items of land, REMELN - AtEFEEM
other intangible assets and property, mE - BE KA
plant and equipment BB MFT{SE 6,922 12,838
Additions to prepaid land lease payments B EE T (201,771) (458,512)
Additions to investment properties BREYEEN (235,928) -
Additions to other intangible assets iR g EEm (12,067) (10,746)
Purchases of held-to-maturity investments ﬁ% AR EHRE (28,909) (24,122)
Proceeds from maturity of held-to-maturity BERIERERES
investments PR 5IR 31,767 17,428
Proceeds from early redemption of REEDRBEZIIRE
held-to-maturity investments P850 IR - 208,573
Interest received from held-to-maturity investments E%—;ﬁfz | AR F 8 8,443 36,405
Purchases of available-for-sale investments BEUHRNERE (5,125) (39,386)
Investment income received Euﬁl&ﬁﬂﬂlé 2,426 1,793
Acquisitions of subsidiaries W BT B A 7] 32 (56,186) (58,616)
Placement of time deposits with original maturity &EKEHHTTA(J?%E%E
over three months B) = (85,060)
Withdrawal of time deposits with original maturity ?ﬁﬁémﬁﬁf N(REHR
over three months HBB=EA) 85,060 16,957
(Increase)/decrease in restricted cash SRERE (M), B (55,195) 86,266
Net cash flows used in investing activities RETOMARERE TSR (1,493,019) (1,581,295)
FINANCING ACTIVITIES BMETH
New bank borrowings raised FTIEIRITIER 1,303,011 3,804,422
Loans from non-controlling interests FERtEZER 62,097 -
Repayment of bank and other loans BRRITREMER (1,642,843) (1,768,428)
Early redemption of the Senior Notes REBDELER - (1,657,906)
Proceeds from issue of shares, net of expenses BIRMDINGRAL BHMERIE = 49,830
Capital contributions from non-controlling interests ~ JEfE&I1ES & 13 -
Interest paid ERHE (77,800) (148,484)
Dividends paid BERRE (318,861) (295,460)
Net cash flows used in financing activities REZEMARERET (674,383) (16,026)
NET INCREASE IN CASH AND BERRLEEMEM
CASH EQUIVALENTS BE 709,582 1,039,125
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the year ~ FHINRE RIBELZEY 2,531,004 1,503,181
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes, net INEE R BB T BT 14,925 (11,302)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT END OF EXRNBELERS
THE YEAR ZEY 3,255,511 2,531,004
ANALYSIS OF BALANCES OF CASH AND ReRBSSEMN
CASH EQUIVALENTS 5 i
Time deposits with original maturity of THER(REHRA
three months or less when acquired Z@AFUT) 22 370,054 1,605,234
Cash and bank balances BeRFTE% 22 2,885,457 925,770
3,255,511 2,631,004
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Br RS SRR MY EE

2.1

74

CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION

The Company is a limited liability company incorporated in
the Cayman lIslands. The addresses of its registered office
and principal places of business are disclosed in the section
headed “Corporate Information” of this report.

The Company is an investment holding company. Particulars
of the Company's principal subsidiaries and its joint venture
are set out in notes 41 and 15 to the financial statements,
respectively.

BASIS OF PREPARATION

These financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
("HKFRSs") (which include all Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards, Hong Kong Accounting Standards (“HKASs")
and Interpretations) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants, accounting principles generally
accepted in Hong Kong and the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. They have been prepared
under the historical cost convention, except for investment
properties and available-for-sale investments which have
been measured at fair value. These financial statements
are presented in Renminbi and all values are rounded to the
nearest thousand except when otherwise indicated.

"
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
IS RER M5 ()

2.1 BASIS OF PREPARATION (Continued) 2.1 REE%E (@)

BASIS OF CONSOLIDATION

The consolidated financial statements include the financial
statements of the Company and its subsidiaries for the year
ended 31 December 2015.

A subsidiary is an entity (including a structured entity), directly
or indirectly controlled by the Company. Control is achieved
when the Group is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns
from its involvement with the investee and has the ability to
affect those returns through its power over the investee (i.e.,
existing rights that give the Group the current ability to direct
the relevant activities of the investee).

When the Company has, directly or indirectly, less than a
majority of the voting or similar rights of an investee, the
Group considers all relevant facts and circumstances in
assessing whether it has power over an investee, including:

(i) the contractual arrangement with the other vote holders
of the investee;

(i) rights arising from other contractual arrangements; and

(iii)  the Group's voting rights and potential voting rights.

The financial statements of the subsidiaries are prepared
for the same reporting period as the Company, using
consistent accounting policies. The results of subsidiaries
are consolidated from the date on which the Group obtains
control, and continue to be consolidated until the date that
such control ceases.

mEEE
GAMBRREEANLEMBATESE
2015F 12 A31 H It FEMIIEHREK °

MBARARAARERAMBEHNER
(BRERBMER) EAKEAX%EEZ
HEBEHREBAENAZEE - BEEB
HREHROEN (IR TAEERBRE
TEREUREBETHNREREN) R EZ
& O ¥RAF - BIERIS IS -

HARRERXERERELIRREHRKS
B RNELER - AAKERFEER
BHREHREHRNENR - @Z 818
MEERBER 8%

() BHEREHREMOEEFAEANGOL

v
- /I

(i) HEMENTHMELNERN @ &
(i) ARENRZELBERTE -

B A R ISR Tt B AR A RIAE R A 3R
SHEERA - BRNEHBRER - HEBAR
MEERAEERSEHES BEGEEA
B WHEBGA NREEZIEHIREZILER
Bk -
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
IS ERR M5 ()

2.1

2.2

/6

BASIS OF PREPARATION (Continued)

BASIS OF CONSOLIDATION (Continued)

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive
income are attributed to the owners of the Company and to
the non-controlling interests. Total comprehensive income of
subsidiaries is attributable to the owners of the Company and
to the non-controlling interests, even if this results in the non-
controlling interests having a deficit balance.

When necessary, adjustments are made to the financial
statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies
into line with the Group's accounting policies. All intra-group
assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses and cash flows
relating to transactions between members of the Group are
eliminated in full on consolidation.

CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
DISCLOSURES

(A) ADOPTION OF REVISED STANDARDS

The Group has adopted the following revised standards
for the first time for the current year's financial
statements.

Defined Benefit Plans:
Employee Contributions
Amendments to numbers of

HKFRSs
Amendments to numbers of
HKFRSs

Amendments to
HKAS 19 (2011)

Annual Improvements
2010-2012 Cycle

Annual Improvements
2011-2013 Cycle

The application of these revised standards in the
current year has had no material impact on the Group's
financial performance and positions for the current and
prior periods and/or on the disclosures set out in these
financial statements.
4

NEW HONG KONG COMPANIES ORDINANCE (CAP. 622)
The requirements jof Part 9 “Accounts and Audit” of
the new Hong Ii<or§g Cofmpanies Ordinance (Cap. 622)
came into opjerétio’nzdﬁring the year, as a result, there
are changes to i:)resentation and disclosures of certain
information in the consolidated financial statements.

(B)
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HEEMAER  HEARNEE R EART
BENARAEE AKIEED L

WEFRE WBRARNYBHRREIELH
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B MARAKREKRERRZHEANRZER
MEBEARRHEEERAE « - e -
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B BRERBEEERED
(A) RGBT ER

AEERAFENTBERRANERE
R THIEIERT AR -

FEEERIFE195% FERMETE

(2011 BRI AR BEHK
FEKNE20106E EBHEFHHEE
2012 A B ZIEERT

FERZ201MFE BEUBREE
20134F A HH B ZIRIEE]

RAFERAZSFLETEAHAE
B BVE KB E HA R O B S R 3R Mtk
R/ SREIIN AT SRR 2 BRI
ERERZE -

315 % D TR (56228)
5 E 5D AN ($622%) B8 [ 5
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

MR M5t )

2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HKFRSs

The Group has not early applied the following new and revised
HKFRSs, that have been issued but are not yet effective, in

these financial statements:

HKFRS 9
Amendments to HKFRS 10 and
HKAS 28

Amendments to HKFRS 10,
HKFRS 12 and HKAS 28

Amendments to HKFRS 11

HKFRS 14

HKFRS 15

Amendments to HKAS 1

Amendments to HKAS 16 and
HKAS 38

Amendments to HKAS 16 and
HKAS 41

Amendments to HKAS 27

Annual Improvements
2012-2014 Cycle

Financial Instruments?

Sales or Contribution of Assets between
an Investor and its Associate or Joint
Venture*

Investment Entities: Applying the
Consolidation Exception'

Accounting for Acquisitions of Interests in
Joint Operations’

Regulatory Deferral Accounts®

Revenue from Contracts with Customers?

Disclosure Initiative'

Clarification of Acceptable Methods of
Depreciation and Amortisation’

Agriculture: Bearer Plants'

Equity Method in Separate Financial
Statements'
Amendments to a number of HKFRSs'

i Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2016

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018

s Effective for an entity that first adopts HKFRSs for its annual financial
statements beginning on or after 1 January 2016 and therefore is not

applicable to the Group

4 Mandatory effective date not yet determined

The Group is in the process of making an assessment of the

impact of the above changes.

23 EEMEEMRERNEBHBERS

2R

REBEARPBHRER T HARRFEEATIIE
MR R R AR AT AT MR BB M 5

R

BENBRSENROR SRIR
BENBRSENS0RRERE REERARELTY
SHENEBRETA RERFZANEE
HERER
EEMBASENR0N B RARE: EREAARMAHY
UHREENR2ERERE

FHERIEBRETA
BENBRSENENREIN  WBAEERELRNET
3
ERBBRERARE ERRTER®
ERMBRSENR 68 BERINNE

BRGHEARRETA BRI
BEGHENRGRERRET ARSHERAEINAL

R385 5T A EE
BASITENSIGRREAST BE: EEMEY
BAISNREITR

FRGHENSNENR  BUMBERNELL

ERMENINZNUERSE  ERMBRSEANSBET

1 HEAR20169F1 A1 B A% R A/ F BRI

2 BEAM201841 A1 0 8k bA14 B4R & [Z HART

3 HWEIRR2016F1A1B R 2 BRENFEEYK
HERMNB BV IEREE O TR EN - BT
HARAER

4 1 7 788 7E 5 il A2 3 B B

ARETFE FREDFELHYE -
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
IS FRR M5 ()

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

/8

POLICIES

INVESTMENTS IN JOINT VENTURES

A joint venture is a type of joint arrangement whereby the
parties that have joint control of the arrangement have rights
to the net assets of the joint venture. Joint control is the
contractually agreed sharing of control of an arrangement,
which exists only when decisions about the relevant activities
require unanimous consent of the parties sharing control.

The Group's investment in a joint venture is stated in the
consolidated statement of financial position at the Group's
share of net assets under the equity method of accounting,
less any impairment losses.

The Group's share of the post-acquisition results and other
comprehensive income of joint ventures is included in profit
or loss and other comprehensive income, respectively. In
addition, when there has been a change recognised directly
in the equity of the joint venture, the Group recognises its
share of any changes, when applicable, in the consolidated
statement of changes in equity. Unrealised gains and losses
resulting from transactions between the Group and its joint
ventures are eliminated to the extent of the Group's interest
in the joint ventures, except where unrealised losses provide
evidence of an impairment of the asset transferred. Goodwill
arising from the acquisition of joint ventures is included as part
of the Group's investments in joint ventures.

)
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
IS ERR M5 ()

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2.4 FES:THEFEME (&)
POLICIES (Continued)

INTEREST IN JOINT OPERATION REEEB o ER

A joint operation is a joint arrangement whereby the parties SREBBERTH Bt EAZTHH
that have joint control of the arrangement have rights to EEH NS AR EHZTHEENE
the assets, and obligations for the liabilities, relating to ENGEEAEST o ELEIEHITIAE D17
the arrangement. Joint control is the contractually agreed ERM—IBLTHEZEHE - HEEEFTY
sharing of control of an arrangement, which exists only when RERMBEED TSI AT —BRERTS
decisions about the relevant activities require the unanimous FiE °

consent of the parties sharing control.

The Group recognises in relation to its interest in a joint REBRHEREEER 2 ERER

operation:

o its assets, including its share of any assets held jointly; o HEE pESMNEMNAXRFEEZE

=

e its liabilities, including its share of any liabilities incurred e HEFE BESEEAARELZEA
jointly; &

o its revenue from the sale of its share of the output e HEERALEKEMELZMEK
arising from the joint operation; A

° its share of the revenue from the sale of the output by . HESSEBEL ZEHKBRA &

the joint operation; and

. its expenses, including its share of any expenses o HRAY  BESMAMNHERELZR
incurred jointly. X o

The assets, liabilities, revenues and expenses relating to REBNEGEEB IV ESEBEE - A

the Group's interest in a joint operation are accounted for & - WAKBESZIREBEERNBEEE - 8

in accordance with the HKFRSs applicable to the particular & WAL EAMBRELELALE -

assets, liabilities, revenues and expenses.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
IS FRR M5 ()

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

80

POLICIES (Continued)

BUSINESS COMBINATIONS AND GOODWILL

Business combinations are accounted for using the acquisition
method. The consideration transferred is measured at the
acquisition-date fair value which is the sum of the acquisition-
date fair values of assets transferred by the Group, liabilities
assumed by the Group to the former owners of the acquiree
and the equity interests issued by the Group in exchange
for control of the acquiree. For each business combination,
the Group elects whether to measure the non-controlling
interests in the acquiree that are present ownership interests
and entitle their holders to a proportionate share of net
assets in the event of liquidation either at fair value or at
the proportionate share of the acquiree’s identifiable net
assets. All other components of non-controlling interests are
measured at fair value. Acquisition-related costs are expensed
as incurred.

When the Group acquires a business, it assesses the financial
assets and liabilities assumed for appropriate classification
and designation in accordance with the contractual terms,
economic circumstances and pertinent conditions as at the
acquisition date. This includes the separation of embedded
derivatives in host contracts of the acquiree.

If the business combination is achieved in stages, the
previously held equity interest is remeasured at its
acquisition-date fair value and any resulting gain or loss is
recognised in profit or loss.

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the
acquirer is recognised at fair value at the acquisition date.
Contingent consideration classified as an asset or liability
that is a financial instrument and within the scope of HKAS
39 is measured at fair value with changes in fair value
either recogniseddin profit or loss or as a change to other
comprehensive income. If the contingent consideration is not
within the scope of HKAS 39, it is measured in accordance
with the appropriate HKFERS.[Contingent consideration that
is classified as equify is: fiot remeasured and subsequent
settlement is accounted for within equity.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
IS RER M5 ()

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 24 FEE:HEHE@H)

POLICIES (Continued)

BUSINESS COMBINATIONS AND GOODWILL (Continued)
Goodwill is initially measured at cost, being the excess of
the aggregate of the consideration transferred, the amount
recognised for non-controlling interests and any fair value of
the Group's previously held equity interests in the acquiree
over the identifiable net assets acquired and liabilities
assumed. If the sum of this consideration and other items
is lower than the fair value of the net assets acquired, the
difference is, after reassessment, recognised in profit or loss
as a gain on bargain purchase.

After initial recognition, goodwill is measured at cost less
any accumulated impairment losses. Goodwill is tested for
impairment annually or more frequently if events or changes
in circumstances indicate that the carrying value may be
impaired. The Group will perform its annual impairment
test of goodwill as at 31 December, if any. For the purpose
of impairment testing, goodwill acquired in a business
combination is, from the acquisition date, allocated to each
of the Group's cash-generating units, or groups of cash-
generating units, that are expected to benefit from the
synergies of the combination, irrespective of whether other
assets or liabilities of the Group are assigned to those units or
groups of units.

Impairment is determined by assessing the recoverable
amount of the cash-generating unit (group of cash-generating
units) to which the goodwill relates. Where the recoverable
amount of the cash-generating unit (group of cash-generating
units) is less than the carrying amount, an impairment loss is
recognised. An impairment loss recognised for goodwill is not
reversed in a subsequent period.

Where goodwill has been allocated to a cash-generating unit
(or group of cash-generating units) and part of the operation
within that unit is disposed of, the goodwill associated with
the operation disposed of is included in the carrying amount
of the operation when determining the gain or loss on the
disposal. Goodwill disposed of in these circumstances
is measured based on the relative value of the operation
disposed of and the portion of the cash-generating unit
retained.

EBEHREE(H)

BEBVRIEKAE - IEEERE B
RIFEFI R S BRI AR E LA RN E
TR RN ER AR EEZ AEB LR
BrRpEEFENMAAZERBENZR © i
HREREMIERNEMERKEFEE
MAREE MFFHEROEZENBEER
SHEBWERENE -

RANIAFER R - BB IR AR IR RETRE
BEAtE - mERETETRENR  FE
S RLEYBE RN BB RREERERE -
AlgFREHETRAE - AEERR12A
NAETHENFERENA(DNE) - B
EITRENS  BmAKBHEGEEXRE
ERESRERCELBENARCELEM
A AXRBaFMBANBESRBERES
EAEEFRA A HELN R RS
BN AEERRCELAEUNRCELEN
EWII

BEEEFEERERRNREELEN
CREELFEMARWAIKEISHREE - &
ReEL BN CReELEMER)MATYKE
SREREEER - RIRRRESE - O
REEREBRTNENERBRRED -
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
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POLICIES (Continued)

FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENT

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an
asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction
between market participants at the measurement date. The
fair value measurement is based on the presumption that the
transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place
either in the principal market for the asset or liability, or in
the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous
market for the asset or liability. The principal or the most
advantageous market must be accessible by the Group.
The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the
assumptions that market participants would use when pricing
the asset or liability, assuming that market participants act in
their economic best interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into
account a market participant’s ability to generate economic
benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by
selling it to another market participant that would use the
asset in its highest and best use.

The Group uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in
the circumstances and for which sufficient data are available
to measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant
observable inputs and minimising the use of unobservable
inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured
or disclosed in the financial statements are categorised
within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based
on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement as a whole:

Level 1 — based on quoted prices (unadjusted) in active
markets‘for identical assets or liabilities

Level 2 — based on valuation techniques for which the
lowest level input|that is significant to the fair
value measurem@ht is observable, either directly or
indirectly

Level 3 — based on valuation technigues for which the lowest

level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement is unobservable
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 24 FEE:HEHE@H)

POLICIES (Continued)

FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENT (Continued)

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial
statements on a recurring basis, the Group determines
whether transfers have occurred between levels in the
hierarchy by reassessing categorisation (based on the lowest
level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as
a whole) at the end of each reporting period.

IMPAIRMENT OF NON-FINANCIAL ASSETS

Where an indication of impairment exists, or when annual
impairment testing for an asset is required (other than
inventories, construction contract asset, deferred tax assets
and financial assets), the asset’'s recoverable amount is
estimated. An asset’s recoverable amount is the higher of the
asset’s or cash-generating unit’s value in use and its fair value
less costs of disposal, and is determined for an individual
asset, unless the asset does not generate cash inflows
that are largely independent of those from other assets or
groups of assets, in which case the recoverable amount is
determined for the cash-generating unit to which the asset
belongs.

An impairment loss is recognised only if the carrying amount
of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount. In assessing
value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted
to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that
reflects current market assessments of the time value of
money and the risks specific to the asset. An impairment loss
is charged to profit or loss in the period in which it arises in
those expense categories consistent with the function of the
impaired asset.

An assessment is made at the end of each reporting
period as to whether there is an indication that previously
recognised impairment losses may no longer exist or may
have decreased. If such an indication exists, the recoverable
amount is estimated. A previously recognised impairment
loss of an asset other than goodwill is reversed only if there
has been a change in the estimates used to determine the
recoverable amount of that asset, but not to an amount higher
than the carrying amount that would have been determined
(net of any depreciation/amortisation) had no impairment loss
been recognised for the asset in prior years. A reversal of such
an impairment loss is credited to profit or loss in the period in
which it arises.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
IS FRR M5 ()

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

RELATED PARTIES
A party is considered to be related to the Group if:

(a) the party is a person or a close member of that person’s
family and that person

(i) has control or joint control of the Group;
(i) has significant influence over the Group; or

(iii) is a member of the key management personnel of
the Group or of a parent of the Group;

or

(b) the party is an entity where any of the following
conditions applies:

(i)  the entity and the Group are members of the same
group;

(i) one entity is an associate or joint venture of the
other entity (or of a parent, subsidiary or fellow
subsidiary of the other entity);

(iii)  the entity and the Group are joint ventures of the
same third party;

(iv) one entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the
other entity is an associate of the third entity;

(v)  the entity is a post-employment benefit plan for
the benefit of employees of either the Group or an
entity related to the Group;

(vi) the entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a
person identified in (a);

(vii) a person icien‘[ified in (a)(i) has significant influence
over the entity or is a member of the key
managemient personnel of the entity (or of a parent
of the entity); and

(viii) the entity, or any member of a group of which itis a

part, provides key management personnel services
to the Group or to the parent of the Group.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
IS RER M5 ()

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 24 FEE:HEHE@H)
POLICIES (Continued)

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT AND DEPRECIATION ME - BERREBEZITE

Property, plant and equipment, other than construction in MRAERE TR - WE - BB KRR AR
progress, are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and 2 ITE RFMREEEYIE - ¥ - BE
any impairment losses. The cost of an item of property, plant REEENRABIEEREENFEER
and equipment comprises its purchase price and any directly RETE B R e E MEAR R Ko it Bh T 2 A B {r]
attributable costs of bringing the asset to its working condition BERKAK -

and location for its intended use.

Expenditure incurred after items of property, plant and ME  MERREBEBIEAEBEEBELANY
equipment have been put into operation, such as repairs H (g hRE)  —RRNEELHH
and maintenance, is normally charged to profit or loss in BERNR o WA ERRIEE - EX
the period in which it is incurred. In situations where the mENHYeRNEERABEYERNIEAR
recognition criteria are satisfied, the expenditure for a major o MYE MEARENEZI5 AT
inspection is capitalised in the carrying amount of the asset as Bt KEBeERAZSETAEEEFER
a replacement. Where significant parts of property, plant and FEHIM (AR E E NLBESHZIE -

equipment are required to be replaced at intervals, the Group
recognises such parts as individual assets with specific useful
lives and depreciates them accordingly.

Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line basis to write WEUNEGETE - REEME - BERRK
off the cost of each item of property, plant and equipment to HIEE MGt A ESMIE ER A H T 64
its residual value over its estimated useful life. The principal BE - AHENOMEFEFEANEETEXRD
annual rates used for this purpose are as follows: T
Freehold land Not depreciated KA ERE L WEFTE
Land and buildings 2.3% t0 5% T REF 23%%E5%
Plant and machinery 9% to 19% B 9% ZE19%
Furniture, fixtures and RE - RERWAE
office equipment 9.5% to 32.3% B 9.5%%32.3%
Motor vehicles 9.5% to0 32.3% "E 9.5%%32.3%
Leasehold improvements Over the shorter of the lease HEMERE L ERE20% &
terms and 20% LSS
Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have W% MELREEBENIESHREH T
different useful lives, the cost of that item is allocated on a FRAFE - A% RKABESSE 2 M
reasonable basis among the parts and each part is depreciated SEBAM  MEBLDEBEBAEINE - TR
separately. Residual values, useful lives and the depreciation EBE AEAFHMITE R EAZELRNEH
method are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at least at HEERBF—X WEBAEBELTELHA
each financial year end. o
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

86

POLICIES (Continued)

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT AND DEPRECIATION
(Continued)

An item of property, plant and equipment including any
significant part initially recognised is derecognised upon
disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected
from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss on disposal or
retirement recognised in profit or loss in the period the asset
is derecognised is the difference between the net sales
proceeds and the carrying amount of the relevant asset.

Construction in progress represents buildings and other
assets under construction, which is stated at cost less any
impairment losses, and is not depreciated. Cost represents
the direct costs of construction and capitalised borrowing
costs on related borrowed funds during the period of
construction. Construction in progress is reclassified to the
appropriate category of property, plant and equipment when
completed and ready for use.

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

Investment properties are interests in land and buildings
(including the leasehold interest under an operating lease for
a property which would otherwise meet the definition of an
investment property) held to earn rental income and/or for
capital appreciation, rather than for use in the production or
supply of goods or services or for administrative purposes;
or for sale in the ordinary course of business. These include
land held for a currently undetermined future use and property
that is being constructed or developed for future use as
investment property. Such properties are measured initially
at cost, including transaction costs. Subsequent to initial
recognition, investment properties are stated at fair value,
which reflects market conditions at the end of the reporting
period.

Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair values of
investment properties are: included in the profit or loss in the
year in which they arilse.;

Any gains or losses on ‘the retirement or disposal of an
investment property are recognised in the profit or loss in the
year of the retirement or disposal.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
IS RER M5 ()

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

INTANGIBLE ASSETS (OTHER THAN GOODWILL)

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial
recognition at cost. The cost of intangible assets acquired
in a business combination is the fair value as at the date of
acquisition. The useful lives of intangible assets are assessed
to be either finite or indefinite. Intangible assets with finite
lives are subsequently amortised over the useful economic life
and assessed for impairment whenever there is an indication
that the intangible asset may be impaired. The amortisation
period and the amortisation method for an intangible asset
with a finite useful life are reviewed at least at each financial

year end.

Computer software

Computer software is stated at cost less any impairment
losses and is amortised on the straight-line basis over its

estimated useful life of five years.

Research and development costs
All research costs are charged to profit or loss as incurred.

Expenditure incurred on projects to develop new products
is capitalised and deferred only when the Group can
demonstrate the technical feasibility of completing the
intangible asset so that it will be available for use or sale, its
intention to complete and its ability to use or sell the asset,
how the asset will generate future economic benefits, the
availability of resources to complete the project and the ability
to measure reliably the expenditure during the development.
Product development expenditure which does not meet these

criteria is expensed when incurred.

Deferred development costs are stated at cost less
accumulated amortisation and accumulated impairment
losses (if any), on the same basis as intangible assets that are

acquired separately.

PATENTS AND TRADEMARKS

Purchased patents and trademarks acquired are stated at cost
less any impairment losses and are amortised on the straight-

line basis over their estimated useful lives.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

388

POLICIES (Continued)

OPERATING LEASES

Leases where substantially all the rewards and risks of
ownership of assets remain with the lessor are accounted for
as operating leases. Where the Group is the lessor, assets
leased by the Group under operating leases are included in
non-current assets, and rentals receivable under the operating
leases are credited to profit or loss on the straight-line basis
over the lease terms. Where the Group is the lessee, rentals
payable under the operating leases are charged to profit or
loss on the straight-line basis over the lease terms.

Prepaid land lease payments under operating leases are
initially stated at cost and subsequently recognised on the
straight-line basis over the lease terms.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when a
group entity becomes a party to the contractual provisions of
the instruments.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured
at fair value. Transaction costs that are directly attributable
to the acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial
liabilities (other than financial assets and financial liabilities at
fair value through profit or loss) are added to or deducted from
the fair value of the financial assets or financial liabilities, as
appropriate, on initial recognition. Transaction costs directly
attributable to the acquisition of financial assets or financial
liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are recognised
immediately in profit or loss. The subsequent measurement
of financial assets and financial liabilities depends on their
classification.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised /cost of a debt instrument or financial liability and of
allocating interest income or expense over the relevant period.
The effective interést rate is the rate that exactly discounts
estimated future cash receipts or payments (including all fees
and points paid or received that form an integral part of the
effective interest rate, transaction costs and other premiums
or discounts) through the expected life of the debt instrument
or financial liability, or, (where appropriate), a shorter period,
to the net carrying amount.on initial recognition.

Interest income or expense is recognised on an effective
interest method.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 24 XESHBEEE@®)

POLICIES (Continued)

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Financial assets

Financial assets are classified into the following specified
categories: financial assets "at fair value through profit
or loss”, "held-to-maturity” investments, “loans and
receivables” and "available-for-sale” financial assets. The
classification depends on the nature and purpose of the
financial assets and is determined at the time of initial
recognition. All regular way purchases or sales of financial
assets are recognised and derecognised on a trade date
basis. Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or sales
of financial assets that require delivery of assets within the
time frame established by regulation or convention in the
marketplace.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets are classified as financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss when the financial assets are either held
for trading or they are designated as at fair value through profit
or loss upon initial recognition.

A financial asset is classified as held for trading if:

° it has been acquired principally for the purpose of selling
itin the near term;

° on initial recognition it is part of a portfolio of identified
financial instruments that the Group manages together
and has a recent actual pattern of short-term profit-
taking; or

o it is a derivative that is not designated and effective as a
hedging instrument.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
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POLICIES (Continued)

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (Continued)
A financial asset other than a financial asset held for trading
may be designated as at fair value through profit or loss upon
initial recognition if:

° such designation eliminates or significantly reduces a
measurement or recognition inconsistency that would
otherwise arise;

° the financial asset forms part of a group of financial
assets or financial liabilities or both, which is managed
and its performance is evaluated on a fair value basis,
in accordance with the Group’'s documented risk
management or investment strategy, and information
about the grouping is provided internally on that basis; or

o it forms part of a contract containing one or more
embedded derivatives, and HKAS 39 permits the entire
combined contract to be designated as at fair value
through profit or loss.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are stated at
fair value, with any gains or losses arising on remeasurement
recognised in profit or loss.

Held-to-maturity investments

Held-to-maturity investments are non-derivative financial
assets with fixed or determinable payments and fixed maturity
dates that the Group has the positive intent and ability to hold
to maturity.

Subsequent to initial recognition, held-to-maturity
investments aredmeasured at amortised cost using the
effective interest method less any impairment.

)
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 24 FEE:HEHE@H)

POLICIES (Continued)

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets
with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in
an active market. Loans and receivables are measured at
amortised cost using the effective interest method, less any
impairment.

Interest income is recognised by applying the effective
interest rate, except for short-term receivables where the
recognition of interest would be immaterial.

Available-for-sale financial assets

Available-for-sale financial assets are non-derivative financial
assets that are either designated as available-for-sale or are
not classified as (a) financial assets at fair value through profit
or loss; (b) held-to-maturity investments; or (c) loans and
receivables.

Equity and debt securities held by the Group that are
classified as available-for-sale financial assets and are traded
in an active market are measured at fair value at the end
of each reporting period. Changes in the carrying amount
of available-for-sale monetary financial assets relating to
interest income calculated using the effective interest method
and dividends on available-for-sale equity investments are
recognised in profit or loss. Other changes in the carrying
amount of available-for-sale financial assets are recognised
in other comprehensive income and accumulated under the
heading of available-for-sale investment revaluation reserve.
When the investment is disposed of or is determined to be
impaired, the cumulative gain or loss previously accumulated
in the available-for-sale investment revaluation reserve is
reclassified to profit or loss.

Dividends on available-for-sale equity investments are
recognised in profit or loss when the Group's right to receive
the dividends is established.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
IS FRR M5 ()

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

92

POLICIES (Continued)

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Available-for-sale financial assets (Continued)

The fair value of available-for-sale monetary financial assets
denominated in a foreign currency is determined in that
foreign currency and translated at the spot rate prevailing at
the end of the reporting period. The foreign exchange gains
and losses that are recognised in profit or loss are determined
based on the amortised cost of the monetary asset. Other
foreign exchange gains and losses are recognised in other
comprehensive income.

Available-for-sale equity investments that do not have a
quoted market price in an active market and whose fair
value cannot be reliably measured and derivatives that are
linked to and must be settled by delivery of such unquoted
equity investments are measured at cost less any identified
impairment losses at the end of each reporting period.

Impairment of financial assets

The Group assesses at the end of each reporting period
whether there is objective evidence that a financial asset or a
group of financial assets is impaired. An impairment exists if
one or more events that occurred after the initial recognition
of the asset have an impact on the estimated future cash
flows of the financial asset or the group of financial assets that
can be reliably estimated. Evidence of impairment may include
indications that a debtor or a group of debtors is experiencing
significant financial difficulty, default or delinquency in interest
or principal payments, the probability that they will enter
bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation and observable
data indicating that there is a measurable decrease in the
estimated, future cash flows, such as changes in arrears or
economic conditions that correlate with defaults.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
IS RER M5 ()

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 24 FEE:HEHE@H)

POLICIES (Continued)

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

Financial assets carried at amortised cost

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the Group first
assesses whether impairment exists individually for financial
assets that are individually significant, or collectively for
financial assets that are not individually significant. If the
Group determines that no objective evidence of impairment
exists for an individually assessed financial asset, whether
significant or not, it includes the asset in a group of financial
assets with similar credit risk characteristics and collectively
assesses them for impairment. Assets that are individually
assessed for impairment and for which an impairment loss is,
or continues to be, recognised are not included in a collective
assessment of impairment.

The amount of any impairment loss identified is measured as
the difference between the asset’'s carrying amount and the
present value of estimated future cash flows (excluding future
credit losses that have not yet been incurred). The present
value of the estimated future cash flows is discounted at the
financial asset’s original effective interest rate.

The carrying amount of the asset is reduced through the use
of an allowance account and the loss is recognised in profit or
loss. Interest income continues to be accrued on the reduced
carrying amount and is accrued using the rate of interest used
to discount the future cash flows for the purpose of measuring
the impairment loss. Loans and receivables together with any
associated allowance are written off when there is no realistic
prospect of future recovery and all collateral has been realised
or has been transferred to the Group.

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the estimated
impairment loss increases or decreases because of an
event occurring after the impairment was recognised, the
previously recognised impairment loss is increased or reduced
by adjusting the allowance account. If a write-off is later
recovered, the recovery is credited to profit or loss.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
IS FRR M5 ()

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)
Impairment of financial assets (Continued)
Financial assets carried at cost

For financial assets carried at cost, the amount of the
impairment loss is measured as the difference between
the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of the
estimated future cash flows discounted at the current market
rate of return for a similar financial asset. Such impairment

loss will not be reversed in subsequent periods.

Available-for-sale financial assets

For available-for-sale financial assets, the Group assesses at
the end of each reporting period whether there is objective
evidence that a financial asset or a group of financial assets is

impaired.

If an available-for-sale financial asset is impaired, an amount
comprising the difference between its cost (net of any
principal payment and amortisation) and its current fair value,
less any impairment loss previously recognised in profit or
loss, is removed from other comprehensive income and

recognised in profit or loss.

In the case of equity investments classified as available-
for-sale, objective evidence would include a significant or
prolonged decline in the fair value of an investment below its
cost. “Significant” is evaluated against the original cost of
the investment and “prolonged” against the period in which
the fair value has been below its original cost. Where there is
evidence of impairment, the cumulative loss — measured as
the difference between the acquisition cost and the current
fair value, less any impairment loss on that investment
previously recognised in profit or loss — is removed from
other comprehensive income and recognised in profit or
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loss. Impairmentdosses on equity instruments classified
as available-for-sale are not reversed through profit or loss.
Increases in their fair value after impairment are recognised
directly in other compirehensive income.

The determination of what is “significant” or “prolonged”
requires judgement. In making this judgement, the Group
evaluates, among other factors, the duration or extent to
which the fair value of an investment is less than its cost.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
IS RER M5 ()

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 24 FEE:HEHE@H)

POLICIES (Continued)

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)
Available-for-sale financial assets (Continued)

In the case of debt instruments classified as available-for-sale,
impairment is assessed based on the same criteria as financial
assets carried at amortised cost. However, the amount
recorded for impairment is the cumulative loss measured as
the difference between the amortised cost and the current fair
value, less any impairment loss on that investment previously
recognised in profit or loss. Future interest income continues
to be accrued based on the reduced carrying amount of
the asset and is accrued using the rate of interest used to
discount the future cash flows for the purpose of measuring
the impairment loss. Impairment losses on debt instruments
are reversed through profit or loss if the subsequent increase
in fair value of the instruments can be objectively related to an
event occurring after the impairment loss was recognised in
profit or loss.

Financial liabilities and equity instruments

Classification as debt or equity

Debt and equity instruments issued by a group entity
are classified as either financial liabilities or as equity
in accordance with the substance of the contractual
arrangements and the definitions of a financial liability and an
equity instrument.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual
interest in the assets of an entity after deducting all of its
liabilities. Equity instruments issued by a group entity are
recognised at the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.

Repurchase of the Company’s own equity instruments is
recognised and deducted directly in equity. No gain or loss
is recognised in profit or loss on the purchase, sale, issue or
cancellation of the Company’s own equity instruments.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
IS FRR M5 ()

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)
Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities are classified as either financial liabilities at

fair value through profit or loss or other financial liabilities.

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss

Financial liabilities are classified as financial liabilities at fair
value through profit or loss when the financial liabilities are
either held for trading or they are designated as at fair value

through profit or loss upon initial recognition.

A financial liability is classified as held for trading if:

° it has been incurred principally for the purpose of

repurchasing it in the near term;

° on initial recognition it is part of a portfolio of identified
financial instruments that the Group manages together
and has a recent actual pattern of short-term profit-

taking; or

o it is a derivative that is not designated and effective as a

hedging instrument.

A financial liability other than a financial liability held for trading
may be designated as at fair value through profit or loss upon

initial recognition if:

° such designation eliminates or significantly reduces a
measurement or recognition inconsistency that would

otherwise arise;

o the financial liability forms part of a group of financial
assets or financial liabilities or both, which is managed
and its performance is evaluated on a fair value basis,
in accordance with the Group’'s documented risk
management or, inyestment strategy, and information
about the gro:upihg is provided internally on that basis; or

° it forms part of a contract containing one or more
embedded derivatives, and HKAS 39 permits the entire
combined contract to be designated as at fair value

through profit or loss.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
IS ERR M5 ()

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 24 XESHBEEE@®)

POLICIES (Continued)

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Financial liabilities (Continued)

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss (Continued)
Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are
stated at fair value, with any gains or losses arising on
remeasurement recognised in profit or loss.

Other financial liabilities
Other financial liabilities are subsequently measured at
amortised cost using the effective interest method.

Derivative financial instruments

Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value at the
date when derivative contracts are entered into and are
subsequently remeasured to their fair value at the end of the
reporting period. The resulting gain or loss is recognised in
profit or loss immediately unless the derivative is designated
and effective as a hedging instrument, in which case the
timing of the recognition in profit or loss depends on the
nature of the hedge relationship.

Embedded derivatives

Derivatives embedded in non-derivative host contracts are
treated as separate derivatives when they meet the definition
of a derivative, their risks and characteristics are not closely
related to those of the host contracts and the host contracts
are not measured at fair value through profit or loss.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
IS FRR M5 ()

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

98

POLICIES (Continued)

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Derecognition

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when the
contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire, or
when it transfers the financial asset and substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership of the asset to another entity.
If the Group neither transfers nor retains substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership and continues to control the
transferred asset, the Group continues to recognise the asset
to the extent of its continuing involvement and recognises
an associated liability. If the Group retains substantially all
the risks and rewards of ownership of a transferred financial
asset, the Group continues to recognise the financial asset
and also recognises a collateralised borrowing for the
proceeds received.

On derecognition of a financial asset in its entirety, the
difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the
sum of the consideration received and receivable and
the cumulative gain or loss that had been recognised in
other comprehensive income and accumulated in equity is
recognised in profit or loss.

On derecognition of a financial asset other than in its entirety,
the Group allocates the previous carrying amount of the
financial asset between the part it continues to recognise, and
the part it no longer recognises on the basis of the relative
fair values of those parts on the date of the transfer. The
difference between the carrying amount allocated to the part
that is no longer recognised and the sum of the consideration
received for the part no longer recognised and any cumulative
gain or loss allocated to it that had been recognised in other
comprehensive income is recognised in profit or loss. A
cumulative gain or loss that had been recognised in other
comprehensive income is allocated between the part that
continues to be recognised and the part that is no longer
recognised on the basis of the relative fair values of those
parts.

The Group derecognises:financial liabilities when, and only
when, the Group’s obligations are discharged, cancelled or
they expire. The difference between the carrying amount of
the financial liability derecognised and the consideration paid
and payable is recognised in profit or loss.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
IS RER M5 ()

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 24 FEE:HEHE@H)

POLICIES (Continued)

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net
amount reported in the statement of financial position if there
is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognised
amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, or
to realise the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously.

INVENTORIES

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Cost is determined on the weighted average basis and,
in the case of work in progress and finished goods, comprises
direct materials, direct labour and an appropriate proportion of
overheads. Net realisable value is based on estimated selling
prices less any estimated costs to be incurred to completion
and disposal.

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and
demand deposits, and short-term highly liquid investments
that are readily convertible into known amounts of cash,
are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value, and
have a short maturity of generally within three months when
acquired, less bank overdrafts which are repayable on demand
and form an integral part of cash management.

PROVISIONS

A provision is recognised when a present obligation (legal or
constructive) has arisen as a result of a past event and it is
probable that a future outflow of resources will be required to
settle the obligation, provided that a reliable estimate can be
made of the amount of the obligation.

When the effect of discounting is material, the amount
recognised for a provision is the present value at the end
of the reporting period of the future expenditures expected
to be required to settle the obligation. The increase in the
discounted present value amount arising from the passage of
time is included in finance costs in profit or loss.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
IS FRR M5 ()

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2.4 FE2HBEMNES®)
POLICIES (Continued)

INCOME TAX Frias:

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. Income TS BN MEE L I8 - BRIF IR IE s
tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss RERNIEE AENEHR S ETIEERE
is recognised outside profit or loss, either in other MEMEEmKRASEEEESANIER -

comprehensive income or directly in equity.

Current tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount ENEA B A E R B EIRTE HER B E R T
expected to be recovered from or paid to the taxation KA RGBS NIRRT E - sTENEE
authorities, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been AREHREETHCEERRNTORER(K
enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting L) MEEAREBKLEMEBRZKIRITH
period, taking into consideration interpretations and practices 2ELER -

prevailing in the countries in which the Group operates.

Deferred tax is provided, using the liability method, on all EEFRERBABRENREREREELE
temporary differences at the end of the reporting period EMHEEE AEMBEERMETEBE RN
between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their BT e =5 E s -

carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary EERIBR &N A R TR =28 MmiE

differences, except: R ETHE BRI

° when the deferred tax liability arises from the initial ° ERXSGETEES T SN ERB S
recognition of goodwill or an asset or liability in a FSREEHIEERSHZ ST » 916
transaction that is not a business combination and, at the EAEENEERBEREELNELE
time of the transaction, affects neither the accounting mEAeE K&

profit nor taxable profit or loss; and

. in respect of taxable temporary differences associated o HENHBATER—EAXLNEMIE
with investments in subsidiaries and a joint venture, BEHANESHEREZEms @ I
when the timing of the reversal of the temporary AR R AT BREYE
differences can be controlled and it is probable that the =50 A] RS R AT g & e it a -
temporary differences will not reverse in the foreseeable
future.

)
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
IS RER M5 ()

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 24 FEE:HEHE@H)
POLICIES (Continued)

INCOME TAX (Continued) FrigH ()

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible B EEEIAAE A I S E% - Kk
temporary differences, the carryforward of unused tax credits B IEEK R M{ER RE BB BN GE
and any unused tax losses. Deferred tax assets are recognised MEER - M BEBEREE ERBEF ] HHiK
to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be AR TR ESE - AFEREEETE
available against which the deductible temporary differences, SHAFEEENGE e ARETHEE
the carryforward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses B METNYIESRBRIN

can be utilised, except:

° when the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible ° ERX GBI EES SN ERB S
temporary differences arises from the initial recognition Tk EEmMIEEBEHT ST - ¥4
of an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a ERAEEEENELCHE BT
business combination and, at the time of the transaction, EEAMNBRIEREERE &
affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or
loss; and

° in respect of deductible temporary differences ° MERKMBATI R —HEEaEENIE
associated with investments in subsidiaries and a joint BEMBOOHBEREZEmMS @ BLE
venture, deferred tax assets are only recognised to the MEEEERNEHEZANTEERE
extent that it is probable that the temporary differences O] LR (O] B FE SR B % 7 48 o] B LA 8
will reverse in the foreseeable future and taxable profit FREETERIE T 0 TRER ©

will be available against which the temporary differences
can be utilised.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at EEFBEENEONERNSREHRELR
the end of each reporting period and reduced to the extent o WETNBA BAERR S AHEES
that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will IR D IRETIBEER F AR o RiER
be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be HIELEHRBEESNEREHKREH LG -
utilised. Unrecognised deferred tax assets are reassessed at 37 7E A BB S 5 E AR T % ) DA U [B] 2 R sk 3R
the end of each reporting period and are recognised to the DIRLEFI BB ER T AR ©

extent that it has become probable that sufficient taxable
profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax
asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax EEMBEEERAENIRERHERANREIRE
rates that are expected to apply to the period when the asset ESEBEHRNBXRTE - WAFHREH
is realised or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax REBTHEDERHITHRER(LRFE)AE
laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the % o

end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if a EEMIBEEEIELEHRBEEEE B0
legally enforceable right exists to set off current tax assets BEERFARMBFIEEEHKENESHRES
against current tax liabilities and the deferred taxes relate to BRI R ITEERER » BIEEFIBEE S & [E
the same taxable entity and the same taxation authority. — RN ERERE RIS HE -
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
IS FRR M5 ()

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2.4 FE2HBEMNES®)

POLICIES (Continued)

GOVERNMENT GRANTS

Government grants are recognised at their fair value where
there is reasonable assurance that the grant will be received
and all attaching conditions will be complied with. When the
grant relates to an expense item, it is recognised as income
on a systematic basis over the period that the costs, which
it is intended to compensate, are expensed. Where the grant
relates to an asset, the fair value is credited to a deferred
income account and is released to profit or loss over the
expected useful life of the relevant asset by equal annual
installments.

REVENUE RECOGNITION

Revenue is recognised when it is probable that the economic
benefits will flow to the Group and when the revenue can be
measured reliably, on the following bases:

(@) revenue from the sale of goods, when the significant
risks and rewards of ownership have been transferred
to the buyer, provided that the Group maintains neither
managerial involvement to the degree usually associated
with ownership, nor effective control over the goods
sold;

(b)  contract revenue from the construction contracts on the
percentage of completion basis, as further explained in
the accounting policy “Construction contracts” below;

(c) handling fee income from factoring services, when the
relevant services have been rendered,;

(d) rental income, on a time proportion basis over the lease
terms;

(e) interest income, on an accrual basis using the effective
interest method by applying the rate that exactly
discounts the estimated future cash receipts over the
expected life of the financial instrument or a shorter
period, when appropriate, to the net carrying amount of
the financial asset; and

(f)  dividend income, when the shareholders’ right to receive
payment has been established.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 24 FEE:HEHE@H)
POLICIES (Continued)

CONSTRUCTION CONTRACTS IREHN

Contract revenue comprises the agreed contract amount EHRABEHNESNESBRLEKRABEITS
and appropriate amounts from variation orders, claims and Z’j EF'%&;%&ZL SH c CELEBHK
incentive payments. Contract costs incurred comprise direct REFEEEME - 9BEKA  BEELTIUR
materials, the costs of subcontracting, direct labour and an ZE) K EF LRREEK AR B o
appropriate proportion of variable and fixed construction

overheads.

When the outcome of a construction contract can be MIRANNGERER S:TE > KEET
estimated reliably, contract revenue from a fixed price BRIBAEAONAVWMAFERTRKAD LS
construction contract is recognised using the percentage of IR IR RETIRESEEL S LKA
completion method, measured by reference to the proportion EHEBE NI AR AEETE - Itk
of contract costs incurred for work performed to date relative WK TIZTTRPEEREFBRIN c X TIZM
to the estimated total cost of the relevant contract, except BHE  HRRLES N eES NN St
where this would not be representative of the stage of ERRAARKBZESENBERLTAEA
completion. Variations in contract work, claims and incentive HR o

payments are included to the extent that the amount can be
measured reliably and its receipt is considered probable.

Where the outcome of a construction contract cannot be i TRRB LM% BER] AT E - AW
estimated reliably, contract revenue is recognised to the ANELATT A H&@E’JE;‘*%E HIPK A B T
extent of contract costs incurred that is probable will be R BHIKARELBEER AR -

recoverable. Contract costs are recognised as expenses in the
period in which they are incurred.

When it is probable that total contract costs will exceed total B EA DK AR A RERR H AR S KU AR - Bl
contract revenue, the expected loss is recognised as an TEERES B A RN ER AR -
expense immediately.
Where contract costs incurred to date plus recognised profits MZSEEENE LRI R SMNE D
less recognised losses exceed progress billings, the surplus RERBIBEEDE  BEAKRERARE
is treated as amounts due from customers for contract work. WEFHAATIZHIE - WEERERIBE
Where progress billings exceed contract costs incurred to SEEES KNS #ERE MR BRE
date plus recognised profits less recognised losses, the B BHEBBREEAENEENAHNIRER
surplus is treated as amounts due to customers for contract 15 ©
work.
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104

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

EMPLOYEE BENEFITS

Pension schemes

In accordance with the relevant laws and regulations, the
Group's employees participate in various defined contribution
plans and state-management retirement benefit plans in
the countries in which the Group operates. Payments to
these plans, where the Group’s obligations under them are
equivalent to a defined contribution plan, are recognised as
an expense when employees have rendered service entitling
them to the contributions.

Share option schemes

The fair value of the employee services received in exchange
for the grant of options is recognised as an expense and
credited to share option reserve under equity. For grant of
share options, the total amount to be expensed over the
vesting period is determined by reference to the fair value of
the options at the date on which they are granted by using a
binomial model, excluding the impact of any service condition
and non-market vesting conditions. Non-market vesting
conditions are included in assumptions about the number of
options that are expected to become vested.

At the end of the reporting period, the Group revises its
estimates of the number of options that are expected to
ultimately vest. It recognises the impact of the revision
of original estimates, if any, in the Group's profit or loss
and makes a corresponding adjustment to equity over the
remaining vesting period. When the options are exercised, the
proceeds received net of any directly attributable transaction
costs are credited to share capital (at nominal value) and share
premium.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 24 FEE:HEHE@H)

POLICIES (Continued)

BORROWING COSTS

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, i.e., assets
that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready
for their intended use or sale, are capitalised as part of the
cost of those assets. The capitalisation of such borrowing
costs ceases when the assets are substantially ready for
their intended use or sale. Investment income earned on
the temporary investment of specific borrowings pending
their expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from the
borrowing costs capitalised. All other borrowing costs are
expensed in the period in which they are incurred. Borrowing
costs consist of interest and other costs that an entity incurs
in connection with the borrowing of funds.

DIVIDENDS

Dividends are recognised as a liability and deducted
from equity when they are declared and approved by the
Company’'s shareholders in general meetings. Interim
dividends are deducted from equity when they are declared
and approved, and no longer at the discretion of the Company.

FOREIGN CURRENCIES

The Company's functional currency is HK dollar while the
Company’s presentation currency for the financial statements
is Renminbi. In preparing the financial statements of each
individual group entity, transactions in currencies other than
the entity’s functional currency (foreign currencies) are
recognised at the rates of exchange prevailing at the dates
of the transactions. At the end of each reporting period,
monetary items denominated in foreign currencies are
retranslated at the rates prevailing at that date. Non-monetary
items carried at fair value that are denominated in foreign
currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing at the date
when the fair value was determined. Non-monetary items that
are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency
are not retranslated.
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SN
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

FOREIGN CURRENCIES (Continued)
Exchange differences on monetary items are recognised in
profit or loss in the period in which they arise except for:

° exchange differences on foreign currency borrowings
relating to assets under construction for future
productive use, which are included in the cost of those
assets when they are regarded as an adjustment to
interest costs on those foreign currency borrowings;

o exchange differences on transactions entered into in
order to hedge certain foreign currency risks; and

o exchange differences on monetary items receivable
from or payable to a foreign operation for which
settlement is neither planned nor likely to occur
(therefore forming part of the net investment in the
foreign operation), which are recognised initially in other
comprehensive income and reclassified from equity to
profit or loss on repayment of the monetary items.

For the purposes of presenting consolidated financial
statements, the assets and liabilities of the Group’s foreign
operations are translated into Renminbi using exchange
rates prevailing at the end of each reporting period. Income
and expense items are translated at the average exchange
rates for the period. Exchange differences arising, if any, are
recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated
in equity under the heading of exchange fluctuation reserve
(attributed to non-controlling interests as appropriate).

On the disposal of a foreign operation, all of the exchange
differences accumulated in equity in respect of that operation
attributable to the owners of the Company are reclassified to
profit or loss.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments to identifiable assets
acquired and liabilities assumed through acquisition of a
foreign operation _areEtreéted as assets and liabilities of the
foreign operation and translated at the rate of exchange
prevailing at the end of each reporting period. Exchange
differences arising are recognised in other comprehensive
income.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND ESTIMATES

The preparation of the Group’s financial statements requires
management to make judgements, estimates and assumptions
that affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses,
assets and liabilities and their accompanying disclosures, and
the disclosure of contingent liabilities. Uncertainty about these
assumptions and estimates could result in outcomes that could
require a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of the
assets or liabilities affected in the future.

JUDGEMENT

Deferred tax liabilities

Deferred income tax liabilities have not been established for
income tax and withholding tax that would be payable on
certain profits of the subsidiaries in the PRC to be repatriated
and distributed by way of dividends as the directors consider
that the timing of the reversal of the related temporary
differences can be controlled and such temporary differences
will not be reversed in the foreseeable future.

If these undistributed earnings of the subsidiaries in the
PRC are considered to be repatriated and distributed by
way of dividends, the deferred income tax charge and
deferred income tax liability would have been increased by
the same amount of approximately RMB253,821,000 (2014:
RMB248,872,000).

ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key
sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting
period, that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
within the next financial year, are described below.

Impairment of trade and other receivables

The Group's provision policy for doubtful debts is based on
the ongoing evaluation of the collectability and aged analysis
of the outstanding receivables and on the management’'s
judgement. A considerable amount of judgement is required
in assessing the ultimate realisation of these receivables,
including creditworthiness and the past collection history
of each customer. If the financial conditions of the Group's
customers were to deteriorate, resulting in an impairment
of their ability to make payments, additional impairment may
be required. At the end of reporting period, an accumulated
impairment loss of RMB81,077,000 (2014: RMB40,556,000)
has been recognised for trade receivables.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND ESTIMATES (Continued)

ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

Provision for obsolete inventories

The Group reviews the aged analysis of its inventories at
the end of each reporting period, and makes provision for
obsolete and slow moving inventory items identified that
are no longer suitable for use/sale. The Group estimates the
net realisable value for such inventories based primarily on
the latest invoice prices and current market conditions. At
the end of reporting period, an accumulated provision for
obsolescence of RMB91,792,000 (2014: RMB43,228,000) has
been recognised for inventories.

Fair value of investment properties

The best evidence of fair value is current prices in an active
market for properties in the same location and condition and
subject to similar leases and other contracts. In the absence
of such information, management determines the amount
within a range of reasonable fair value estimates. In making
its judgement, management considers information from a
variety of sources, including (i) independent valuations; (ii)
current prices in an active market for properties of a different
nature, condition and location (or subject to different leases
or other contracts), adjusted to reflect those differences; (iii)
recent prices of similar properties in less active markets, with
adjustments to reflect any changes in economic conditions
since the dates of transactions that occurred at those prices;
(iv) discounted cash flow projections, based on reliable
estimates of future cash flows, derived from the terms of any
existing lease and other contracts, and (where possible) from
external evidence such as current market rates for similar
properties in the same location and condition, and using
discount rates that reflect current market assessments of the
uncertainty in the amount and timing of cash flows.

Details of the judgement and assumptions involved in
determining the fair value of the Group’s investment
properties have been disclosed in note 14 to the financial
statements. :
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4. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION

The Group is principally engaged in the manufacture and sale
of building materials and interior decoration products; and the
provision of factoring services. For management purposes,
the Group's businesses are organised by geographical areas
based on the location of the customers and assets are
attributable to the geographical unit based on the location
of the assets. The Group has eight reportable operating
segments as follows:

(i)

(iv)

(vi)

(vii)

Southern China, including Guangdong Province, Guangxi
Zhuang Autonomous Region, Hunan Province, Fujian
Province and Hainan Province;

Southwestern China, including Chongging Municipality,
Sichuan Province, Guizhou Province, Yunnan Province
and Xizang (Tibet) Autonomous Region;

Central China, including Hubei Province, Jiangxi Province
and Henan Province;

Eastern China, including Shanghai Municipality, Jiangsu
Province, Zhejiang Province and Anhui Province;

Northern China, including Beijing Municipality, Tianjin
Municipality, Hebei Province, Shandong Province, Inner
Mongolia Autonomous Region and Shanxi Province;

Northwestern China, including Shaanxi Province, Ningxia
Hui Autonomous Region, Qinghai Province, Gansu
Province and Xinjiang Uygur Autonomous Region;

Northeastern China, including Liaoning Province, Jilin
Province and Heilongjiang Province; and

(viii) Qutside China.
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OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

Management monitors the results of its operating segments
separately for the purpose of making decisions about
resources allocation and performance assessment. Segment
performance is evaluated based on reportable segment
profit, which is a measure of adjusted profit before tax. The
adjusted profit before tax is measured consistently with the
Group's profit before tax except that changes in fair value of
investment properties, exchange differences, finance costs,
interest income, gain on early redemption of held-to-maturity
investments, investment income, share of result of a joint
venture and other unallocated income and expenses are
excluded from such measurement.

Segment assets exclude interest in a joint venture, held-to-
maturity investments, available-for-sale investments, deferred
tax assets, cash and bank deposits and other unallocated head
office and corporate assets as these assets are managed on a
group basis.

Intersegment revenue is eliminated on consolidation.
Intersegment sales and transfers are transacted with
reference to the selling prices used for sales made to third
parties at the then prevailing market prices.

The Group’'s revenue from external customers is derived from
its operations in the mainland China, special administrative
regions of the PRC and foreign countries.

During the years ended 31 December 2015 and 2014, no
revenue from transactions with a single external customer
amounted to 10% or more of the Group’s total revenue.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
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4. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 4. &R&5IREEH)

OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION FOR THE YEAR BZ2015F 12831 LFENEE DB
ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2015 &
Southern  Southwestern Central Eastern Northern  Northwestern  Northeastern Outside
China China China China China China China China  Eliminations Consolidated
g FELE Em £33 £ ALHE RLBE HEEH f# &8

RMB'000  RMB00  RMB00  RMB000  RWB000  RMB000  RMB000  RMB000  RMB000  RMB'000
ARRTR  ARMTR  ARBTR  ARBTR  ARNMTR  ARMTR  ARMTR  ARRTR  ARRTR  ARETR

Segment revenue: YA
Sales to external customers NERFHE 9,046,199 1,386,118 1,576,233 838,664 976,207 601,410 320,496 453,082 - 15,198,409
Intersegment sales AoHEE 1,899,833 212,862 351,981 87,818 120,655 105,044 80,778 504,905 (3,423,876) -
10,946,032 1,658,980 1,928,214 926,482 1,096,862 706,454 401,274 957,987 (3,423,876) 15,198,409

Revenue from construction TEAN

contracts WA 64,497 - - - - - - - - 64,497
Handling fee income and RERERHEZ

Interest income from FEBNER

factoring services kL 1,495 - - - - - - - - 1,495
Total At 11,012,024 1,658,980 1,928,214 926,482 1,096,862 706,454 401,274 957,987 (3,423,876) 15,264,401
Segment results AH%E 2,833,026 419,184 580,776 199,592 269,017 132,559 70,040 72,002 (638,625) 3,937,571
Reconciliations: HE-
(Gain on fair value changes of REMELAERE

investment properties 29l 55
Exchange loss EiER (114,516)
Finance costs BERK (87,323
Interest income ek 82,248
Investment income REhE 2,426
Share of profit of ajoint venture ~ HE—THABAERR 1,101
Unallocated income and expenses &4 EME RS (1,756,891)
Profit before tax RHAER 2,064,671
Segment assets ik 7,317,952 974,045 1,046,339 805,163 634,496 566,085 443,009 820,793 - 12,607,882
Reconciliations: i
Interest in a joint venture R-HAELENER 1175
Held-to-maturity investments BERIHRE 62,435
Available-for-sale investments JEEERE 48,363
Deferred tax assets EREHEEE 29,124
Cash and bank deposits RERBAER 3,893,544
Total assets EESE 16,649,123
Other segment information: HpaHEn
Depreciation and amortisation REREH 267,173 51,828 63,675 29,069 29,453 37,061 15,225 7,631 - 501,115
Impairment of property, plant, W% BERAE

and equipment i - - - - - - - 319 - 379
Impairment of trade receivables, net W%Wﬁxlﬁiﬁgfﬁ\}?%ﬁ 8,194 - 5,456 - 161 923 23,110 5,733 - 43517

Write-down/{write-back) of

inventories to net realisable value 41,208 - 1,161 641 3,961 573 1,601 (581) - 48,564
Capital expenditure* EXRY 763,250 112,167 74,645 230,291 140,617 2m 2,083 337,051 (24980) 1,657,341
& Capital expenditure consists of additions to property, plant and g ﬁzﬁﬁﬁﬁ BENEWME  BWENMRE  BELH
equipment, prepaid land lease payments, investment properties and HER REVEREMBEE -
other intangible assets.
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4. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 4. R&5IER (&)

OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION FOR THE YEAR HZE2014F12A3MB L FENEE I TE
ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2014 #
Southem  Southwestern Central Eastemn Northern ~ Northwestern  Northeastern QOutside
China China China China China China China China ~ Eliminations ~ Consolidated
£f ErtE b B3 £ EitE iR REED i 5

RMBOOO  RMBOOO  RMBO0O  RMBOOO  RMBOOD  RMBOOD  RMBOOO  RMBOOO  RMBOD  RMB'000
ABETR  ARETn ARETn ARETR ARETR ARETm ARETm ARETR ARETR  ARETR

Segment revenue: AHUA
Sales to external customers NIBRFHE 8,560,750 1,444,531 1,675,898 733,953 1,018,436 574,801 389,072 454,603 - 14,752,044
Intersegment sales HiEHE 2,220,060 296,209 284,594 88,225 167,572 109,339 96,622 267,959 (3,530,580) S
10,780,810 1,740,740 1,860,492 822,178 1,186,008 684,140 485,694 722,562 (3,530,580 14,752,044

Revenue from construction I84H

contracts WA 70,728 - - - - - - - - 70,728
Total At 10,851,638 1,740,740 1,860,492 822,178 1,186,008 684,140 485,694 722,562 (3,530,580) 14,822,772
Segment results ARER 2,820,806 392,196 465,285 170,528 287,653 116,226 83,924 54,003 (589,887) 3,800,734
Reconciliations: HiE:
Exchange loss EXFE (6,578)
Finance costs BERK (233,071)
Interest income filVes 74,116
(Gain on early redemption of REEEOABZISE

held-to-maturity investments BFETR 3,194
Investment income b e 1793
Share of profit of ajointventure ~ HE—FAELEER 398
Unallocated income and expenses  RARMERER 1,793,793)
Profit before tax BEaER 1,846,793
Segment assets AHEE 6,613,198 970,751 1,017,488 568,227 556,917 586,614 492,050 405,507 - 11,200,752
Reconciliations: Hik:
Interest in a joint venture R-HRELENER 6,074
Held-to-maturity investments BEEHERE 60,757
Available-for-sale investments MEHERE 39,466
Deferred tax assets EREHEEE 13577
Cash and bank deposits RERBAER 3,198,902
Total assets EELE 14,519,528
Other segment information: EHABER !
Depreciation and amortisation FERBH 222,545 35,638 50,845 25272 29,862 39,052 29,629 7,037 - 439,780
Impairment of tratle receivables, net & SENZERETE 696 5 1975 = (465) 5 = 3420 5 5,626
Writesdown of inventories to HAFEZTER

net realisable value d FE 31,000 - - - - - - 2,380 - 33,380
Capital expenditure® ERER 702,074 63,795 177,789 7772 62,730 208,798 34,812 59,805 (24,018) 1,363,512

V \'
# Capital expend[tur c rxmstsl of additions to property, plant and & BARAZBIERBEYE  BEREE - B
equipment, prepald Irnd(ieemyments and other intangible assets. HERREMERLEE -
-
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
IS RER M5 ()

5. REVENUE, OTHER REVENUE, INCOME AND 5. WA - Eftg A - hF R FIZH

GAINS
Revenue represents the net invoiced value of goods WARREANHEEERNBERBEFHE -
sold, after allowances for returns and trade discounts; an INBIRE REB ST T4 &4

appropriate proportion of contract revenue from construction
contracts; and handling fee income and interest income from

ABBEE R D RRBRERS 2 FEE K

factoring services during the year. K F) Bk as o
An analysis of the Group's revenue, other revenue, income NEBMITA ~ Hal A - Iz Rz D
and gains is as follows: T :
2015 2014
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T AREETFTT
Revenue LN
Sale of goods HEEMD 15,198,409 14,752,044
Revenue from construction contracts TRRELHWA 64,497 70,728
Handling fee income and interest income RERERE Y, FEEWRER
from factoring services LB E 1,495 -
15,264,401 14,822,772
Other revenue, income and gains HW A - Wk Flz
Bank interest income HRITH B Mz 72,421 36,378
Interest income from held-to-maturity investments 354 2 3| HR1% & HF Sl 25 9,827 37,738
Total interest income A B W 4aE 82,248 74,116
Government grants and subsidies AT R BY B R B 20,110 22,157
Gain on fair value changes of investment properties &2 N 1 B EF B2 55 -
Gain on early redemption of held-to-maturity RPELOBEZRIE
investments B FSH = - 3,194
Investment income KE W 2,426 1,793
Others EHh 15,088 14,856
119,927 116,116
Government grants and subsidies mainly represented funding BT B R B ER A
received from government authorities to support certain of EREBRETHEIHNES - W EF( R
the Group's research and development activities. There are no %N:K . - e (e e
unfulfilled conditions or contingencies related to these grants % S B MR B B R AR AR B 15
and subsidies. o
6. FINANCE COSTS 6. BMERAK
2015 2014
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥T ARETT
Interest on: TN EIEHAE
Bank and other loans RITRHEAME K 87,733 72,701
The Senior Notes BHLEE - 67,600
Total interest expenses A ERX B 87,733 140,301
Premium and unamortised issuance REBLOELZEN
expenses arising from the early i B RRH B BT
redemption of the Senior Notes 53 - 92,770
87,733 233,071
Less: Interest capitalised W BERMEF A (410) =
87,323 233,071
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
IS FRR M5 ()

7. PROFIT BEFORE TAX 7. BREANZEF
The Group's profit before tax is arrived at after charging/ AEBRBR T ADS M TR (G A) T 5
(crediting): FIRBE
2015 2014
Note RMB’000 RMB'000
L= AR¥TR ARETT
Cost of inventories sold BEEFERAR 11,225,023 10,925,108
Direct cost of construction work TRREEKA 53,243 63,550
Depreciation e 12 467,004 408,915
Amortisation of prepaid land lease payments  FEA 1 170 & i 44 13 22,362 21,608
Amortisation of other intangible assets EMERE E 11,749 9,257
Total depreciation and amortisation WER#NERE 501,115 439,780
Research and development costs* i 3% B A 447,346 457,850
Loss on disposal of items of land, RELTH HMEREEMN
other intangible assets and property, plant ME - WEKEREBEE
and equipment 0] =] 12,357 6,690
Minimum lease payments under operating 3 BRI FRLTHER
leases in respect of land and buildings ®EHE 32,419 23,136
Auditors’ remuneration 1% B R 2 B 4,598 4,476
Employee benefit expense (including EERNAX (BEEEEHMH
directors’ remuneration (note 8)): (fH5E8)) -
Wages and salaries I&NES 531,821 559,886
Pension scheme contributions RIKSFTEIHER 47,781 52,900
Staff welfare and other expenses BTRMNEMEAS 43,899 48,768
623,501 661,554
Write-down of inventories to net realisable Mgz & % r] &7
value FE 48,564 33,380
Impairment of trade receivables, net* B 5 e W SR R (B F R 19 43,577 5,626
Impairment of property, plant and ME - BE KRE
equipment IE? 12 379 =
Changes in fair value of investment properties & ¥ % A 1 (B 14 (55) =
Net rental income el FE (1,434) (452)
Foreign exchange differences, net [E 5 =B Hem 114,516 6,578
# These items are incldfded in the “other expenses” in profit or loss. # ZEBBIMNBSEAN [HEmfAZ ] o
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
IS ERR M5 ()

8. DIRECTORS’' REMUNERATION AND FIVE 8 EEHFMEiBERaFMES
HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES

(A) DIRECTORS’' REMUNERATION (A) E=FH
Directors’ remuneration for the year, disclosed RIEER TR EES R TIEME
pursuant to the applicable Listing Rules and Hong Kong BICENESHMEIWOT -

Companies Ordinance, is as follows:

2015 2014
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥T T AREFTT
Fees e 2,829 2,453
Other emoluments: HmE

Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind ~ ¥i& - EB R EWEF] 4,558 3,672
Performance related bonuses RIFBMHTEAT 3,315 2,972
Pension scheme contributions RIS B 257 246
8,130 6,890
10,959 9,343
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
IS FRR M5 ()

8. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION AND FIVE 8 E=E=FMERIESESTEMES @)
HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES (Continued)

(A) DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION (Continued) (A) ESHME)
The remuneration of each of the directors is set out REEMHBEHYOT -
below:
Salaries,
allowances  Performance Pension
and benefits related scheme
Fees in kind bonuses  contributions Total
A4
fig RENEN  RRANTA BASHEMR @t
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000
2015 ARET R ARET R N A ARET T ARET R
Executive directors: 78S
Mr. Wong Luen Hei BEELE - 579 422 14 1,015
Mr. Zuo Manlun Iy | - 573 421 30 1,030
Ms. Zuo Kiaoping EEERT - 579 42 14 1,015
Mr. Lai Zhigiang Brang - 600 400 # 1,041
Mr. Kong Zhaocong KB E - 600 400 41 1,041
Mr. Chen Guonan BBl 579 - 422 2 1,025
Dr. Lin Shaoquan o2t - 1,027 - 17 1,044
Mr. Huang Guirong Y-t it - 600 400 62 1,062
Mr. Luo Jianfeng Bplkss 579 - 422 14 1,015
1,158 4,558 3,315 257 9,288
Non-executive director: FYTES:
Mr. Lin Dewei WEETE 366 = = - 366
Independent Bukgm

non-executive directors: S
Mr. Fung Pui Cheung BEELE 261 - - - 261
Mr. Wong Kwok Ho,

Jonathan IAR%E 261 - - o 261
Mr. Cheung Man Yu FLFhE 261 - - - 261
Ms. Lan Fang' BELL! 261 - - - 261
Dr. Tao Zhigang? BERIEL 87 - - - 87
Dr. Baj Chongen? HEBMELS 174 = = = 174
Mr. Gao Lixin* N - - - - -

( 1,305 - - - 1,305
2,829 4,558 3315 257 10,959
P Appointed as independent non-executive director on 1 R2015F1 A1 BEZEABYIERNITES
1 January:20156 :
Z Appointed as independent non-executive director on 2 M2015F9 A1 HEZERBIIENITES
1 September 2015
8 Resigned as independent non-executive director on 3 M2015F9 A1 HBHEB L IERNITES
1 September 2015
g Resigned as independent non-executive director on 4 M2015%1 A1 BEEBLIENTES

1 January 2015

1 1 6 China Lesso Group Holdings Limited & BB Y8 &£ @12 R AR A T
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
IS ERR M5 ()

8. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION AND FIVE 8 EEFMIrIEZHaSFMNEERS @
HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES (Continued)

(A) DIRECTORS’' REMUNERATION (Continued) (A) EE=HM(E)
Salaries,
allowances  Performance Pension
and benefits related scheme
Fees in kind bonuses  contributions Total
e 2
#e REWERH  RRAMEL  RASHEEN Bt
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
2014 ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETT
Executive directors: #TEE.
Mr. Wong Luen Hei EERE - 570 21 13 814
Mr. Zuo Manlun Lkt - 524 275 27 826
Ms. Zuo Xiaoping Xt - 570 231 13 814
Mr. Lai Zhigiang BEaks - 300 500 kX! 833
Mr. Kong Zhaocong KB - 300 500 kX! 833
Mr. Chen Guonan REmLE 238 60 504 45 847
Dr. Lin Shaoguan o2t - 1,048 - 9 1,067
Mr. Huang Guirong EERLE - 300 500 60 860
Mr. Luo Jianfeng BRERE 570 = 21 13 814
808 3,672 2972 246 7,698
Non-executive director: FHES:
Mr. Lin Dewei WEERE 360 = 5 5 360
Independent Buam

non-executive directors: N
Mr. Fung Pui Cheung BEELE 257 - - 5 257
Mr. Wong Kwok Ho,

Jonathan TERLE 257 - - - 257
Mr. Cheung Man Yu RXFEE 257 - - - 257
Dr. Bai Chongen HERRL 257 = = = 257
Mr. Gao Lixin SUMLE 257 = 5 5 257

1,285 - - - 1,285
2,453 3,672 2972 246 9,343
Annual Report 2015 4§ 1 1 7



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
IS ERR M5 ()

8.

9.

118

DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION AND FIVE 8.

HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES (Continued)
(A) DIRECTORS’' REMUNERATION (Continued)

No director waived or agreed to waive any emolument
and no emoluments were paid by the Group to the
directors as an inducement to join or upon joining the
Group or as compensation for loss of office.

There were no other emoluments paid or payable to the
independent non-executive directors during the year
(2014: Nil).

(B) FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES
The Group's five highest paid employees during the year
were all directors. Details of the remuneration of these
directors during the year are set out in note 8(A) above.

EEFMREERRESHFMES @)

(A) EEHME)
MESEHEIFAERETAME -
MAKENEQSSBNBAEERE
MBAEEERERBMEMRE
EXfHEMBE -

FABMESNRENTBELIERTE
EMEMEMEE (20145 : &) o

(B) LEREFMESR
FRAEEIEREFMEESS
B REAZFEFOHESHBH
P ECPREB(A) ©

INCOME TAX EXPENSE 9. FBHHEX
2015 2014
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARET T AREFIT
Current Tax BNHAFR I8

Hong Kong BE - 1,999
PRC H 408,266 368,442
Other jurisdiction Hib xR 88 442
408,354 370,883

Overprovision in prior years BAEEBERE
PRC 2] (14,097) (50,157)
Deferred Tax (note 26) EERTE (M 5E26) 51,964 (14,291)
Total tax charge for the year FARIBEEE 446,221 306,435

The Group is subject to income tax on an entity basis on
profits arising in or derived from the jurisdictions in which
members of the Group are domiciled and operate.

HONG KONG PROFITS TAX

Hong Kong profitsdax has been provided at the rate of 16.5%
on the estimated assessable profits arising in Hong Kong
for both years, if any, dfter offsetting the tax loss brought
forward. ' |

,
.|
:
B
1 * i

.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
IS RER M5 ()

INCOME TAX EXPENSE (Continued)

PRC CORPORATE INCOME TAX

The Group's income tax provision in respect of its operations
in mainland China has been calculated at the applicable tax
rates on the taxable profits for both years, based on the
existing legislation, interpretations and practices in respect
thereof.

Certain of the Group’'s PRC subsidiaries are qualified as
High and New Technology Enterprises and are entitled to
preferential corporate income tax rate of 15% during both
years.

INCOME TAX FOR OTHER JURISDICTIONS

The Group's tax provision in respect of other jurisdictions has
been calculated at the applicable tax rates in accordance with
the prevailing practices of the jurisdictions in which the Group
operates.

A reconciliation of the tax expense applicable to profit before
tax at the statutory rate for the jurisdiction in which the
majority of the Company’s subsidiaries are domiciled to the
tax expense at the effective tax rate is as follows:

FriEBiF > (#)

HEIEAREH
AEECREMEFERRERBIGEH - AR
MORALE  REMEIREE  RER
BERGFFE B A EF A EHEE -

AEBETRENBATRAEFESTS
AR EEN  UTFI5%NERLE
FEHIE o

b AR B RA
A BB M AR 2 BB B R DR
BT E R AARERTE Pl
ARELE -

RAANRBIKEED KB R R ATE RDA R A
FE B SR S E RO IR A R0 BR B BT A A9 B TR B S
HRERR R EOR BRI OHENT ¢

2015 2014
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®ET ARET T
Profit before tax [ %5 AT S ) 2,064,671 1,846,793
Tax at the PRC corporate income tax rate ZPEPEMEHEB%TE
of 25% op el 516,168 461,698
Effect of tax concessions for certain ETHBARBIEESR
subsidiaries ok (215,365) (193,088)
Share of profit of a joint venture DME—HEELEEF (275) (99)
Income not subject to tax BART W = (1,813) (9,458)
Expenses not deductible for tax NATHOFL R 2 24,841 40,444
Tax losses utilised from prior years e AR BEFEERIESE (3,380) (2,871)
Tax losses not recognised RIERTIAE B 48,274 47,773
Adjustments in respect of current tax RBAEFEFERM
of prior years e H R (14,097) (50,157)
Effect of withholding tax at 5% on AR R A B E A A
the distributable profits of the Company’s A] 591K Y42 FI 25 % UK
subsidiaries in the PRC TEIRFTIS B & 91,868 12,193
Tax charge at the Group's effective rate BAEEERBERGFERNRIEST H 446,221 306,435
Annual Report 2015 4§ 1 1 9



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
IS ERR M5 ()

10. DIVIDENDS 10. RE
2015 2014
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARMT T ARBT T
Dividends recognised as distributions RERNER AT REOIE :
during the year: 2014 final — HK13 cents 2014F REAR B —FK
(2014: 2013 final - HK12 cents) LmAR 138 (201445 -
per ordinary share 2013F RHEAMR B —12810) 318,861 295,460
Subsequent to the end of the reporting period, final dividend RIEBRE  EFEZHEMRBE2015512
of HK13 cents in respect of the year ended 31 December ASTHIEFEIRMN KRR EFRE M3
2015 (2014: final dividend of HK13 cents in respect of the BA(2014%F : HE2014F 128318 IEF
year ended 31 December 2014) per ordinary share has been EH RIS FREBARNIBA) - HEERF
proposed by the directors and is subject to approval by the RERREEREBFRE EHER - FEIR
Shareholders at the forthcoming annual general meeting. fF o

11. EARNINGS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE TO 11. XAREEAEBLESRER
OWNERS OF THE COMPANY

The calculations of the basic and the diluted earnings per BEATSEFESREARESAF
share are based on:

2015 2014
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®T AR®ET T
Earnings 2R
Profit attributable to owners of STE SR E AR B R TR
the Company used in the basic BENARREHEE A
and diluted earnings per share calculation FE(L = T 1,621,117 1,554,024
4
=
| |: o
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
IS ERR M5 ()

11. EARNINGS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE TO 11. RXAREEAELERAERN &)

OWNERS OF THE COMPANY (Continued)

Number of Shares

RHGHE
2015 2014
Shares 4]
Weighted average number of ordinary shares SESRETANERIMN
of the Company in issue used in the basic eamings ANREETL BRI
per share calculation FH¥ 3,110,255,400 3,099,037,511
Effect of dilution — weighted average number of BEaE-LTRRINETHE
ordinary shares: share options Bhig - 6,541,402
3,110,255,400 3,105,578,913

The weighted average number of shares used to calculate
the basic earnings per share for the year ended 31 December
2015 includes 3,110,255,400 ordinary shares in issue as at 31
December 2014 (2014: 3,075,731,740 ordinary shares in issue
as at 31 December 2013). The calculation for the year ended
31 December 2014 also included 23,305,771 shares derived
from the weighted average number of ordinary shares of
34,523,660 ordinary shares issued upon the exercise of share
options.

The calculation of the diluted earnings per share amounts is
based on the profit for the year attributable to owners of the
Company. The weighted average number of ordinary shares
used in the calculation is the number of ordinary shares in
issue during the year, as used in the basic earnings per share
calculation, and the weighted average number of ordinary
shares assumed to have been issued at no consideration on
the deemed exercise or conversion of all dilutive potential
ordinary shares into ordinary shares.

FALGTEEE2015F12 A31 B IEFEW
BREABFOBROMEFLFSE  BER
2014512 A31BE#77/93,110,255,400
f% LB (20144 © 201312 A31H
B3 1TH93,075,731,740 8 L@ML) - HE
201412 AN B IEFENZFTENBRE
23,305,7710& B& 17+ R B 175 BB AR i 1% 3%
7TH)34,523,660 % I i A% /9 3 18 A% hn 4
BHE -

SREBRNBEIIRBEARRREE ARG
FREMNFTE o FHEMANE B IEFS
BRFAERTMNEBEREUE (B EEK
EXBNAERERR)  REXRAEEE
EE L B AR ETT S R S B A A
TREZTHLBBINEFSE -
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
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12. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 12. Y%  BERKE

Furniture,
fixtures Construction
Land and Plantand  and office Motor  Leasehold in
buildings ~ machinery  equipment vehicles improvements progress Total
34 %E
THRET  BEREE RBAERE e RENERE EEIR @t
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETL  ARMTR  ARETR ARMTr  AR%Tn  ARETn  ARETR
Cost: A
At 1 January 2014 R2014F1 A1 1,961,121 2,381,176 75,733 120,976 6,143 936,024 5,481,173
Additions AE 68,274 128,493 18,846 30,627 422 913,544 1,160,206
Acquisitions of subsidiaries KEREAR 45,533 27,587 180 299 = 962 74,561
Transfers B 312,421 293,585 14,218 1474 - 621,698) -
Disposals if (6,157) (19,901) (2,121) (2,150) (2,591) (2,356) (35,276
Exchange realignment EREE k) 124 70 46 37 1 310
At 31 December 2014 and R20145128318 R
1 January 2015 201551418 2,381,224 2,811,064 106,926 151,272 4,01 1,226,477 6,680,974
Additions AE 43,689 152,619 53,820 8,673 823 754,055 1,013,679
Interest capitalised BALHE - - - - - 410 410
Acquisitions of subsidliaries NG
(note 32) (PH+32) 38,370 91,410 m 2,702 - 87,458 220,211
Transfers Eilcd 528,522 115,348 1,966 721 - (646,563) S
Disposals if (1,279) (22,016 (2,561) (19,210) (67) (366) (45,499
Exchange realignment EREE 988 (1.246) (484) 503 (762) 271 (730)
At 31 December 2015 R2016%12A31H 2,991,514 3,147,179 159,938 144,667 4,005 1,421,742 7,869,045
Accumulated depreciation and  ZiHHER
impairment; W
At 1 January 2014 R2014E1 718 (245,306) (677,905) (34,148) (68,616) 3,089) - (1,029,064)
Provided for the year RERHR (1208800 (223,969) (39,919) (23,681) (466 - (408.915)
Disposals e 5,136 10,044 1625 1473 2,591 - 20,869
Exchange realignment & 5 % 3 (99) (14) (128) (6) - 250)
At 31 December 2014 and R014E12A31B R
1 January 2015 201551718 (361,053) (891,929) (72,456) (90,952) (970) - (1,417,360)
Provided for the year RER:R (136226)  (296,209) (16,607) (16,940) 1,022) - (467,004)
Disposals e 1,153 8,076 2,390 14,871 - - 26,490
Impairment BB - (379) - - - - (379)
Exchange realignment 5 AE (182) 395 572 90) 325 = 1,020
At 31 Decemiber 2015 #2016%12R31H (496,308)  (1,180,046) (86,101) (93,111) (1,667) - (1,857,233)
Net carrying amount: REEE:
At 31 December 2015 R2015F12731H 2,495,206 1,967,133 73,837 51,556 2,338 1421742 6,011,812
At 31 December 2014 #2014%12R31H 2,020,171 1,919,135 34,470 60,320 3,041 1226,477 5,263,614

Included in the Gl_'oub's‘ preperty, plant and equipment is a
freehold land which had a net carrying amount of RMB714,000
(2014: RMB673,000). The freehold land is situated outside
Hong Kong.

ATALREENYE - BEMEREZ KAERE
TH 2 BREFEAR ARKT714,0007T(2014
F: ARM673,0007T) ° Zok A EHELTIH
IR B BRI o
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
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13. PREPAID LAND LEASE PAYMENTS

13. A LHEER

2015 2014
Note RMB’000 RMB'000
B &E AR®T AREFT
At 1 January ®1HA1H 1,109,600 1,018,319
Additions NE 70,283 86,343
Acquisitions of subsidiaries U BE B B R ) 32 21,978 31,656
Disposals k= - (5,110)
Provided for the year REEFR 7 (22,362) (21,608)
Exchange realignment b 5 A 2,271 -
At 31 December ®12A31H 1,181,770 1,109,600
Analysed for reporting purpose as: HMEENDWA :
Non-current assets EREEE 1,157,926 1,087,126
Current assets included in FFAREBEER
prepayments, deposits and other BR®R - ek
receivables H fth FE Y SR IE 21 23,844 22,474
1,181,770 1,109,600
14. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES 14. BREWZE
RMB’000
AR¥T T
Carrying amount at 1 January 2014, R2014%F1 818 ~ 20145128318 K
31 December 2014 and 1 January 2015 20151 A1 B ZEMEE -
Additions NE 318,376
Changes in fair value NAEEZE 55
Carrying amount at 31 December 2015 M2015F12A31B 2 REE 318,431

The Group’'s investment properties represented the vacant
lands which are pending for development.

VALUATION PROCESSES

At the end of the reporting period, the Group's investment
properties were stated at fair value and were revalued by
American Appraisal (Thailand) Ltd., an independent firm of
professionally qualified valuers, at RMB318,431,000.

AEBZREVEREFRRIN=E=ESL
b o

HERRF

RBEBR - AEBNIREVERIAER
2% WH—HEYEENEERHEMNR
AlAmerican Appraisal (Thailand) Ltd. &%}
HEAARE318,431,0007T °
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14.

124

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued)

VALUATION PROCESSES (Continued)

Management appointed an external valuer to be responsible
for the valuations of the Group's investment properties.
Selection criteria of an external valuer include, but not limited
to, market knowledge, reputation and independence.

Management has reviewed the valuation result performed
by the external valuer for financial reporting purpose by
verifying all major inputs and assumptions, and assessing the
reasonableness of such valuation.

Further summary details of the Group's investment properties
are set out in the section headed “Summary of Investment
Properties” of this report.

VALUATION TECHNIQUE
The valuations of the Group's investment properties were
based on sales comparison approach.

Under the sales comparison approach, fair values of the
Group’s investment properties were estimated based on
recent sales and listings of comparable lands. Adjustments
were made for differences between the Group’s investment
properties and those actual sales and listings regarded as
comparable.

FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY

At the end of the reporting period, the Group’'s investment
properties were within level 3 of the fair value hierarchy
as their valuation was arrived at by reference to certain
significant unobservable inputs. There were no transfers into
or out of level 3 during the year.

1
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15. INTEREST IN A JOINT VENTURE 15. RA—BEEELENER
2015 2014
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARET T AREFIT
Share of net assets DIEEEFRE 7,175 6,074
Particulars of the joint venture are as follows: BEDENFBOT

Percentage of

FiEEAL
Place of
Registered registration Ownership Voting Profit Principal
Name capital and business interest power sharing activity
£ A EMREELY HEEES REE  ERF FEER
Guangdong Lesso EPCO RMB10,000,000 PRC 50 50 50 Provision of
Residential Equipment Design ~ AK#10,000,0007T sl household decoration
Services Co., Ltd.* design work and
B %HMXTEHE R maintenance services
REERA REFEEHRR
#ERB
The following table illustrates the information of the Group's TREVAREFNAEELDEEZNER -
interest in the joint venture:

2015 2014
RMB’000 RMB’'000
ARMEF T ARETTT

Share of joint venture's: DIEE %—fﬁé%
Profit from continuing operations BEKESERRT 1,101 398
Other comprehensive income Eamkes - -
Total comprehensive income ENE ey 1,101 398
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16. HELD-TO-MATURITY INVESTMENTS 16. HEEZZHKRE
2015 2014
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARYET T ARETTT
Debt securities, at amortised cost: BT ENERES
Listed in Hong Kong BEBLEm 55,784 24,072
Listed in Singapore ¥ronig £ 6,651 36,685
62,435 60,757
Analysed for reporting purpose as: MBEBERDWA :
Non-current assets EMEBEE 62,435 30,383
Current assets mENEE = 30,374
62,435 60,757
The held-to-maturity investments represent debt securities. BETIHITEAERES - LEBE
These securities carry fixed interest at 8.00% to 12.00% A EIEEEENZE8.00%E12.00% 5t
(2014: 8.00% to 13.00%) per annum, payable semi-annually H(2014F : 8.00% £13.00% ) ' B¥45&
in arrears, and will mature from April 2018 to February 2020 Y BR2018F 4 A E£20204F2 A B Hf
(2014: October 2015 to March 2019). (2014% : 20155108 E2019438) »
17. AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE INVESTMENTS 17. AIEHERE
2015 2014
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARMF T ARETTT
Listed equity investments, at fair value LIHRAKRE(RARER)
Hong Kong HB 43,238 39,466
Unlisted equity investments, at cost JE EIRAIRE (FRRAN)
PRC A 5,125 -
48,363 39,466
4
=
1=
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17. AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE INVESTMENTS 17. ot &€& & &)
(Continued)

The listed equity investments represent non-cumulative TR EIEIFERTELR - ZEELK
preference shares. These preference shares have no maturity WEERIEAA -

date.

The unlisted equity investments represent unlisted securities JEEMBRAERNARGFMK I NILEE
issued by private entities incorporated in the PRC. They BETHELMES - ARG ENAREE
are measured at cost less any impairment at the end of the A HELABEE  ARREZEREERR
reporting period because the range of reasonable fair value BEEZXO SIS @ ZFRE IRKANRE R
estimates is so significant that the directors are of the opinion EHREARETE

that their fair values cannot be measured reliably.

At the end of the reporting period, certain of the Group's RBEHR  AEELREEFEAARE
available-for-sale investments with an aggregate net carrying 34,608,0007T (20144 : AR ¥5,088,000
amount of RMB34,608,000 (2014: RMB5,088,000) were TRETAHEERECMRITERER
pledged to a bank to secure the banking facility granted. The ERBITREMNER - R2015F 12 A31
Group has not utilised this banking facility as at 31 December B ANEEBESHHZRETRME(2014F ¢
2015 (2014: Nil). ;) -
18. INVENTORIES 18. F&
2015 2014
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥T ARETT
Raw materials R 836,788 931,957
Work in progress HEEM 350,120 256,227
Finished goods B 1,019,635 1,021,854
2,206,543 2,210,038
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19.

128

TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES

19. EZRUNRERRERE

2015 2014

RMB’000 RMB'000

AR®T T AREFIT

Trade receivables H 5 WA 1,186,226 1,127,901
Bills receivable R E & 292,648 216,231
Less: Provision for impairment B ORERE (81,077) (40,556)
1,397,797 1,303,576

The Group's major customers are independent distributors,
civil contractors, property developers, utility companies and
municipalities in mainland China. Depending on the market
condition, marketing tactics and relationships with the
customers, the Group's trading terms with its independent
distributors may change from settlement on an advance
receipt basis to giving a credit period of generally one
month or more, if appropriate. The Group does not have a
standardised and universal credit period granted to the non-
distributor customers. The credit period of an individual non-
distributor customer is considered on a case-by-case basis and
is set out in the sales contracts, as appropriate. Sales to small,
new, or short-term customers are normally expected to be
settled on an advance receipt basis or shortly after the goods
delivery. No credit term period is set by the Group for small,
new and short-term customers.

Trade and bills receivables are unsecured and interest-free.
An aged analysis of the Group's trade and bills receivables at

the end of the reporting period, based on the invoice date and
net of provisions, is as follows:

AEENTREFPRTEAMNE L H
B IARTIEARRE BHERER - 28
EXRAB MNP - ARERFHR W
BRERETPHNAR  AISEEBYDHE
ENE B ERBRAN T AEEERAET
—R—EAXZEANERHR(WEE)
AEBEWES—FED AT PR TIREN
ERAIR - @RIZED HEEF OERHRER
FEBERME - X HE S RF 580
EE) o HHRE  REREPHNEE—
RIEMARN T AN R EREARNEH -
AREBWES/NRE  FIREHEPRILE
FAHEARR -

B RBFEREEARBEARLE -

RIERR  AEENE HRKFBRRE
HERBRINREBEROKEITAT

2015 2014

RMB’000 RMB'000

AR¥ET T ARETTT

Within 3 months 3MEAA 614,123 722,607
4 to 6 months 4Z6{E A 232,213 302,968
7 to 12 months 721218 A 330,126 173,891
1 to 2 years | 1225 190,723 93,031
2 to 3 years ! 2E34F 28,164 9,435
Over 3 years 3FLA L 2,448 1,644
1,397,797 1,303,576
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19. TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES (Continued) 19. EZERRHREREE @)

The movements in the provision for impairment of the Group's
trade receivables are as follows:

AEEE SEKFIENRERGENZ B0
T

2015 2014

RMB’000 RMB'000

ARET ARETIT

At 1 January ®1A1H 40,556 34,930
Impairment losses recognised (note 7) EERBEEE(ME7) 43,577 5,626
Amounts written off as uncollectible =TI A E X (3,056) -
At 31 December ®12A31H 81,077 40,556

The above provision of RMB81,077,000 (2014: RMB40,556,000)
is for individually impaired trade receivables with their aggregate
carrying amount before provision of RMB81,414,000 (2014:
RMB41,816,000). The individually impaired trade receivables
relate to customers that are in default or delinquency in
payments.

The aged analysis of the Group's trade and bills receivables
that are neither individually nor collectively considered to be
impaired is as follows:

| alt B 5 A R #681,077,0007C (20144 -
AR¥40,556,0007T) st #E 2 B BR E 4218
A ARBES1,414,0007T (2014F : AR
41,816,0007T) W{ERIREE 5 E U FRIA 1E
o ERIREE 5 G IR E 498k 38 KA
FHEFE@ -

AEBEHNMABRAEOTRREREER S
FEWR IR R R BRI A0 T -

2015 2014

RMB’000 RMB'000

AR¥T ARETIT

Neither past due nor impaired R R IR ARRE 905,606 922,937
Past due but not impaired: B EE N RRE -

Less than 3 months past due B HA D PSR A 151,195 199,637

4 to 6 months past due wmHIAZE6{E A 92,742 56,022

7 to 12 months past due wmE7E 1218 A 144,272 94,894

1 to 2 years past due BE1 B 24 97,204 22,273

2 to 3 years past due BMEA2E3F 5,421 6,653

Over 3 years past due BEAZEFLA F 1,020 -

1,397,460 1,302,316

Receivables that are neither past due nor impaired relate to a
large number of diversified customers for whom there is no
recent history of default.

Receivables that are past due but not impaired relate to
a number of independent customers that have a good
track record with the Group. Based on past experience,
the directors believe that no provision for impairment is
necessary in respect of these balances as there has not been
a significant change in credit quality and the balances are still
considered fully recoverable.

REBHTRBRENEBERIBERR S TNREP
B EeRPORMERsRLCE -

EAMERERENBUKRES TELIEP
B REEAKENRZHLHERT - RE
BERLR  EERR AREEREPEEE
ZVEBER(C BERKDBERAIBEW
B - i B % B A R R R (E A
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20.

130

RECEIVABLES FROM FACTORING SERVICES

The Group's receivables from factoring service arose from the
provision of factoring services to companies located in the
PRC. The credit period granted to each customer is generally
within 365 days.

Receivables from factoring services were secured by
receivables and/or commercial bills originally owned by
customers. These receivables bore interest at rate ranging
from 4.35% to 11.00% per annum (2014: Nil).

At the end of the reporting period, all the Group's receivables
from factoring services were aged within 3 months and none
of these receivables was either past due or impaired.

The directors believe that no provision for impairment is
necessary as there has not been any significant change in the
credit quality of these customers and these balances are still
considered fully recoverable.

Included in the Group's receivables from factoring services was
an amount due from a related company of RMB45,000,000
(2014: Nil). The related company is beneficially owned and
controlled by a director of the Company.

Loan to this related company, disclosed pursuant to section
383(1)(d) of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and Part 3
of the Companies (Disclosure of Information about Benefits of
Directors) Regulation, is as follows:

20.

R 32 AR 75 FB WU R TR

AEEMREREEKGIERE M TR F
RIRERS - RTPEEFHE AR
365K MA °

RIBARIE FE R B AR K H B P A B eI
FRIER R EEZIEE o ZERGIEEN
TF4.35%E11.00% M FFIE(20145F : &)
§+/%\ °

RIEHIR - AR ER B RIE RS EUSR
MERRE=EARN  AZFREFAERED
HigRi(E -

EERA ARREEPNEEERTER
EZ8 - BRSHERDERAERKE -
AR FERIEH B ERYE -

AEERERERGEVRRESSEYR—
el BB X A1 7B A R #45,000,0007T (2014
F )  ZBBARRARRBEEERE
B RAEH

RIBREE D AMEPIFE383(1)(d) 5k & 2~ & (3%
BEFEMNZER)ROIEIRN  MZEBA
AMEHZEREEWT ¢

At

Maximum 31 December

amount 2014 and

At outstanding 1 January

31 December during 2015

2015 the year 120145

#R20155F FARS 12A318 &

12A31H KREESE 2015F1818

Name RMB’000 RMB’'000 RMB’000
ZRB AR¥T T ARYT T ARET T
Guangdong Liansu Electric |ERE¥EER 45,000 45,000 -

The loan is secured by the receivables of this related
company, subject to monthly interest rate of 0.3625% and
monthly service fee of 0.6375%, and repayable within 365
days.

China Lesso Group Holdings Limited & BB Y8 &£ @12 R AR A T
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21. PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER 21. /a{4% - 4 R EMEWEIE

RECEIVABLES
2015 2014
Note RMB’000 RMB'000
Bt 5 AR®T T ARETTT
Prepayments SELNE 427,832 337,622
Current portion of prepaid land lease B T i E 34
payments mENER D 13 23,844 22,474
Value-added tax recoverable FEINBER 120,166 153,441
Corporate income tax recoverable FIMDEMER 716 3,708
Deposits e 37,665 19,907
Other receivables H i pE U 5k 18 41,185 34,790
651,408 571,942
The financial assets included in the above balances are iR BENSREEERE 28X
unsecured, interest-free and receivable on demand. RERWEK -
22. CASH AND BANK DEPOSITS 22. BERIBITER
2015 2014
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥ET T ARETTT
Restricted cash: XMBHIRE
Guarantee deposits for banking facilities EBSRITRIENIERIZSE 638,033 582,838
Time deposits with original maturity of more EHIfF X (/R B HIFR
than three months when acquired HBid=EA) - 85,060
Cash and cash equivalents: ReRBEEEY
Time deposits with original maturity of FEHFER(RBERA
three months or less when acquired ZEAAT) 370,054 1,605,234
Cash and bank balances B4 RIRTTHEES 2,885,457 925,770
3,255,511 2,531,004
Cash and bank deposits B4 RIR1TER 3,893,544 3,198,902
Cash at banks earns interest at floating rates based on daily FHRRRITHIR SRS HRTERFERZ
bank deposit rates. Short-term time deposits are made for BRI REEF B o BETEHEZEEN T
varying periods between one day and twelve months and 1 RXE12{AATEW IR RS B TF BT A F =&
earn interest at the respective short-term time deposit rates. BEEVA B o SR1TES R TR EIIR S TR
The bank balances and restricted cash are deposited with B R 4R A2 2 B IFMERTT ©
creditworthy banks with no recent history of default.
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23. TRADE AND BILLS PAYABLES 23. ESRENRERE
2015 2014
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARYET T ARBT T
Trade payables =Y AN e 550,861 373,925
Bills payable EANESE 1,130,721 599,462
1,681,582 973,387
The trade payables are interest-free. The average credit period BORNFRIETRE - BHRENTHER
for trade purchases is 30 to 90 days. HABR A30E90H °
An aged analysis of the Group's trade and bills payables at the RIMERR - AEENE ZEMNFIERERE
end of the reporting period, based on the invoice date, is as REBERZEREHNERESTWOT ¢
follows:
2015 2014
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARET T ARETTT
Within 3 months 3fE AR 646,547 690,755
4 to 6 months 4Z61E A 681,165 267,183
7 to 12 months 7E=1218 A 334,281 6,794
1 to 2 years 1224 11,120 4,993
2 to 3 years 2E3%F 4,895 3,420
Over 3 years 3FEM F 3,674 242
1,681,582 973,387
q
=
1=
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24. OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS HittERERETER
2015 2014
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥T T AREFIT
Advances from customers BR8N 904,243 897,739
Accruals EETER 68,488 39,219
Salaries and welfare payables FERT T E RET 75,515 108,955
Other payables H b fE A 477,656 518,377
1,525,902 1,564,290
The financial liabilities included in the above balances are AR BENSRABE IR ENIRESGE
interest-free and repayable on demand. oo
25. BORROWINGS 25. &R
2015 2014
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥T ARET T
Current B
Unsecured bank loans IR ITE X 927,570 1,114,898
Current portion of long-term REVEERRITERD
unsecured bank loans eI 70,637 43,831
Secured other loans BiEHEMER 5,678 =
Loans from non-controlling interests IR E R 61,617 -
1,065,502 1,158,729
Non-current FRE
Unsecured bank loans EIIRERITE X 301,338 265,479
Unsecured syndicated loans EILIREER 1,873,900 1,755,626
2,175,238 2,021,105
3,240,740 3,179,834
2015 2014
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥ET T ARETFIT
Analysed into borrowings repayable: AR
Within one year or on demand —F RN B R 1,065,502 1,158,729
In the second year **_im 1,106,809 56,107
In the third to fifth years, inclusive =FEFRAFRN(BREEEMT) 1,068,429 1,964,998
3,240,740 3,179,834
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25. BORROWINGS (Continued) 25. B (#)

Note: B &
(a) The effective interest rates on the Group's borrowings range from 1.18% (a) REBERZEBEFEFNENTF1.18%E8.90% T~
10 8.90% (2014: 1.17% to 5.60%) per annum. £ (2014%F 1 1.17%£5.60%) °
(b) The loans from non-controlling interests are unsecured, interest-free and (b) KR ERAEEM 2R RIREKE
repayable on demand. o
(c) At the end of the reporting period, the Group's borrowings are (c) RERER KEBUET B AR
denominated in US dollar, HK dollar, Renminbi, Thai Baht and other ‘% FHEHEMERGTENBREESNA
currencies at aggregate amounts of RMB2,570,725,000 (2014: A R ¥ 2,570,725,000 7T (2014 F : AR ¥
RMB2,395,795,000), RMB590,635,000 (2014: RMB734,015,000), 2,395,795,000 5t ) + A R # 590,635,000 7T
RMB17,763,000 (2014: RMB50,000,000), RMB61,617,000 (2014: Nil) (201449 + AR #734,015,0007T) - AR
and Nil (2014: RMB24,000), respectively. 17,763,000 7T (2014 4 : A R % 50,000,000
7))~ AR¥61,617,0007T(2014F © ) K&
(2014%F : AR¥24,0007T) °
26. DEFERRED TAX 26. EERIE
The following are the major deferred tax assets/(liabilities) UTAERAREER F—FECHERANTBIE
recognised and their movements during the current and prior ERBERE, (BB REE
years:
Withholding
Fair value tax on
adjustments  distributable
Provision for  Accelerated  Decelerated arising from profits of
impairment tax tax acquisition of  subsidiaries Deferred
of assets  depreciation depreciation  subsidiaries in the PRC income Total
WEREAR  EKNEBAF
BEN SRMAEE  ADREAN
AERE NEWERE BAERENE A% RRAEH B bz @t
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AEETL  ARMTR ARETn ARMTr AR%Tn ARETn  ARETR
t 1 January 2014 201451818 7318 284 (402) (3,115) (74,901) 1,560 (69,256)
Credited/(charged) to the profitor 3t A/(118)EE#E
loss for the year note 9) (Hfzt9) 4,287 160 (1,087) 240 10,723 (32) 14,291
At 31 December 2014 and R20145128318 R
1 January 2015 20158181A 11,605 444 (1,489) (2,875) (64,178) 1,528 (54,965)
Credited/(charged) to the profitor 3t A/ (MB)EE B
loss for the year (note 9) (Rfz9) 16,253 (19) 1,489 240 (69,840)% (87) (51,964)
At 31 December 2015 72016%12A31H 21,858 425 (2,635) (134,018) 1441 (106,929)
& The amount repr.ese%ted ‘Ehe deferred tax provision of RMB91,868,000 # Z oA AT BEE A R A 9IRS FIEL
(2014: RMB12,193,000) on the distributable profits of the Company's HIEAE TR TR # 4 A R 91,868,0007C (20144 -
subsidiaries in the PRC after offsetting the realised deferred tax liabilities AR#12,193,0007T ) WA $5 7% ST B A AR
of RMB22,028,000 (2014: RMB22,916,000) arising from dividends FARBIMEESRREMELENE BREL
declared by these subsidiaries to their foreign investors during the year. HIBEEARK22,028,0007C(20144F : AREE
22,916,0007T) °
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26. DEFERRED TAX (Continued) IEAERLIE (1)
2015 2014
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥T T ARMEFIT
Gross deferred tax assets recognised RERE R ERA
in the consolidated statement of HREEEIEE E
financial position k) 29,724 13,577
Gross deferred tax liabilities recognised \,ﬁ?éﬁﬁkﬂkﬂﬂ%lﬁ
in the consolidated statement of ROELERIEAE
financial position Rk (136,653) (68,542)
(106,929) (54,965)

Pursuant to the PRC Corporate Income Tax Law, a 10%
withholding tax is levied on dividends declared to foreign
investors from the foreign investment enterprises established
in mainland China. The requirement is effective from 1
January 2008 and applies to earnings after 31 December
2007. A lower withholding tax rate may be applied if there is a
tax treaty between mainland China and the jurisdiction of the
foreign investors. The applicable rate for the Group is 5%. The
Group is therefore liable for withholding taxes on dividends
distributed by those subsidiaries established in mainland
China in respect of their earnings generated from 1 January
2008.

At the end of the reporting period, the Group has not
recognised deferred tax liabilities of RMB253,821,000 (2014:
RMB248,872,000) in respect of temporary differences relating
to the undistributed profits of subsidiaries, amounting to
RMB5,076,411,000 (2014: RMB4,977,446,000), that would
be payable on the distribution of these retained profits as the
Company controls the dividend policy of these subsidiaries
and it is probable that these profits will not be distributed in
the foreseeable future.

27. DEFERRED INCOME 27.

Deferred income represents government grants received by
the Group as financial subsidies for its construction of new
factory premises in Changchun and Daging and rental income
received in advance from certain of the Group’s employees for
leasing the staff quarters.

The government grants are released to profit or loss over
the expected useful lives of the relevant properties by equal
annual installments, while rental income received in advance
is recognised on the straight-line basis over the respective
lease terms.

RIEP R BEMERE - R B A K
INERFEMINEIEEE T IRA R E BN
10% KITEIRFTIS A o 5% R E B 20084F 1 A1
BfEARR  BRARBA2007412831HEE
BEAEF - P R RbEZINEISE & T
ANEREEBFETHBIEL - BIRRER X
BNTERFIGE - AKEME - BAME
IRFTBHMEEAE% > At ZENHFE
A AR 32 B9 B BB A B 3E20084F 1 A 1 B AR AT
BAEMmMDENBREME @ NEBEEZMNTE
RFTSHEL ©

RBERR - ARARBEH ZFH B
NRAHEERE - BZFHEMNA R

D rd: TN 12 e N NI 7 - ST
REZEMNBRARIPEKRNEREZEAR
A R #5076,411,000 7t ( 2014 F : A
E?ﬁ%4977446,000ﬁ) B & T IR B
BR(ARDEZERBEMEIZLT) A

%253,821,000 JTL(2014F : AR E
248,872,0007T) ©

I FIE WL 38

BT R A S B W R T B - {ERHE
FERERKE SR TR %00 B s -
URBEAREEETREBELURHEEST
BEEESWA -

BTN BB XA AE R FRAEE
NEREBABR AR - MELKRNES
WARZE BB SOERR ©
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28. SHARE CAPITAL 28. B
SHARES [ 2015 2014
Authorised: EE
20,000,000,000 (2014: 20,000,000,000(20144F :
20,000,000,000) ordinary shares 20,000,000,000) B B i EE HK$1,000,000,000  HK$1,000,000,000
of HK$0.05 each 0.05/8 L T i A% 1,000,000,0005  1,000,000,0007% 70
Issued and fully paid: BRTRAE
3,110,255,400 (2014: 3,110,255,400(20144F :
3,110,255,400) ordinary shares 3,110,255,400) R G EE HK$155,512,770 HK$155,512,770
of HK$0.05 each 0.058TH iR 155,512,77058 7T 155,512,770 7T
Equivalent to EHEH RMB135,686,000 RMB 135,686,000

AK#135,686,000T A K#135,686,0007T

The following changes in the Company's issued share capital FARANNTCEITREARESE T -
took place during the year:

Number of
ordinary shares
of HK$0.05 each
SREE Nominal value of
0.058 T Y ordinary shares
EBERHE ERREE
HK$'000 RMB’000
FHT AREFT
Issued and fully paid: BRTREE
At 1 January 2014 R2014F1 818 3,075,731,740 153,786 134,316
Upon exercise of the share options (note) & 77 {& & A% (i 55) 34,523,660 1,726 1,370
At 31 December 2014, 20146124318 »
1 January 2015 and 2015118 R
31 December 2015 201512 A31H 3,110,255,400 155,512 135,686
Note: Mz -
Pursuant to the exercise of the share options at the exercise price of HK$1.82 BRRTEESRRM1.2BTATFEAARRELN
each granted by the Company, the Company issued a total of 34,523,660 FEARME - N2 AR 2014F 1T A #£34,623,660 K &
ordinary shares of HK$0.05 each for a total cash consideration, before REECSETHEER  BRESAREB(RFIHI)LD
expenses, of approximately HK$62,833,000 (approximately RMB49,874,000 62,833,000/8 7 (HIEN ARKEA9,874,0007T) ° ZER
equivalent) during 2014. The shares issued during 2014 rank pari passu in all 014FBITROHESHEERRAERRFROZER
respects with the then existing shares of the Company. L o
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

R %

29.

30.

31.

B AR BT A )

RESERVES

The amounts of the Group’'s reserves and the movements
therein for the current and prior years are presented in the
consolidated statement of changes in equity.

Pursuant to the relevant laws and regulations for Sino-foreign
joint venture enterprises, a portion of the profits of the
Group's subsidiaries which are established in the PRC has
been transferred to reserve funds which are restricted as to
use.

SHARE OPTION SCHEMES

A share option scheme was adopted by the Company on 14
May 2010 (the “Share Option Scheme”) for the purpose of
providing incentives and rewards to eligible participants who
contribute to the success of the Group’s operations.

No share options have been granted under the Share Option
Scheme since its adoption.

TRANSACTIONS WITH NON-CONTROLLING
INTERESTS

ACQUISITION OF ADDITIONAL INTEREST IN A
SUBSIDIARY

On 1 July 2015, the Group acquired the remaining 35%
shareholding in Skyreach L&S Extrusions Corp. and its
subsidiary (collectively referred to as the “Skyreach Group”)
at a cash consideration of CAD1 (approximately RMB6
equivalent) from the non-controlling interests. The carrying
amount of the non-controlling interests in the Skyreach
Group on the date of acquisition was a debit balance of
RMB26,395,000. The Group recognised an increase in non-
controlling interests of RMB26,395,000 and a decrease
in equity attributable to owners of the Company of
RMB26,395,000 upon completion of this transaction. The
effect of changes in the ownership interest of Skyreach Group
on the equity attributable to owners of the Company during
the year is summarised as follows:

29.

30.

31.

(N
AEBAFERBEFENRESRELES
BONGAREEBRANZS

REBERARFING EDEENBEBEAERX
B AEEEFBEKRZONMER RN D E
NEeBREARXBRHINFEREES -

R AT 2
R2010F5 A 14H © BHE M EEEEHAER

MR EEHERMMNAER2EA » AR
BB —IRME A AT &I (TRt 3 ) -

RAT B ERARIB A IERT B PAZK - W EARIRZ
AR B AR E -
B EFIEENRS

W B B D B AR R

R2015F 7818 » AN B R FE4E f #E 25
BEBPENELRERAG REHBAR(H

MIEMER ] RHK235%KE  Rer
ERMEIT(HERARKET) - RIE

B ENEEZIEEHRENERSEN A

&7 4582 AR #26,395,0007T - AEBE

RTERLRZ R B RERRIE I IEAE B MRS AR

#26,395,0007T Mk D AR B E AR

AR 26,395,0007T - EINEEE

ﬁ*&”ﬁé# FERFNE AR BHEE ARILE
EERMINT ¢

RMB’000
AR¥ET T
Carrying amount of non-controlling B IR HIRE A
interests acquired REEE (26,395)
Consideration paid to non-controlling YA F IR HIRE R A
interests RIE -
Deficit of consideration paid recognised RiE=ER 2 ERE
within equity [Es At (26,395)
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32. BUSINESS COMBINATIONS 32. ¥Ba6f
During the year, the Group entered into a sale and purchase FRN - ANEEFTZE E i ABIEN T R H
agreement to acquire a 51% equity interest in Zhejiang Sky BEERATLRAEMBAG([IIXAEE
Well Plastics Co., Ltd." and its subsidiary (“Zhejiang Sky Well B A1 %EAER  BeREAARE
Group”) at a cash consideration of RMB67,990,000. 67,990,0007T °
Zhejiang Sky Well Group is principally engaged in the I RAFEBTENRERENEEBBATL
manufacture and sale of plastic manholes and inspection RmEFHER - ZWEFEAREFEIBERAEE
chambers. The acquisition allows the Group to further mGLE— L EHEERMAES -
diversify its products mix.
The fair values of the identifiable assets and liabilities of RUER I RFEENTHINEERE
Zhejiang Sky Well Group as at the date of acquisition are as BzAanBEAT :
follows:
RMB’000
AR¥ET T
Property, plant and equipment ME  BEKE 220,211
Prepaid land lease payments BT HEER 21,978
Other intangible assets EmEpEE 337
Inventories FE 27,764
Trade and bills receivables B 5 R ERTE R ERE 52,958
Prepayments and other receivables TR FRIE R H A FE IR 84,992
Cash and cash equivalents RekBeEEY 11,804
Trade and bills payables B RN FIAREE (56,015)
Other payables and accruals HEMEMRERETEA (85,899)
Tax payable FES IR (2,146)
Borrowings EEN (142,611)
Total identifiable net assets at fair value AR EEFELERAREE) (133,313)
Non-controlling interests JEI | RERS (65,323)
Total consideration R{ELREE 67,990
Acquisition-related costs incurred in relation to the acquisition FUEIN T R A EEEENEBHEBRARA
of Zhejiang Sky Well Group of RMB190,000 have been E#190,000c 2% 51K B U BB R AR 2 4
excluded from the cost of the acquisition and have been B EEERARS WY REZRS [ HiMHE
recognised directly as expenses and included in the “other YR o
expenses’ in profit or loss.
The aggregate fair values of the trade and bills receivables RWER  BES5EKZBEBLREZENE#
and other receivables as at the date of acquisition amounted FEWHRENAABEAES I AARE
to RMB52,958,000 and RMB84,992,000, respectively, 52,958,000 7T & A R #84,992,0007T * &
which approximate to the gross contractual amount of the NEBWEZEMELAGNS N ESEEAENE
corresponding balance acqliifed by the Group. At the date of HoRIgER  EEEBRATEAEAZWKOA
acquisition, management ¢onsidered that the contractual cash AR REW TEK
flows not expected to be collected was insignificant.
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32. BUSINESS COMBINATIONS (Continued) 32. ¥BE6H)
An analysis of the cash flows in respect of the acquisition is as BRAZWENRESREDITHOT -
follows:
RMB’000
AR¥T T
Cash consideration paid EfRERE 67,990
Less: Cash and cash equivalents acquired & : DEBRS RIRSZEY (11,804)
Net outflow of cash and cash equivalents B EZHEENRSNMIRESEED
included in investing activities piiuapeE-c] 56,186
Since the acquisition, Zhejiang Sky Well Group contributed BUEELZR - I RAEBAREEBKRAT
RMB19,148,000 to the Group's revenue and RMB772,000 to BiAR#19,148,0007T © I AR E 22015
the consolidated profit for the year ended 31 December 2015. F12R3MBILEFEEEENEBARE
772,0007T °
Had the combination taken place at the beginning of the M2 E R EEIT  FRAEERARE
year, the Group's revenue and its profit for the year would & A o Bl A AR #15,361,590,000 7T &
have been RMB15,361,590,000 and RMB1,617,448,000 ANR¥1,617,448,0007T °
respectively.
33. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES 33. FAAREE
At the end of the reporting period, the Group did not have any RIFERR  AEBBBETRNERKAEE
significant contingent liabilities (2014: Nil). (20144 : #&) -
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34. OPERATING LEASE ARRANGEMENTS

(A)

AS LESSOR

The Group leases certain office premises under
operating lease arrangements, with leases negotiated
for terms ranging from one to six years.

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had total
future minimum lease receivables under non-cancellable

RERERH

(A)

fERHBEA
REERBEEHELHLEE ?%%
NE  HEEEAE— iﬂiT\

RB|EHRK - RBEEBRFFIZLAHTA
BHREEY  AEEIHEEA R

operating leases with its tenants falling due as follows: RRERS@ETEAOT -
2015 2014
RMB'000 RMB’000
ARETR ARET T
Within one year —FR 2,458 630
In the second to fifth years, E_EERFR
inclusive (PHREEMF) 3,197 470
After five years hF#% - 6
5,655 1,106
(B) AS LESSEE (B) fERAEMEA
The Group leases certain of its office premises, NEERBRIEHELE  BAET

production plants, warehouses and equipment under
operating lease arrangements. Leases are negotiated for
terms ranging from one to eighteen years.

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had total
future minimum lease payments under non-cancellable

PAE LERE - BENKME - H

HEER—ZETNFIE -

TR

RETAHELZHE

# o RNEE 'JHHFEHE’J*XEﬁ?TEi

operating leases falling due as follows: mEmT
2015 2014
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETR ARETT
Within one year —FR 12,873 10,297
In the second to fifth years, F_EZERFR
inclusive (BREREMF) 31,825 17,958
After five years hF#% 29,301 7,772
73,999 36,027
35. COMMITMENTS 35. &AIE
The Group had the following capital commitments at the end RIREHIR - ANEEG AT EARIE :
of the reporting period:
2015 2014
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETR ARETT
Contracted, but not provided for: B T4 REE
Property, plant and equipment ME -« BEREE 508,625 347,681
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36. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS AND 36. AR Z R
BALANCES

(A) THE GROUP’'S MATERIAL TRANSACTIONS WITH (A) FERFIEEHEEBEBRBRALTZEARS
RELATED PARTIES DURING THE YEAR

2015 2014
Note RMB’000 RMB'000
BaE AR¥ET T ARETTT
Connected transactions BEXS
Transactions with companies REBHERZ —L
under the common control EEEHIHAF
of a director: MRS :
Sales of goods HEEM (i) 1,902 221
Handling fee income and interest ~ K BRERB 2 FE
income from factoring services B W MR B (ii) 240 -
Consumption of utilities e NS (iii) 8,323 7,241
Rental expenses Gizkalzab-a (iv) 4,421 3,316
Purchases of materials PLEE AR (v)* 28,700 8,059
Purchases of equipment FREERRAE (vi) 77,308 74,952
Purchases of electronic accessories  REEE FR {4 (vi) 421 2,810
Licensing trademarks Pz (vii)* 404 406
Agency services from RE—UEZEHNZ
companies under the control SYNGIIiE kA
of a director PR 7% (viii)* 3,807 1,446
Advisory services from a company REZASZATZZEHE
under the significant influence of —fE R RIFTIR (A9 5
directors AR 7% (viii)* = 943
Purchases of land, property and M—EFEE M
plant from a director YERKE (ix) = 15,630
Deposits paid for the purchase MEEEE I W
of land, property and plant to MBS ik e
directors (ix) - 77,010
Rental expenses paid to directors ~ MESBSZ{NHBESE X (x)* 1,495 1,950
Non-connected transactions FEERS
Design and maintenance services &2 ERHAORTRL
from a joint venture WS AR TS (xi) 4,100 2,563
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36. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS AND
BALANCES (Continued)

(A) THE GROUP’'S MATERIAL TRANSACTIONS WITH
RELATED PARTIES DURING THE YEAR (Continued)

Note:

(i) Sales of goods to related companies were made with reference to
the prices and conditions offered by the Group to the third-party
customers.

(ii) Provision of factoring services were made in accordance with
respective contractual terms offered by the Group to the third-
party customers.

(iii) Utilities were provided by related companies at cost.
(iv) Rental expenses were based on mutually agreed terms.

(v) Purchases of materials from related companies were made based
on mutually agreed terms.

(vi) Purchases of equipment and electronic accessories from related
companies were made with reference to the prices and conditions
offered by the related companies to their third-party customers.

(vii)  Licensing trademarks to related companies were conducted
based on mutually agreed terms.

(viii)  Agency services and advisory services were provided by related
companies based on mutually agreed terms.

(ix) Land, property and plant were sold to the Group based on
mutually agreed terms. For details, please refer to the Company's
announcement on connected transactions dated 20 June 2014.

(x) Properties including office premises, cafeteria, workshops and
warehouses were leased to the Group based on mutually agreed
terms.

(xi) Services were provided by a joint venture based on mutually

agreed terms.

ud [These related party transactions constitute connected
transactions or continuing connected transactions as defined
in Chaptef 14A of the Listing Rules but are exempted from
complying with the disclosure requirements under the Listing
Rules.

LN
X

m
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36. BN L RS KRR

(A)

FEAFXKEEBBAL ZEARS

()

MEE

(i) MEBAREEERINAEBRAE=F
BEFRHNERRIGER2IRET -

iy  RERERBIDEEAEENE=7EF
REZABENGTRERE

(i) RAEETIERA BB R RRE®
(iv)  HERXTIRETHENGRAE -

(v) MR TR & 75 15 E 80 16 5K R BB B A ) B

(vi) REREFEREGDESEABARIME=
7B PR EAR RGN R E R
5o

Vi) T BIBA R AT R T 1R B R
17 -

il BRI R IR R
R AR -

(ix) T4 MERBRETZE 5T R R
EFARE - FEFE - B2HEARER
201456 A20 A EAER H T 2 N E -

x) DEBERLE RE EBREET
REHHENGFATAEKE -

(xi)  BEBETIRETTHENGRRIEHRRY -

# ZEMHA LR S IR EHARAIE14A
EMAENRERZUFEMERS
BB T EMRAZRERTE -
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36. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS AND 36. BBALTXREZR&E @)
BALANCES (Continued)

(B) BALANCES WITH RELATED PARITIES (B) EEREER AL z&fR
2015 2014
Note RMB'000 RMB’000
fitzE ARETR ARETT
Balances with companies under the common R % B &FAZ—f1E HE 58
control of a director arising from: RRIMEHBRE
Deposits paid for the BEREMLTH
purchases of equipment Be (i) 14,400 23,780
Purchases of equipment RELE (il 36,053 =
Loans lent under factoring services BERERBELER (i) 45,000 =
Deposits paid for the purchase of land, HEELH  MERBEXM
property and plant to directors FEENRS (i) - 77,010
Note: B3
(i) The balances are included in the Group's deposits paid for the (i) ERFTAREBBE LI UE - BER
purchase of land, property, plant and equipment. BB RIRS -
(i) The balances are included in the Group's other payables and (i) ERRET AR EE M E A B KB R ERT B
accruals. =1

(iii) The balance is included in the Group's receivables from factoring

services. (i) HEHREFTAREEHRIERIEEWFE -
(C) COMMITMENTS WITH RELATED PARTIES (C) EEEEMEA LHIRFEEIE
Certain of the Group's subsidiaries have entered into AEEETHEB AR AHEMEEL
lease agreements with a director and a company under ERrE—NUEER—HERX M
the common control of a director to lease properties EFEEHOARGTCEERZE - A
for operations. The operating lease commitments of [ #9,922,0007T (20144 : AR%
RMB9,922,000 (2014: RMB14,115,000) with lease terms 14,115,00070 ) K& & TH S A HR
of three years have been included in note 34(B) to the B=F BRI B REME34B)
financial statements. Hoo
(D) COMPENSATION OF THE GROUP’S KEY (D) ZAEEXTEEBASHM
MANAGEMENT PERSONNEL
The remuneration of the Company's directors and the RAREERSRERENFMHAOT -

senior management was as follows:

2015 2014

RMB’000 RMB'000

ARET ARET T

Short-term employee benefits RHESRET 11,636 9,896
Post-employment benefits RINEEF 325 267
11,961 10,163
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37. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 37. €mT A
(A) CATEGORIES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (A) €@mITAEHR
The carrying amounts of each of the categories of RBEHR SELRTANERE
financial instruments at the end of the reporting period o

are as follows:

2015 2014
Note RMB’000 RMB'000
B 5 AR¥T T ARETTT
Financial assets TRMEE
Investments RE
Held-to-maturity investments HERIHEE 16 62,435 60,757
Available-for-sale investments AIHEERE 17 48,363 39,466
110,798 100,223
Loans and receivables BEXRENKE
Trade and bills receivables BRI IERRE 19 1,397,797 1,303,576
Receivables from factoring services (R IR 74 e 218 20 83,000 =
Other receivables H At U RIE 21 41,185 34,790
Cash and bank deposits & RIBITFK 22 3,893,544 3,198,902
5,415,526 4,537,268
5,526,324 4,637,491
Financial liabilities SRIBE
Financial liabilities at B ARSI BR B
amortised cost THEE
Trade and bills payables B RNFIEERE 23 1,681,582 973,387
Financial liabilities included in T A A T EIA K&
other payables and accruals ErtEANSRAR 24 477,656 518,377
Borrowings (BN 25 3,240,740 3,179,834
5,399,978 4,671,598

)
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37. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 37. €T H @)

(B) FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS OF FINANCIAL (B)
INSTRUMENTS

ERIANDAEBENE

Except as disclosed in the following tables, the carrying BTIRAAEEREIN  NEBRE KR
amounts of the Group’s financial instruments recognised EXANERZESBMTEZEmMBEEAEAD
in the financial statements approximate their fair values: NEERS
2015 2014
Carrying Fair Carrying Fair
amount value amount value
REE DAREE REE AREE
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AR¥TRT AR%¥TR ARBTT ARBTIL
Financial asset TREE
Held-to-maturity HEEEH
investments ®E 62,435 66,762 60,757 58,927

The fair values are based on the quoted market price
provided by a leading global financial market data
provider.

Fair value estimates are made at a specific point in time
and are based on relevant market information about the
financial instruments. The fair values of financial assets
and liabilities are included at the amount at which the
instrument could be exchanged in a current transaction
between willing parties, other than in a forced or
liquidation sale. The following methods and assumptions
were used to estimate the fair values:

° The fair values of held-to-maturity investments and
available-for-sale investments, except for those
measured at cost, are derived from quoted prices
in active market for identical assets or liabilities,
i.e., level 1 fair value hierarchy in accordance with
HKFRS 7.

o The fair values of trade and bills receivables,
receivables from factoring services, other
receivables, cash and bank deposits, trade and bills
payables and financial liabilities included in other
payables and accruals approximate to their carrying
amounts largely due to the short-term maturities of
these instruments.

AR EBEDIBRBEZRELHETHE
BHtEmRERATISREETE -

AR BEAFTIEREERBRES
BERTANHERHSERMEL -2
BEENMABNAARBENAZTIAB
FEXX 575 (MIEsRB B R HE)ER
RBTZARZEEARK - THIE
KBRIIBMEFT AR EIE -

s RAZRIHBRERAHHENRE
(LR AFT ERBRIN AR BE
TRBARMISHEREESAR
MRE - AN EAMBRELE
AIE7THRNRABEREEE -

o BHRUFELER - RERS
FENR IR ~ HAEUWGOR - B
KRITER - EHERNFELE
B St ARMMENFENERE
AnERmAENAABERERR
EEHRE  TEARZETIAN
FERRE -
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37.

38.

146

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS OF FINANCIAL

INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

° The fair values of borrowings have been calculated
by discounting the expected future cash flows
using rates currently available for instruments on
similar terms, credit risk and remaining maturities.

(B)

During the year, there were no transfers of fair value
measurements between level 1 and level 2 and
no transfers into or out of level 3 for the financial
instruments (2014 Nil).

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES

The Group's principal financial instruments comprise
borrowings and cash and short-term deposits. The main
purpose of these financial instruments is to raise finance for
the Group's operations. The Group has various other financial
assets and liabilities such as trade and other receivables
and trade and other payables, which arise directly from its
operations.

The main risks arising from the Group's financial instruments
are interest rate risk, foreign currency risk, credit risk and
liquidity risk. As the Group's exposure to these risks is kept to
a minimum, the Group has not used any derivatives and other
instruments for hedging purposes. The Group does not hold
or issue derivative financial instruments for trading purposes.
The Broad reviews and agrees policies for managing each of
these risks and they are summarised below.

INTEREST RATE RISK

In respect of the floating interest rate instruments, the Group
is subject to the cash flow interest rate risk, while for the fixed
interest rate instruments, the Group is subject to fair value
interest rate risk.

The following tqblé denidnstrates the sensitivity to a
reasonably possible change in interest rate, with all other
variables held constant, of the Group’s profit before tax by
assuming the floating rate borrowings outstanding at the end
of the reporting period were outstanding for the whole year.

China Lesso Group Holdings Limited & BB Y8 &£ @12 R AR A T

37.

38.

TR T A E)

(B) EMIAMAABENE(E)

s [EFHNAREBETDEBREARE
RAEEBEERR - EERR&F
FREIHA M TE ERyH R G TR
REBSREETHRRMAES
ITe

FR eI AF—HFLRE-_HHEL
BERNRBEFEERATESE AfE
HE =K (20144 - &) o

cRIAMEERZERBER

AEENTESRHTABRERUNERER
R ZFERTANEEZRZETIAN
SENLESERET - ARENBEMHE
BERELNTREREERAE - fINE
2 MUK IR N B b e WK IB AN & 55 8 A5 3RIA
KEMEMFRIA

AEBEZMIAEENTIERRANKME
o SRR - EERRMERBE SRR
F A 7 5 [ P AR 1O 32 55 L B A 15 TR S AR K
¥ AREEYEREREATEIAREMT
BLAEEH 2 A - REEWESFAREITIT
EERMTANEEEZA -EF22CENY
REZFRAREENERK - ZBAWT -

BN
FBNETAKERAKEEER S RER
KR - MEEMNETAKEHAEE R
DR EBEMERER -

TEERBRRBEERGREENIDF
FERRBENKMEE - BHAEBHIR
FRE - AR ERBADERIY A BT T
FEB 7 R -
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38. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES 38. €l E EERIE (&)
AND POLICIES (Continued)

Increase/

Increase/ (decrease)
(decrease) in profit

in basis points before tax

B BR B AT F
g, (Rd) g 08D

RMB’000
AR¥T T
Year ended 31 December 2015 H=2015F12A318LEFE 50 (15,851)
Year ended 31 December 2015 #HE2016F12A318IEFE (50) 15,851
Year ended 31 December 2014 HE2014F12A3MBIEFE 50 (15,649)
Year ended 31 December 2014 HZE2014F 128318 1LFE (50) 15,649
FOREIGN CURRENCY RISK ShEEE R
The Group's main businesses are located in mainland China AEBMNFEEBRHUAFREAM - A6
and most of the transactions are conducted in Renminbi. DRGEYUANREHEST - REBRBHEE
Most of the Group’s assets and liabilities are denominated &Q%L/U\E?fﬁafﬁ HETHRE RIRITHE
in Renminbi, except for certain cash and bank deposits and HAERAB T RETTEAE - NEEWLES
borrowings denominated in HK dollar and US dollar. The Group ﬁ[rﬂl% EITHH o
has not hedged its foreign exchange rate risk.
The following table demonstrates the sensitivity at the end TRETRBMERR - EEEME8RE
of the reporting period to a reasonably possible change in TEHBERT AEERBAIDEFEHARE
the Renminbi against the relevant currencies, with all other HEMEEEYEXNSETREZEH (AR
variables held constant, of the Group's profit before tax (due BEEEEEREFRNAARBEESMB) 2
to changes in the fair value of monetary assets and loans). BURE o
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38. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES 38. €t EEEREE (&)
AND POLICIES (Continued)

FOREIGN CURRENCY RISK (Continued) Shis B (48)
Increase/
Increase/ (decrease)
(decrease) in in profit

HK$/US$ rate before tax
BT, ETER BRE AR R
EACF®)  #in (Rd)

RMB’000
% AR¥T T
2015
If the RMB weakens against the US$ MARMEHEITEE 5 (93,548)
If the RMB strengthens against the US$ M AR HETHE (5) 93,548
If the RMB weakens against the HK$ M AREHBTEE 5 (8)
If the RMB strengthens against the HK$ i AR B TAE (5) 8
2014
If the RMB weakens against the US$ MARME L EITLEE 5 (52,736)
If the RMB strengthens against the US$ WA RS ETTHE (5) 52,736
If the RMB weakens against the HK$ MARBHBTERE 5 (6,058)
If the RMB strengthens against the HK$ MARB B THE (5) 6,058
CREDIT RISK EERK
The Group trades only with recognised and creditworthy REEEREARREEITSENE = FETT
third parties. It is the Group's policy that all customers who R G o RAKBRNBE - IBRIZEER
wish to trade on credit terms are subject to credit verification ETRGNER  NELBBEEZER
procedures. In addition, receivable balances are monitored on Fro Bboh » AEBIFEBEREBREHRDIBR
an ongoing basis and the Group's exposure to bad debts is not MAEENZERRERITTERX o
significant.
The credit risk of the Group’s other financial assets, which AEENEMEREE(REREMRITHE
comprise_cash and bank deposits and other receivables, arises REEMERFIBE)NEERBREER 5
from potential default of the counterparty, with a maximum FHETEY  ARBEESNZETA
exposure equal to.the carrying amounts of these instruments. FBREE °
Since the Group trades only with recognised and creditworthy HARASEENAEARREEUENE=FH
third parties, there is no requirement for collateral. EIRS  WIAHERAM -
In relation to the Group's factoring business, the Group ERAERNREEY  AEEHEEEEER
has a credit team which is responsible for the evaluation of BEaRNMEP2EENE  UBESRE
customer’s credit rating, financial-background and repayment B c AEEEREERINEFPREMEE
abilities. The Group only provides credit to customers with BER—MAREEKRR - ZSFEPHNRE
credit worthiness and collateral is normally required. The risk KRBT TEKX ©
of default in payment by these customers is considered not
significant.
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38. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES 38.
AND POLICIES (Continued)

TRAREEBRSERBE®@®

LIQUIDITY RISK

The Group aims to maintain sufficient cash and cash
equivalents and available funding through various sources of
finances to meet its commitments.

RBESER
AEBERNERFTRNAS KRS EEY
WEBTRRE/EAEESES -

The maturity profile of the Group's financial liabilities at the
end of each of the reporting periods, based on the contractual

REBFTRARITENRAEE - AEERER
SHRNERABEIHBERLT

undiscounted payments, is as follows:

2015
Within 1to2 More than
1 year years 2 years Total
15K/ 1225 R 260k e
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®STR AR®Tx AR%®Tr AR¥TxR
Trade and bills payables B EMNIE N EE 1,681,582 - - 1,681,582
Financial liabilities included &t A H fth &~ 5018
in other payables and MIETERN
accruals =N 477,656 - - 477,656
Borrowings e 1,124,823 1,141,560 1,071,237 3,337,620
3,284,061 1,141,560 1,071,237 5,496,858
2014
Within 1to2 More than
1 year years 2 years Total
1A 1226 R 2 F HBET
RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTIT AR®TRE AREFTT ARETT
Trade and bills payables 2 SN FIEREE 973,387 = = 973,387
Financial liabilities included &t A B fth fE (< 518
in other payables and REFTERR
accruals CA =N} 518,377 = = 518,377
Borrowings &3 1,208,759 101,952 2,020,864 3,331,675
2,700,523 101,952 2,020,864 4,823,339
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38.

150

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (Continued)

CAPITAL MANAGEMENT

The primary objectives of the Group's capital management are
to safeguard the Group's ability to continue as going concern
and to maintain reasonable capital ratios in order to support its
business and maximise shareholders’ value.

The Group manages its capital structure and makes
adjustments to it in light of changes in economic conditions.
In order to optimise the debt and equity balance, the Group
may adjust the dividend payment to shareholders, return
capital to shareholders, issue new shares or new debts or the
redemption of existing debts. No changes were made in the
objectives, policies or processes for managing capital during
the year.

The Group monitors capital using a net debt to equity ratio,
which is net debt divided by capital. Net debt includes
borrowings less cash and bank deposits. Capital represents
the total equity.

The Group's strategy is to maintain the net debt to equity
ratio at a healthy level in order to support its businesses. The
principal strategies adopted by the Group include, without
limitation, reviewing future cash flow requirements and
the ability to meet debt repayment schedules when they
fall due, maintaining a reasonable level of available banking
facilities and adjusting investment plans and financing plans,
if necessary, to ensure that the Group has a reasonable level
of capital to support its business. At the end of the reporting
period, the Group was at net cash position as follows:

38. SRIEEERFEREE @)

EXEHE

AEFBEAEENTIZARAREASEYR
BUARBERZLENGN  URBEREEN
BALL R FHER - URERRNEER

HHE&S °

AEERBEEANEHEELENRER
EHLFEE - RBCERREDRER A58
ARHBEXMNTRREOEE  MBREREE
A BOFTRIFEXBERREEY - F
N EREANER  BRIUERELTEE
# o

AEBNBEHFES R RERER &
R BEHFFERNER - @R FRBIEME
FORBR S MIRTTIFR c BTy HEHEan RE o

REE R RE R ES FRY R 2
BEKF - UXIEER - ARERDNE
ZRMEFBETRRERRAESREFT R
RXBIREBRE - RiFATARITRE
EREKFRABRKREFE RBES (I
FE) UERASEHEBAEKFINER
SREER - RREMK - ARENRSF
BT

2015 2014

RMB’000 RMB'000

ARET AREFIT

Borrowings EEN 3,240,740 3,179,834
Less: Cash and bank deposits B R RBITER (3,893,544) (3,198,902)
Net cash IH& 55 (652,804) (19,068)
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
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39. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES 39. TENBATINFRE

ARFZEEHBAAHEEOT

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are as

follows:
Percentage
of equity
Place of Issued attributable
incorporation/ ordinary share/ to the Company
registration registered A7 R FE(LRER L
Name and business share capital Direct Indirect Principal activities
il A ERTEERRE,
=L Bl d-E3:L HEMER Hi ME TEEK
Starcorp Investment Holdings Ltd. BVI US$1 100% - Investment holding
ERREAZERERAR REEBARS E 100% - REAER
Great China International BVI US$1 100% - Investment holding
Holdings Ltd.
ERERERER AR EERBRHE (Es 100% - REBR
China Liansu Investment Limited ~ BVI US$1 100% - Investment holding
REHERERRAR REERARS (E 100% - REZK
Liansu Group Company Limited Hong Kong HK$13,000,000 - 100%  Investment holding and
sale of building materials
and interior decoration
products
BEEEERAF B 13,000,000/ 7T - 100%  REFRIHEZM R
RKIEEmM
Guangdong Lesso Technology PRC HK$2,800,000,000 - 100%  Manufacture and sale of
Industrial Co., Ltd." @ plastic pipes and pipe
fittings
BREZHRERBRAFY h 2,800,000,00075 7T - 100% HERHEZHEBREN
Heshan Lesso Industrial PRC HK$269,930,000 - 100%  Manufacture and sale of
Development Co., Ltd. " ® plastic pipes and pipe
fittings
BUBZEXZRERLA h 269,930,000/ 1T - 100% RERHEZHEBREN
Lesso Technology Development PRC HK$111,000,000 - 100%  Manufacture and sale of
(Wuhan) Co., Ltd."® plastic pipes and pipe
fittings
BRI R R (E) AR AR h 111,000,000 7T - 100% HERHEENEENREN
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
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39. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES 39. S EME A IWE1E (&)

(Continued)
Percentage
of equity
Place of Issued attributable
incorporation/ ordinary share/ to the Company
registration registered A F]E{LER LA
Name and business share capital Direct Indirect Principal activities
e BRTTBEREAR
£ SEf R i B HfER HiE g TEEK
Lesso Technology Development PRC HK$115,000,000 - 100%  Manufacture and sale of
(Guiyang) Co., Ltd."® plastic pipes and pipe
fittings
BENMBER(BER)BRARY H 115,000,000/ 7T - 100% BERHEENEBREN
Nanjing Lesso Technology PRC US$26,750,000 - 100%  Manufacture and sale of
Industrial Co., Ltd."® plastic pipes and pipe
fittings
HRMENBREEERAAY i 26,750,000% 7T - 100% BUERHEENEBREN
Lesso Municipal Pipe (Hebei) PRC US$32,790,000 - 100%  Manufacture and sale of
Co., Ltd."® plastic pipes and pipe
fittings
BEmHES L) BRARY s 32,790,000 T - 100% SUEREEPHNEEREN
Henan Lesso Industrial Co., Ltd. "© PRC RMB200,000,000 - 100%  Manufacture and sale of
plastic pipes and pipe
fittings
AEBEERARARC i AR#200,000,0007T - 100% BUEERHEEHNEBREN
(a) Registered as a wholly-foreign-owned enterprise under the laws of the (a) BIEPEREEIMA—RINEBELE -
PRC.
(b) Registered as equity joint ventures under the laws of the PRC. (b) BIERPEREEIMASELE -
(c) Registered as a limited liability company under the laws of the PRC. (c) BiEPEEEIMA—RBEREAF -

The above table lists the Company’s subsidiaries which, in the
opinion of the directors, principally affected the results for the
year or formed a substantial portion of the Group’s net assets.
To give details of othier ;subsidiaries would, in the opinion of
the directors, result in partictlars of excessive length.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
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40. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE 40. 28 #&EMRRE

COMPANY
Information about the statement of financial position of the RIEHER  BERQ MG ROER
Company at the end of the reporting period as follows: mr
2015 2014
RMB’'000 RMB'000
AR¥T T ARETT
NON-CURRENT ASSETS FRBEE
Investments in subsidiaries R B ARIMIRE 3,421,868 3,244,780
Loans to a subsidiary m—REM B A RER - 1,358,537
Available-for-sale investments AHHERE 43,238 39,466
Total non-current assets EmBE ELLE 3,465,106 4,642,783
CURRENT ASSETS REBEE
Loans to a subsidiary mHB AR ERK 1,446,456 S
Cash and bank deposits BRe RRITIFRK 15,337 116,839
Total current assets MENVEEETR 1,461,793 116,839
CURRENT LIABILITIES REEE
Other payables and accruals HibENZIBERETER 2,261 1,763
Borrowings EEN 504,691 645,418
Total current liabilities mEBEER 506,952 647,181
NET CURRENT ASSETS/(LIABILITIES) REBEE (8@ FH 954,841 (530,342)
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT LIABILITIES EE &R RS AE 4,419,947 4,112,441
NON-CURRENT LIABILITY FRBEE
Borrowings RN 1,971,580 1,847,512
Net assets BEFHE 2,448,367 2,264,929
EQUITY =
Share capital [N 135,686 135,686
Reserves (note) it (B EE) 2,312,681 2,129,243
Total equity e AEER 2,448,367 2,264,929
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40. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE 40. 288 #AR R & (#&)

COMPANY (Continued)
Note: Mt -
A summary of the Company's reserves is as follows: KA Z HEBREWNT -
Available-
for-sale
Share investment Exchange
Share option valuation fluctuation Retained
premium reserve reserve reserve profits Total
AHE
RiPEE EREGEE REkEHE ERKDREE REBEH @it
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT ARETFT ARETFT ARETFT ARETFT ARETFT
At 1 January 2014 R2014F1A18 1,843,631 36,999 = (223,659) 423,432 2,080,403
Total comprehensive income for the year X2 E Kz
fet: - - 222 7,845 287,773 295,840
Issue of shares BIIRM 79,256 (30,796) - - - 48,460
Dividends recognised as distributions to  HZAREA A
owners DB E - - - - (295,460) (295,460)
Transfer upon the expiry of the BN SRR
Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme SHEIERBEA - (6,203) - - 6,203 -
At 31 December 2014 and R2014F128318 K
1 January 2015 2016F1 811 1,922,887 - 222 (215,814) 421,948 2,129,243
Total comprehensive income FRZERER
for the year - - 1,777 136,046 364,476 502,299
Dividends recognised as distributions to
owners - - - - (318,861) (318,861)
At 31 December 2015 R2015%12A318 1,922,887 - 1,999 (79,768) 467,563 2,312,681
41. APPROVAL OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 41. #tEBKRE
The financial statements were approved and authorised for FEEMR2016F3A18A A RBEZSH
issue by the Board on 18 March 2016. k&AM o
4
g | e
SEEE
- : ]
o
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SUMMARY OF INVESTMENT PROPERTIES
REVEBE

31 December 2015
2015412 A31H

Details of the Group’'s investment properties at the end of the RHEEFR  KEBEKEMEZFIFTNOT -
reporting period are as follows:

Group's Stage of

Location Type Site area Lease term interest completion
rEH
b 3B il R E R HAH Z R 72 R PR R
Sq. ft.
F 7R
119-120, 202, 204, 1413-1421, 1423 Thailand Complex 3,469,303 Freehold 75% Planning
Tambol Bang Sao Thong, stage

Amphoe Bang Sao Thong,

Samut Prakan Province

119-120, 202, 204, 1413-1421, 1423 RE A 3,469,303  KAEE 75% BaER
Tambol Bang Sao Thong,

Amphoe Bang Sao Thong,

Samut Prakan Province
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GLOSSARY
I

"Board”
=30

“BVI”
[RBERREHS ]

“China” or "PRC"
[ ]
“Code”
[<r81

“Company” or “China Lesso”

[ZRxm] ek [P B2

“Current Ratio”
[mEEE % |

"EBITDA"
(B BB EAT R ]

“Gearing Ratio”
[EEAEX

“"Group”
[ H |

“Guangdong Liansu Electric”

[ERBEER]

“Guangdong Liansu Machinery”

[ SRt 2B 25

the board of directors of the Company

RRBEFES

the British Virgin Islands
EEEBRES

the People’s Republic of China, for the purpose of this report, excluding
Hong Kong, Macau and Taiwan

REARLME  AREMS - XL TEEEE  BAREE

the Corporate Governance Code as set out in Appendix 14 to the Listing
Rules

ETRAIER AR R EAST A

China Lesso Group Holdings Limited
hE R BT RAR A A

the ratio of current assets to current liabilities
RBEERARBEBOLE

earnings before interest, taxes, depreciation and amortisation

ORRAE ~ BIR - I8 RS HAT A A

the total debts divided by the sum of total debts and total equity
REB AR AE AR SR AN A

the Company and its subsidiaries

ARE REME R

Guangdong Liansu Electric Co., Ltd.*, a company indirectly wholly-owned
by Mr. Wong Luen Hei and a connected person of the Company as defined
under the Listing Rules
EREBERBRAG  HHELLEME2ERENAR  TARARMNE
BEAT(EER EWHRAD

Guangdong Liansu Machinery Manufacturing Co., Ltd.*, a company
indirectly wholly-owned by Mr. Wong Luen Hei and a connected person of
the Company as defined under the Listing Rules

BRI EHEBRERRAR  EHELERAEEZERBNAR - WARKAQF]
WEEAT(EER ETHRAD
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GLOSSARY (Continued)

ARl ()

“Guangdong Lesso Technology”

[ SRt 2B o

“HK$”
[T

“Hong Kong” or “HK"”
[ &% ]

“Listing Rules”
[ EmAR Al

“Macau”

[P

“Model Code”

“N/A"
[N/A]

“"New Fortune”
[#TE £ ]

“pE"

[PE]

"PP-R"
[PP-R]

“PVC”
[PVC]

“Quick Ratio”
[RE)LL K |

“RMB"
[ARE ]

“Senior Notes”

[BRRE]

Guangdong Lesso Technology Industrial Co., Ltd.*, an indirectly wholly-
owned subsidiary of the Company

ERBMEMBREEAERLQA - AARANREEEZEN B QR

Hong Kong dollar, the lawful currency of Hong Kong

BREEEEE AT

Hong Kong Special Administrative Region of the PRC
REEBFRTRR

the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange
B R PTRE 25 LR Al

Macau Special Administrative Region of the PRC
BRI RITT R

the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers
as set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules
AR RIM SR 10FTE ) ET AR EFETER X HHFETA

not applicable
TEA

New Fortune Star Limited
New Fortune Star Limited

polyethylene
BKE

polypropylene random

BREBREAG

polyvinyl chloride
RELE

the ratio of current assets less inventories to current liabilities

MEBBERTFEBRARBDEENL R

Renminbi, the lawful currency of the PRC

TRZEEERE - AR

US$300 million 7.875% senior notes due 2016 issued by the Company
RAAIEITR2016F B HAR3IERTT7.875% B AR IE
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GLOSSARY (Continued)

ARl ()

“SFO”"
&5 MHIE D

“Share(s)”
[ A% 15 |

"Shareholder(s)”
A% 2R ]

“Shenzhen Qianhai Lesso”

“Shunde Liansu Industrial”
[NEEmE B T 2]

“State Council”

[ Bk )

“Stock Exchange”

Securities and Futures Ordinance, Chapter 571 of the Laws of Hong Kong
BREDIESTNEE S LB HED

share(s) of a nominal value of HK$0.05 each in the capital of the Company

ARRBEARFEFREEO0.05 LA I (D

holder(s) of the Share(s) of the Company
PN ES TSN

Shenzhen Qianhai Lesso Commercial Factoring Co.,Ltd.*, an indirectly
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company and wholly foreign-owned
enterprise established in the PRC

RINAEE LM EREBR AT - ARG ZHE2EWB AR RN BT
ZHNEBERE

Foshan Shunde Liansu Industrial Co., Ltd.*

BIUmIRE R EXER AR

The State Council of the PRC
Fh B B 75 Bt

The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited

[ Bk A2 7 | BEBBMERSFMBRAT

“Taiwan” the Republic of China

EE hERE

“tonne(s)” a unit measuring weight, equal to 1,000 kilograms
[ 1 | EEEEMEN - BEM,0008 7

"uUs” the United States of America

[EH ] EFRE RE

“US$” US dollar, the lawful currency of US

E ZEETEER-ETT

"%" per cent.

[ % | B

1 The English or Chinese translations in this report, where indicated, denote for identification purposes only.

3 AR ) SO R 3L (T
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CORPORATE INFORMATION
REIEF

BOARD OF DIRECTORS
EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Wong Luen Hei (Chairman)
Mr. Zuo Manlun (Chief executive)
Ms. Zuo Xiaoping

Mr. Lai Zhigiang

Mr. Kong Zhaocong

Mr. Chen Guonan

Dr. Lin Shaoquan

Mr. Huang Guirong

Mr. Luo Jianfeng

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR
Mr. Lin Dewei

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
Mr. Fung Pui Cheung

Mr. Wong Kwok Ho Jonathan

Mr. Cheung Man Yu

Ms. Lan Fang

Dr. Tao Zhigang

AUDIT COMMITTEE

Mr. Fung Pui Cheung (Chairman)
Mr. Wong Kwok Ho Jonathan
Mr. Lin Dewei

Mr. Cheung Man Yu

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE
Mr. Fung Pui Cheung (Chairman)

Mr. Wong Luen Hei

Mr. Zuo Manlun

Mr. Wong Kwok Ho Jonathan

Mr. Cheung Man Yu

NOMINATION COMMITTEE
Mr. Wong Luen Hei (Chairman)
Mr. Zuo Manlun

Mr. Fung Pui Cheung

Mr. Wong Kwok Ho Jonathan

Ms. Lan Fang

Exg
BITES
mMESEE(L/E)
ot ST A (T AR EL)
EXMRL
FEESR L L
FLIKBR R £

PREIR LA
NS T
mERSLE
BRI E

FHITES
MiBERE

BMFHTES
ISR
ITExLEE
RXFRE
[P pcs
Fe Mg £

BREEY
BB (L)
FEFEE

B S
RXFHE

BN
R E(EE)
ERER L
it E
FEFRE
RXFHE

REZEE
EMIERE(EE)
Emth e
it
FEFEE
e
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CORPORATE INFORMATION (Continued)

NalErR )

COMPANY SECRETARY
Mr. Kwan Chi Wai Samuel

AUTHORISED REPRESENTATIVES
Mr. Zuo Manlun
Mr. Kwan Chi Wai Samuel

REGISTERED OFFICE
PO Box 309, Ugland House
Grand Cayman, KY1-1104
Cayman Islands

HEADQUARTERS AND PRINCIPAL
PLACE OF BUSINESS IN CHINA
Liansu Industrial Estate

Longjiang Town

Shunde District

Foshan City

Guangdong Province 528318

China

PRINCIPAL PLACE OF BUSINESS
IN HONG KONG

Unit 3, 12th Floor, Tower 2

South Seas Centre

75 Mody Road

Tsim Sha Tsui East

Kowloon, Hong Kong

LISTING INFORMATION
Listing:
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited

Stock code:
2128

SHARE INFORMATION

Board lot size: 4
1,000 shares

Share issued as at 31§Diec mtiér 200 5:
3,110,255,400 shares| j : P'E

Market capitalisatioﬁ as at 31 December 2015:

HK$16,826 million
-
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EEREK
omtm St
BAEREEE
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PO Box 309, Ugland House
Grand Cayman, KY1-1104
Cayman Islands

TRARREEE R

&

BR & (H4 - 528318)
#EIl T

JEfE

BETHE

¥R T %A

BERETEEXME

BEENE
RPEEE
b 38 7 555
FEA
E_FE12183F

EmE&EH
L E -
BEBARIABRAR

BAR A58
2128

RAn&E#
STEHHEEL :
1,000/

2015512 A31HEBTRMHEE -
3,110,255,4000%

R20155F12831HHIE :
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CORPORATE INFORMATION (Continued)
NRER )

DIVIDEND

Final dividend per share for the year ended 31 December 2015:
HK13 cents per ordinary share

FINANCIAL CALENDAR
Annual results announcement:
18 March 2016

CLOSURE OF THE REGISTER OF MEMBERS:

- for determining the entitlement to attend and vote at annual
general meeting from 10 to 13 May 2016 (both dates
inclusive)

- for determining the entitlement to proposed final dividend
from 19 to 23 May 2016 (both dates inclusive)

2016 annual general meeting:
13 May 2016

Payment of 2015 proposed final dividend*:
on or around 27 May 2016

PRINCIPAL SHARE REGISTRAR
MaplesFS Limited

PO Box 1093

Queensgate House

Grand Cayman, KY1-1102

Cayman lIslands

BRANCH SHARE REGISTRAR
Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited
Shops 1712-1716, 17th Floor

Hopewell Centre

183 Queen’s Road East, Wanchai

Hong Kong

i Subject to approval by the Shareholders at the 2016 annual general meeting to

be held on 13 May 2016.

BRE
HZE2015F12A3MB I EFEFRARKS -
S E B3

5 B
FEEERE
2016435180

EERERMOBEETFME
= BEHEREBFERSETNE LIREMNE
HHE2016F5 8102138 (BHEEEMKX)

= e TE URER R R HAPE B 0 B A R 20164F
S5R19E23A(BIEEEMAR)

2016 FRERAFARE :
2016457 13H

IRAT201 5 F #ER R EIRR B+
2016F5 827 BT BT

RAPBFELEE
MaplesFS Limited

PO Box 1093
Queensgate House
Grand Cayman, KY1-1102
Cayman Islands

B BEERILESE
EEPREBEEZRLBRAA
BE

BT 2fEKEE1835

A FIeR R
17181712-1716 %

MEAFREMN201645 130 R1TH92016F R E AT
RE L% - HAEE -
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CORPORATE INFORMATION (Continued)
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INVESTOR RELATIONS

iPR Ogilvy & Mather

Units 2008-12, 20th Floor, The Centre
99 Queen’s Road, Central, Hong Kong
Tel: (852) 2136 6185

Fax: (852) 3170 6606

Email: ir@lesso.com

AUDITOR

Ernst & Young
Certified Public Accountants, Hong Kong

SOLICITOR
K&L Gates

PRINCIPAL BANKERS

Agricultural Bank of China Limited

Bank of China (Hong Kong) Limited

China Merchants Bank Co., Ltd.

CTBC Bank Co., Ltd., Hong Kong Branch

Foshan Shunde Rural Commercial Bank Company Limited
Hang Seng Bank Limited

Industrial and Commercial Bank of China (Asia) Limited
Industrial and Commercial Bank of China Limited
Sumitomo Mitsui Banking Corporation

Taipei Fubon Commercial Bank Co., Ltd., Hong Kong Branch
The Hongkong and Shanghai Banking Corporation Limited

WEBSITE

http://www.lesso.com
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Forward-looking statements

This report contains forward-looking statements. These forward-looking statements
include, without limitation, statements related to revenue and earnings. The words
"believe”, “intend”, “expect”, "anticipate”, “forecast”, “estimate”, “predict”, "is
confident”, “has confidence"” and similar expressions are also intended to represent
forward-looking statements. These forward-looking statements are not historical facts.
Rather, the forward-looking statements are based on the current beliefs, assumptions,
expectations, estimates and projections of the directors and management of China
Lesso about the business, industry and markets in which China Lesso operates.

These forward-looking statements are not guarantees of future performance and
are subject to risks, uncertainties and other factors, some of which are beyond the
Company's control and are difficult to predict. Consequently, actual results could
differ materially from those expressed, implied or forecasted in the forward-looking
statements.

Reliance should not be placed on these forward-looking statements, which reflect only
the views of the directors and management of China Lesso as at the date of this report
only. The Company undertakes no obligation to publicly revise these forward-looking
statements to reflect events or circumstances that arise after publication of this report.

AR A

AREFAAEZRR - WEEBRARFEATRRABERAR
AMER - mIEE] - [5t81) - (385 [F8E] - 3881
[Maat] -~ [H#ER ] DRIE] - [8EEL I RBRLERE I ERRA
B - IR EARNTRBMEEREREREREEL 7%
RABEPREENmSHARSIELOERNES  BR - H
P AR RIERRESE - MUFESLEE -

I EREERYFRRRNEBRRELRE  HE2EREA
B THPREEREAGEARMETZE  EPALEREIFAR
BIFTREIEG] - BEEDATER o Bt - B4R 8L B AT RE 2 AR
AR BRSRIERMEREEARZ -

FiiAEERERRGEREEEREEENARERRER
FRESRVERE: - AL —BITEERBULEAIERA - AREL
EEEARE DAATEESR - URMARERFEDEAEED
EFsBER -

# AIE R EINEEAEE - AR RE -



LESSO Hx¥8

Unit 3, 12th Floor, Tower 2, South Seas Centre, 75 Mody Road
Tsim Sha Tsui East, Kowloon, Hong Kong

EBNBERDIE R E 755 R RS Z 12183 E
o (852) 2712 8405
(852) 2714 7022
[ www.lesso.com

@ This report is printed on Elemental Chlorine Free (ECF) paper.
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